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Chairman’s Statement

EREW|E

Dear Shareholders,

| present on behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) the
annual report of Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (the
“Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2022.

The business environment of the construction industry
has been very challenging during the year. Rolling out of
public sector projects and investments in the private sector
development have also been hampered due to the interruption
and uncertainty caused by COVID-19 epidemic. On the other
hand, this situation has pressed the government to commit
its public spending on the construction of public housing,
hospitals and other social facilities, in order to stimulate the
economy by retaining employments in the construction market.

As mentioned in the latest Policy Address 2021 delivered by
Chief Executive Mrs. Carrie Lam, the Hong Kong government
proposed building a “Northern Metropolis” in Yuen Long
and North districts covering a total land area of about 300
square kilometers. The entire project is expected to take 20
years to complete. The new metropolis accounts for more
than one quarter of Hong Kong’s land area and is expected
to accommodate one-third of the population. It will involve a
multitude of new infrastructure projects, such as transportation
links, as well as residential and commercial buildings. In
addition, some 330,000 public housing units will be built by
2032 to ease the long waiting time for public housing. The
government said that they have secured 350 hectares of land
to meet the estimated public housing demand for around
301,000 units in the coming 10-year period.

The newly appointed sixth-term Chief Executive Mr. John Lee
Ka-chiu pledged in his manifesto in the election to improve
governance capabilities, increase and speed up housing and
land supply in quantity and quality, to boost Hong Kong’s
competitiveness and stress sustainable development, and
establish a caring society and value youth development.
Mr. John Lee noted he would also conduct a comprehensive
review of the Northern Metropolis Development Strategy
and the Lantau Tomorrow Vision plan, as well as the “Green
Belt” zone and “brownfields” to actively explore its future
developments. In addition, the resumption of private land
by means of the Land Resumption Ordinance will also be
considered.
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The government’s public housing construction program has
been updated by the Housing Authority on an annual basis.
The number of flat units and locations of development are
specified. Besides, the 10-year Hospital Development Plan
and a series of other hospital development and improvement
projects are underway for the Hospital Authority to modernise
its services and meet the growing healthcare needs of the
community. We foresee an improvement in the business
environment in the second half of 2022 and 2023.

The directors of the Company support the government to
expedite the implementation of public works projects and
further hope that the government can grab the good timing
to expand the infrastructure investments for the future of
Hong Kong’s development. This is vital to the sustainability of
Hong Kong as a leading international city and to tap into the
opportunities arising from the development of innovation and
technology hub in the Greater Bay Area.

Our establishment in Hong Kong for almost 30 years with job
references both in iconic public infrastructure projects and the
private development sector, as well as the commitment of our
strong management team and dedicated staff to provide quality
work and services to our customers, built up the Group’s
reputation for its excellence in expertise and experience.
These have enabled us to withstand the ups and downs in the
market that we experienced the past few decades. The Board
remains prudently optimistic about the long term prospects
of the construction market. We are confident that the Group,
as one of the most dependable contractors in the foundation
segment with an extensive range of specialised machinery
and equipment will secure more projects and participate
instrumentally in landmark projects in the future.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my respect
for and appreciation to my fellow Board members,
the management team, all staff members, suppliers,
subcontractors and other business partners and, most
importantly, our shareholders and customers for their support.

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
Chairman
Hong Kong

23 June 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

The Board hereby presents the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2022 (the “Year”/“2022”), together
with comparative figures from the previous year ended 31
March 2021 (the “Previous Year”/“2021”).

BUSINESS REVIEW
Group Revenue and Major Projects

The Group’s revenue for the Year increased 2% to HK$363
million (2021: HK$356 million) which was mainly contributed
by three construction projects, including East Kowloon Public
Housing, West Kowloon Cultural District and Kwun Tong
Commercial Building.

As at 31 March 2022
Completion status

R2022F3A31H
E32:00 9

East Kowloon Public Housing 62%
RNBRERE
West Kowloon Cultural District 91%
BEAXILE
Kwun Tong Commercial Building 51%
BEREAE

Note: The above remaining contract values were determined with
reference to internal estimates based on currently available
information, and may be subsequently revised.

East Kowloon Public Housing
This project was awarded in about April 2021, with contract

value of approximately HK$250 million, for bored pile works of
a public housing development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

This project contributed to about 43% the Group’s revenue for
the Year.

West Kowloon Cultural District

This project was awarded in about July 2020, with original
contract value of approximately HK$138 million. It is a
subcontract for bored pile works for integrated basement and
underground road of the West Kowloon Cultural District. The
latest estimated contract value has increased more than 30%
above the original sum according to re-measurements of the
construction works according to the construction contract.

This project contributed to about 24% the Group’s revenue for
the Year.

Kwun Tong Commercial Building

This project was awarded in about November 2020, with
contract value of approximately HK$161 million, for bored pile
and lateral support works of a proposed commercial building.

This project contributed to about 16% the Group’s revenue for
the Year.

Other projects

A few other projects contributed to about 17% of the Group’s
revenue for the Year.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The Group sees signs of recovery in the construction market
especially in the public sector. More tenders are available and
contract prices have increased as compared to the last year.
The directors of the Company consider that the industry has
already ran out of the bottom. The Group foresees a better
utilisation of equipment and labour in the coming year when it
obtains a few new contracts.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Investment in a property holding company

In March 2017, the Group acquired 5% equity interest in
a property holding company, Gold Champion Enterprises
Limited (“Gold Champion”). The purpose is to provide a
springboard for the Group to explore opportunities in property
investment or property development. During the year, Gold
Champion has received enquiries from parties interested in
the land development or interested to acquire the land parcel.
Meanwhile, in view of the economic slowdown recently, Gold
Champion will be patient to see the further development in the
market.

FINANCIAL REVIEW AND ANALYSIS
Gross Margin and Net Profit

The gross profit margin of the above major projects was
relatively low which was not enough to cover the overheads
such as machinery depreciation, repair and maintenance as
well as labour costs of the Group. As a result, the Group
recorded a gross loss of HK$58 million (2021: HK$4 million)
during the Year.

The management considered that there were several factors
leading to the thin gross profit margin of the major projects.
(1) Some contract customers had not yet certified the value of
construction works in response to the Group’s application for
interim payments. Therefore, the contract revenue recognised
by the Group might not be able to cover all the contract costs
incurred in the same period. (2) Material prices had increased in
general during the Year. The market price of steel and fuel had
risen to new records during the Year and therefore the Group
has increased the material costs for the construction contracts.
(3) The Group incurred extra labour and plant costs during
idling time resulted from interrupted work programme in some
construction sites.

The Group recorded a net loss of HK$101 million for the Year
(2021: HK$34 million) mainly because of the gross loss of
HK$58 million (2021: HK$4 million) discussed above together
with the administrative expenses of HK$44 million which were
relative fixed in nature (2021: HK$48 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing

The Group’s financial position remains healthy, with current
ratio at 1.1 times (2021: 1.5 times) and total cash and bank
balance amounted to approximately HK$128 million (2021:
HK$191 million). Net borrowings were zero (2021: zero), with
the Group in a net cash position as at 31 March 2022.

Liquidity

The Group generally meets its working capital requirements
by cash flows generated from its operations and short-term
borrowings. During the Year, the Group had a net cash outflow
of approximately HK$13 million used in operating activities
(2021: HK$3 million). Taken into account the cash balances
together with short-term bank loans facilities available, the
Group’s daily operations had been financially sound throughout
the Year.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s net current assets were
approximately HK$26 million (2021: HK$109 million) and
current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) was
1.1 times (2021: 1.5 times).

Cash and Bank Balances

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had total cash and bank
balances amounted to approximately HK$128 million (2021:
HK$191 million) mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
Cash and bank balances decreased mainly because of the
operating losses incurred for the Year.

Borrowings

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had total borrowings
of approximately HK$98 million (2021: HK$107 million)
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Borrowings generally
include short-term and long-term bank loans bearing floating
interest rates. Of the total borrowings, approximately HK$82
million (2021: HK$97 million) were for short-term bank loans
and bank overdrafts and approximately HK$8 million (2021:
HK$7 million) were for the current portion of long-term bank
loans with maturity dates within 12 months.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Gearing Ratio and Total Equity

As at 31 March 2022, the Group did not have net gearing
(net borrowings divided by total equity), instead, it had a net
cash position (2021: same). For the purpose of calculating
the Group’s net gearing ratio, net borrowings refer to the total
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank
balances.

The Group’s total equity as at 31 March 2022 was
approximately HK$528 million (2021: HK$627 million).

Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

The Group generally finances its capital expenditures by
internal resources, long-term bank loans and leases. During
the Year, the Group invested approximately HK$8 million in
machinery and equipment (2021: HK$12 million). As at 31
March 2022, the Group’s capital commitments relating to
purchase of machinery and equipment was HK$0.4 million
(2021: nil). During the Year, save as disclosed herein, the
Group did not make any material acquisitions or disposals of
assets.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had plant and equipment
of carrying amounts over HK$525 million in total, which
consisted of an extensive range of machinery and equipment
for foundation construction works. This fleet of plant and
equipment enables the Group to undertake both public and
private sector projects in order to generate revenue and profit
for the Group. The management considers that the fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use of these assets are
higher than their carrying amounts and therefore no impairment
provision is necessary.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2022, the net book amount of plant and
equipment approximately HK$51 million (2021: HK$35 million)
was pledged for long-term bank loans. None of the banking
facilities of the Group were secured by the Group’s bank
deposits (2021:.none).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2022, save for guarantees of performance
bonds relating to two foundation works and ancillary services
projects of the Group of approximately HK$7 million and HK$7
million (2021: three projects of approximately HK$50 million,
HK$18 million and HK$7 million), the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities. The performance bonds are
expected to be released in accordance with the terms of the
respective construction contracts.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Operations of the Group are mainly conducted in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group’s revenue, expenses, cash and bank
balances, borrowings, other monetary assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Other than the
purchases paid in Euros and Singapore dollars, the Group was
not exposed to any significant foreign currency risk and had
not employed any financial instrument for hedging.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
EMPLOYEES

Customers

The Group emphasises its ability to deliver quality work on time
to customers and within the pre-determined project budget.
To execute the quality assurance policy of the Group, we
have maintained a quality management system which follows
the 1ISO 9001 standards. Quality assurance functions are
performed throughout the foundation works process from the
construction materials procurement stage to the completion
stage to ensure that the foundation works and ancillary
services meet the standards required by each customer. In
addition, members of our management team communicate
with our customers on a regular basis during the course of a
project to better understand and respond to our customers’
specific requirements. As our foundation business operates
on a non-recurring and project-by-project basis, we have not
entered into any long-term master contract with any of our
major customers. However, through this continued relationship
development, our Group aims to attract further business
from these customers and referrals from these customers.
Our directors consider that our Group has established good
relationship with our customers by delivering constructive
solutions and quality service to them.
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BB mE

vl

Suppliers

We enter into contracts with our suppliers for construction
materials and subcontractors on a project-by-project basis
without a long term contract. Meanwhile, we maintain a
pre-approved list which admission is subject to assessment
of their background (including track record, pricing, market
reputation, timely delivery, financial conditions and after-sales
service) and the satisfactory quality of their construction materials,
and review and update the list from time to time. We also
acquired machinery and equipment from Asian and European
manufactures. We will check the product qualities and make
payments according to the contract terms. The directors consider
that we have maintained good business relationships with these
suppliers, subcontractors and manufacturers. During the year,
there was no material delay or dispute related to them causing
disruption to our operations. Some of them also have developed
good trading history of over years with our Group.

Employees

We believe that our employees are important assets to our
Group. Our directors recognise the importance of attracting
and retaining staff by providing a healthy and safe working
environment and job security. Our staff receive training to
enable them to acquire the prerequisite skills and knowledge
on health and safety related procedures before they are
assigned to carry out foundation works and ancillary services
on sites. Our Group also performs regular maintenance checks
on the machinery and equipment since our Group regards
regular maintenance as an important element to ensure safety
at the work sites. There was no fatal accidents happened in
the Group’s projects during the year and the accident rate was
lower than the industry average for the construction industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had approximately 246
(2021: 285) employees. The remuneration package we offer
to our employees includes salary, discretionary bonuses and
allowances. In general, we determine employee salaries based
on the individual’s qualifications, position and performance
(where applicable). We have designed an appraisal system to
assess the performance of our employees, which forms the
basis of our decisions with respect to salary raises, bonuses
and promotions. Our directors believe that the relationship
and co-operation between our management team and our
employees has been good.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

Qur Group also places an emphasis on environmental
protection when undertaking our foundation works and
ancillary services. Our Group’s activities are performed with
the utmost attention to quality, safety and with respect to the
environment. It is the policy of our Group to ensure that all
its activities are carried out in a manner that causes minimum
adverse impact on the environment through the establishment
and implementation of a management system which aims to
achieve environmental targets, comply with environmental
legislation and regulations, foster employees’ awareness
of their responsibilities for the environment; and review the
Group’s performance in respect of environmental matters and
strive to achieve continual improvement of its performance
and prevention of pollution. Trainings are provided to all staff
including the sub-contractor staff on the statutory and other
relevant requirements on environment and the implications of
not complying therewith.

BB WED T
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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In recognition of the policies and procedures undertaken by
our Group to address potential environmental issues with its
foundation works and ancillary services, in particular, large
diameter bored piles (with bell-out) and rock socketed steel
H-piles in pre-bored holes, our Group was awarded the
ISO 14001 (environment management system accreditation)
and renewed the certificate after passing the relevant audits
conducted by external certification body. Our Group also
implements an ISO 50001-based EnMS (energy management
system) that helps us to ascertain our current status of energy
use in order to devise corresponding measures to promote
efficient energy use in machinery and facilities and to formulate
a clear framework to promote continual improvement in energy
management and raise staff awareness on energy efficiency
and conservation. Our Group also monitors continuously on
the compliance with the customer’s environmental protection
requirements and relevant laws and regulations. During the
year, our Group had not been prosecuted by any governmental
authority for any purported breach of any applicable
environmental laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR - HERERRE

1

OUR REPORT

1.1

Statement of the Board

Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (the “Group”
or “Sam Woo0”) (HKEX Stock Code: 03822) is
pleased to issue the environmental, social and
governance report (the “Report”) for the year from
1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022, which aims at
elaborating on the Group’s social and environmental
governance and performance during the reporting
period and properly responding to stakeholders’
concerns about and opinions on the sustainable
development of the Group, so as to ensure the
Group’s sustainable development in a direction that
meets the expectations of all stakeholders.

As a socially responsible enterprise, the
Group undertook its environmental and social
responsibilities during the year and actively
implemented a number of environmental and
social policies as well as measures. In terms of
the environment, the Group strictly abided by
relevant laws and regulations, formulated targets
and measures for waste and emission reduction,
and spared no effort to reduce emissions and use
resources more efficiently. Thereby, we hoped to
reduce the impact of our construction sites on the
surrounding environment and maintain the high
quality of our projects. In terms of employment,
the Group strove to maintain good communication
with employees, paid close attention and properly
responded to their needs, and set their safety and
well-being as priorities. In addition, the Group,
willing to serve the community, donated to a
number of different charities and community bodies
in the past year to undertake its responsibilities as a
corporate citizen.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Group takes full responsibility for the Group’s
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
strategy and report, and reviews material
ESG-related issues and development. The Board
determines the materiality and priority of ESG
issues, and entrusts professional consultants
with materiality assessment, so as to effectively
identify the ESG issues and risks that are material
to the Group. Furthermore, the Board regularly
monitors ESG targets and progress, and proposes
countermeasures to help the Group reach another
milestone of sustainable development.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all
shareholders, customers and business partners
for their long-term support, and all employees for
their continuous contributions and efforts. Looking
ahead, the Group will actively implement its ESG
development strategy to promote sustainable
development in all respects.

The Report was confirmed and approved by the
Board on 23 June 2022.

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
Chairman
Hong Kong
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B -

1.2

1.3

1.4

HERERERE

Overview

The Report provides the ESG performance of
the Group during the reporting year, and is in
compliance with the “comply or explain” provisions
of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (ESG Reporting Guide) under
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and contains all recommended disclosures
therein.

Scope of Reporting

The Report covers the operation of the Group’s
head office and the foundation works project of
East Kowloon Public Housing (the “East Kowloon
Project”), being the major construction project of
the Group during the reporting period. The East
Kowloon Project was of high total contract value to
the Group and had a considerable impact on the
Group’s operation during the reporting period. With
a long construction period, the project had relatively
sufficient information and data of its environmental
key performance indicators (KPIs). As such, unless
otherwise indicated, all environmental KPIs in the
Report are the data of the East Kowloon Project.

Feedback

Your comments and suggestions will help
formulate and reinforce the Group’s future
sustainability strategy. In order to enable the
Group to comprehensively understand and improve
the performance related to its corporate social
responsibility work, we eagerly look forward to your
feedback via the following contact information:

Sam Woo Construction Group Limited
—MREEEEBRAF
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Address #4F : 10/F, Energy Plaza, 92 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong

FENERDERMIERHEERFERP L1012

Tel 3% : (852) 2332-0783
Fax & : (852) 2385-0793

E-mail EF 4% : info@samwoo-group.com
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1.5 Reporting Principles 1.5 EREREA

We have considered the following reporting
principles in preparing the Report:

Materiality: We communicate regularly with
stakeholders to better understand their concerns
about sustainability issues. Moreover, when we
examine the status quo, materiality and disclosure
of sustainability issues, we will regularly refer to local
and regional sustainability standards and those of
our peers to ensure that our sustainability priorities
and strategies are aligned with those standards.

Quantitative: The collection and analysis of the
data in the Report follow relevant guidelines and
standards, such as reporting our greenhouse gas
emissions in accordance with the international
standard 1ISO 14064 and conducting energy and
carbon audit for the Group in accordance with the
relevant guidelines issued by the Hong Kong SAR
government.

Balance: The materials and cases contained in the
Report are mainly derived from the statistical report,
relevant documents and internal communication
documents of the Company during the reporting
year. The Group undertakes that the Report does
not contain any false information or misleading
statement, and takes responsibility for its contents
as to authenticity, accuracy and completeness.

Consistency: We prepare the Report in accordance
with the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide of the Stock Exchange. Where
there are any changes in the future that may affect
the comparison with previous reports, the Group
will add notes to the corresponding content of the
Report.
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1.6 Engagement of Stakeholders

The Group believes that communication with
stakeholders is the key to the Group’s business
development and also the cornerstone of our
sustainable development. Therefore, we deeply
understand the ESG issues different stakeholders
are concerned about and their opinions and
expectations, and continue to improve sustainable
development management and strategies to
promote the sustainable development of the Group.

According to the requirements of the Listing Rules,
the Group regularly discloses the Company’s
operations and project progress on the information
disclosure website designated by the Stock
Exchange (HKEXnews: www.hkexnews.hk).
All disclosures are prepared and published in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules to ensure that investors are kept abreast of
our latest developments.

The Group communicates with its stakeholders
through the following channels:

SAMWOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Key stakeholder Communication channel
FTEROE BESX
Investors The Group maintains close, transparent and efficient

communication with stakeholders through regular investor
meetings, annual general meetings, e-mails, investor relations
hotlines, investor mailboxes and announcements.

REHE BRATHREESZ REAFAE  TH REEUERRGRKRE
EEMEAEERN - BROEREET - BANRSMER -

Customers Customers may express their opinions through e-mails and
telephone calls. The Group will furnish appropriate feedback as
soon as practicable in case of complaints.

LSS BFAIFEELEZBRERR  GERFER  UERRGETES
HIEITE o
Employees The Group will review the employment and employee welfare

systems through e-mails, meetings, training and annual employee
performance evaluation and strengthen employees’ awareness of
occupational safety and health through training.

BT BEf g5 BIREIFEEIXRRBTZURFERRE &M
B WEBEINEE THBEL L RER2BH -

Suppliers The Group will achieve an open and transparent procurement
policy through e-mails, meetings, review and process evaluation.

HAER FRER - g BRETERE  EEAFERNORBECE -
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We invited internal and external stakeholders to
score different issues regarding environmental
protection, employment and labour practices,
operating practices and community investment in
the survey, so as to understand to what extent
stakeholders are concerned about each issue.

By conducting analysis on the survey results, the
Group ranked the 12 related issues according to
their materiality. The materiality matrix is as follows:

REENEE

Issues of medium
importance

B BERVERM

THMNE

Importance to external stakeholders
¥

Issues of
low importance

REZMEE

MEFAEEBAN - INBFIZAE
BHEHRERE EREERET
BRBEE HEREE®
BT RZEEETHD - BR
M@ S ERENAT
BE -

BRAONMESHAEER K%
BE12EARFEET KRB
EUREHRI  ERMEMEE
LI

SEEMRE
Issues of high
importance

H=NBRBHRNERM
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ESG issue
ESG &&E

Pollution Control

5 RAE

Use of Resources

ZREIR

Green Operation

megE

Addressing Climate Change
FEETRIRE L

Equal Employment

FE R

Occupational Health and Safety
BEREETS

No.
Fohd

10

11

12

R HERERHRSE

ESG issue
ESG &#&

Talent Development

AT B

Protection of Rights and Interests
R IE

Supply Chain Management
HEERER

Quality Construction
BEmLT

Corporate Governance
E5IE

Social contribution
E):-pad
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Through the materiality analysis, the upper right
corner of the materiality matrix shows the issues of
high materiality. Through internal communication,
the Group has identified the following three ESG
issues which are important to the sustainable
development of the Group. Those issues are
therefore classified as the sustainable development
focuses of the Group.

a. Quality Construction
b. Supply Chain Management
c. Corporate Governance

The Group has taken corresponding measures
on issues of concern, which will be described in
detail in subsequent sections. The Group continues
to establish open, transparent, diversified and
accurate communication channels, which serves as
an important basis for the ESG governance of the
Group and help the Group efficiently determine the
direction of sustainable development and formulate
strategic targets.
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2 CARE FOR THE ENVIRONMENT 2 EERE

2.1 Management Approach and Policies 21 BRI REE

The Group is committed to adopting environmental
protection measures and promoting sustainable
development to undertake its social responsibilities
as a corporate citizen. The Group has formulated
multiple environmental management policies
and measures to mitigate the damage we have
caused to our environment while making positive
contribution to the environment. We also strictly
follow the ISO 14001 Environmental Management
System and ISO 50001 Energy Management
System and conduct internal and external
assessments regularly to evaluate the effectiveness
of the systems for continuous improvement, so
as to reduce and avoid unnecessary pollution to
demonstrate our commitment to environmental
management.

The Group has strictly complied with all applicable
environmental protection laws and regulations,
such as the Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Waste
Disposal Ordinance, Water Pollution Control
Ordinance and Noise Control Ordinance, and there
were no cases of prosecution due to violation of the
relevant environmental protection laws during the
reporting period.
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The Group’s emission targets and measures taken

to achieve them are as follows:

Target for
environmental
protection

RRER

Reducing
emissions

AP

Improving energy
efficiency

Rt R =

Directional indicator

FEEER

1.

To reduce emissions
from transportation and
thereby minimizing direct
greenhouse gases

R B 22 3 T EE A Y BE
CBRRELBEEARER

Sy

To reduce demands for
electricity and thereby
minimizing indirect
greenhouse gases
generated
FREHENTR  EER
LHERERENESE

SAMWOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

AEENBNBEEMRERSE
LB R MR R R T

Measure adopted during the year

FRNEHE

We provided and encouraged
employees to use video and
teleconferencing systems, in a bid
to reduce direct greenhouse gas
emissions caused by business trips
and related transportation

REVEBETICRARERERZTRER
#e o DU AR = R BB R A E
SIBMEERERBHENR

We formulated policies on regional
procurement by giving priority to
procurement from local suppliers
to reduce energy consumption and
greenhouse gas emissions due
to long-distance transportation
processes

HET T AR RIS REOBER - B8
ARt - R EREHNER A
T2 ML DAY BE TR B FE ROR = R BRI HE AR

We adopted zoning control for lighting
and air-conditioning systems in the
office to save electricity and reduce
indirect greenhouse gases generated
WMAEMRARZERRGERAD BRI
NETHARE - B R =R BN
EXE

The air conditioners’ temperature was
set at 25° C to save electricity and
reduce indirect greenhouse gases
generated
REEFRER25°C - FEEXAE -
AR = REBHES

Priority was given to energy-efficient
and low-emissions models to save
electricity and reduce indirect
greenhouse gases generated

BB ESRN R LB P E AL SR
NETHARE - EERIEEAEREN

EE
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Target for

environmental

protection Directional indicator Measure adopted during the year

RREE I R FANEE

Reducing waste 1. To reduce construction 1. We evaluated the production process

TRIKEEZEY) waste and found out the source of waste
1. WP BEEREY so as to formulate a plan to reduce

hazardous waste generated
2. To reduce water 1. FHEERRE KEOEEEMEENRHA

consumption and hence CARIETR O B EEEYNESL
sewage

2. EAHBKE - #mEdis 2. We recycled construction materials
7K and reused them after recycling to

reduce construction waste generated
3. To reduce waste paper 2. [EUWREERYFE @ B kEIWEBER &
generated DREREYNES
3. RIEEMAMES
3.  We set up a sewage treatment tank
on the construction site for sewage
treatment. The treated water is
subsequently used for washing on-site
machines, equipment and vehicles, road
spraying, watering and suchlike, thereby
lowering the water consumption and
sewage
3. R THMESAEIRREK - BT
ERIEMEEKAIFRSHA &RE - =
WRE - EORIKE - ARLEESRS
P K FR/K BRI R 457K

4. We raised employees’ awareness
of water conservation by promoting
water resources management
measures to them in environmental
training activities, and reduced the
amount of sewage

4. REEINEKER  ERFREIFRE
BISEKEREEENK WL /5KkE

5. We encouraged paperless office by
replacing traditional paper documents
with electronic documents to reduce
waste paper generated

5. EEEG&EHA  MAEFXHERRE
BAE XHE - BRI ESE
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2.2 Pollution Control

Exhaust Emissions

As a responsible enterprise, the Group has made
every effort to control waste gas emissions through
a series of emission reduction measures, and has
been focusing on the issue of exhaust emissions.
The dust generated during construction and the
emissions from the Group’s vehicles are our main
exhaust emissions. We follow the construction
advice of the general contractors to adopt all
feasible mitigation measures, such as sprinkling
water on dry ground to reduce fugitive dust. In
addition, the Group only has a small number of
private cars for employees’ short-distance transport,
so there has been no significant impact on the
environment.

It is an indisputable fact that global warming is
getting increasingly severe. The Group has always
been concerned about issues relating to climate
change. In this regard, the Group has formulated a
number of measures to reduce exhaust emissions
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations of
the operating regions and customer requirements.

To reduce emissions, the Group implemented a
series of environmental measures:

° Providing and encouraging employees to
use video and teleconferencing systems to
facilitate operation and management, in a bid
to reduce greenhouse gas emissions caused
by business trips and related transportation;
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- iEgRERERSE

° Formulating policies on regional procurement
by giving priority to procurement from local
suppliers to reduce energy consumption
and greenhouse gas emissions due to
long-distance transportation processes; and

° Giving priority to environment-friendly
equipment, such as variable frequency air

HIR] T B R I M SR A
KR - BB ASE
B LR ERENER
HBRE I AN EY BEIRH FE K
BEREBOER &

BUEABIRRORME -
g - A2 SAZE R K

conditioning equipment and refrigerants with FRRRKEBZEIKAENSR
less damage to the ozone layer; and using i A ERLE A - DAER
induction cooker instead of gas equipment RERAERARE
Set out below are the greenhouse gas emissions of RBEFA - SERNBEERE
the Group during the reporting year: BEREWLT ¢

Quantity of greenhouse

Type of greenhouse gas emissions Unit gas emissions
BEREHRER B BEREHENE
Total greenhouse gas emissions tCO,-e 4,108.29
ERERBHNE AW AR EE
Total greenhouse gas emissions intensity tCO,-e/m? of 0.26
concrete
ERERBHNETE AW ALIRE &
B HAKERL
RE
Direct emissions (Scope 1) tCO,-e 4,108.04
BEYR (SEE—) ANE_F(LIRE S
Direct emissions (Scope 1) intensity tCO,-e/m? of 0.26
concrete
BER (8E—) BE AW A LIRE &
:Fjj_/\/ttﬁj:
RE
Indirect energy emissions (Scope 2) tCO,-e 0.25
BERMEESE R (BE) R LIREE
Indirect energy emissions (Scope 2) intensity  tCO,-e/m? of 0.02
concrete
RERMEERN (BE=) BE —SE(tiREE
B KRR
A=
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Notes:

The calculations were based on the Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by the
Stock Exchange, 2006 IPCC Guidelines for
National Greenhouse Gas Inventories, IPCC Sixth
Assessment Report, and latest grid emission
factors;

Scope 1 includes emissions from combustion of
diesel oil in stationary sources and direct emissions
from combustion of diesel oil and unleaded gasoline
in mobile sources; and

Scope 2 includes energy indirect emissions from
purchased electricity.

Set out below are the data of annual emissions from
vehicles and gaseous fuel of the Group during the
reporting year:

Type of exhaust pollutants Unit
RS EMER B
Nitrogen oxide (NOXx) kg
RAEAY) (NOx) T
Sulphur oxide (SOx) kg
wa Ly (SOx) T
Particulate matter (PM) kg
FERL (PM) T
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FTE T ERB R M RIRE
R EMIRIRREIES] - 20064
IPCCEHZKAEREBEERM
IPCCHENRFAERE - ZFEH
PR F

#E 1 BIESH M E ERE TR
Ko S S $ U B B R B IR
PREHEIR  BAR

#E 2 BRBEEIMNERER
BEM -
AEEREFRNE@MFHRNE

REMHEENT

Quantity of exhaust
pollutant emissions
BRERMHERE
6,312.91

1.78

423.44
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Solid Waste Management

Handling and disposing of solid waste is an urgent
environmental issue in Hong Kong. The Group
realizes that the construction waste generated
on construction sites will place a heavy burden
on waste disposal facilities. Therefore, the Group
promotes waste reduction at source, assesses
production procedures regularly, identifies the
source of waste to formulate policies to reduce
the generation of hazardous waste, and facilitates
recycling to treat waste in a responsible manner.
In order to handle construction waste properly, the
Group has formulated comprehensive construction
waste management plans for various construction
projects, including recycling, handling, transferring
and disposing of construction waste.

As the hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste
generated by the East Kowloon Project were
collected, handled and disposed of by the general
contractor, the Group had no relevant records
during the reporting period. Although we do not
handle hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste
directly, we strictly review the general contractor’s
waste management measures. For example,
the general contractor will separate hazardous
waste and put them into designated containers
and storage areas separately; all non-hazardous
construction waste will be transported to designated
receiving facilities for construction waste in
accordance with the requirements of the Waste
Disposal Ordinance.

R HERERHRS

2] jE 2 T

EfEEYEEMNEERALE
EERNREZE  AEEAN
BRETHELANEEEDS
HEZYVREREHKTE
MWRE- Bl AEEHESIR
SERLEE - EHIRHEEEREE
R Y E L Y JREE - LA
AIROBEEERMNES X
fREmMU - AR BEENT AR
BEM MR TEZERIEESE
By AEECREEIRR
B HIRT e E MR EE Y E R
g ETEEER EE 8
BMEEREEY -

HRRNEEBEMEANEE
BEEY M EEERYIG B A&
ERWE REREE - FTN)
AEBEREHMALREHE
RCEk - MARMAUKREEEERE
BEEEBREMNREETERY
BRERMTEEBIEEREAE
BRERMEIEREE - flw:
HEEEAEHeREREYE
To8 WBYREFEREEN
R EMESE RS
MEEENERRB(EMREER
P B BSK  SEXE R TE R
FREBERHR W RE
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Reduction of Wastewater Discharge

The Group is aware that the shortage of water
resources is a serious global problem. The Group
prudently uses water resources and strictly handles
sewage discharge to alleviate water shortage,
and strives to reduce the negative impact on
the surrounding environment. The construction
wastewater is treated at the sewage treatment
tank first before discharging into sewage drains to
ensure compliance with the requirements of the
effluent discharge permit. Meanwhile, the Group
has been promoting the concept of wastewater
recycling by setting up a sewage treatment facilities
on the construction site to treat wastewater, and
the treated wastewater is subsequently used for
washing on-site machines, equipment and vehicles,
road spraying, watering and suchlike, so as to
conserve water and reduce wastewater discharge.

Use of Resources

To make good on the Group’s promise of achieving
environmentally sustainable development, we have
actively assumed our environmental responsibility
in our daily operations and formulated the code of
practice and technical guidelines. The code and
guidelines regulate our environmental protection
requirements on employees, contractors and
suppliers and provide employees with more specific
management suggestions and measures to reduce
the consumption of environmental and natural
resources, including energy, water and other natural
resources.
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Energy Conservation and Consumption Reduction

The Group has been actively considering and
adopting different methods to reduce the use of
resources, so as to conserve energy and reduce
consumption. For effective energy management,
we have already adopted the ISO 50001 Energy
Management System and have been certified for
many years. With this systematic management, we
expect to lower energy costs, reduce greenhouse
gas emissions and achieve the Group’s sustainable
development goals. We advocate the use of
energy-saving, efficient and environment-friendly
construction equipment, tools and office appliances
recommended by the state and the industry.
We also adopt various energy conservation
measures based on the construction requirements
of the general contractor and the developer. In
addition, we constantly update the latest news
on environmental protection to enhance existing
services and reduce environmental pollution.

R HERERHRS

FOREEFE

REE-—HEREERRFEWN
TR FERRDERER -
EEMEERE - BAEMHET
BERER  RMEDEKAISO
5000186 REB R - WiHE
LERBRE -HBRLESR
ILREE - FeRMARIE -
BB EREYER - EMmEE
SEMNAFEREEZR - B
REGHBER TEHBENED
BE = BRAMEIERME -
WERMPEARA - mMBIERE
AEERBEEANMEIEX
KRS ESHAOERER: 5
Sh o RIS EENIRRO&
BB LAEB(LBEARE - 1Etm

HWOBESFR -
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Set out below is the total energy consumption of the

Group:

Type of energy
RREE

Total energy consumption

BELREE

Total energy consumption
intensity

BREREERE

Direct energy consumption

HEEREE

Direct energy consumption
intensity

EEEREERE

Including:

Hep

Fuel consumption
PomFEE

Fuel consumption intensity
BREE RS

Indirect energy consumption

MEERER

Indirect energy consumption
intensity

MEREREERE

Including:

Hep

Electricity consumption
BIHEE

Electricity consumption intensity

BHRETE

Unit
B

000 kWh
T ETEF
‘000 kWh/m? of concrete

TETEE, BFFHKER
THE

'000 kWh

FHE T FLAF

000 kWh/m? of concrete

TFETEE8F KRR
+THA=

000 kWh

FEF FL B

000 kWh/m? of concrete

FETRE, 85 KR
THE

000 kWh

F1E T FL R

000 kWh/m? of concrete

FEFEE, &7 KRER
THE

'000 kWh

FE T FLAF

000 kWh/m? of concrete

FEFTRE,§F 7R
THE

Note: Energy data were converted into kWh with

reference to lower calorific value. Fuel included

unleaded gasoline and diesel.
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SEMEREEILT :

E‘}— .

Energy consumption

BERER

15,644.76

0.99

15,644.12

0.99

15,544.12

0.99

0.64

<0.01

0.64

<0.01

ERBE2EREAE
BMERTIE - hE
4 B U N SO
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Water Conservation and Efficiency Enhancement

The Group advocates the concept of “saving water
and using water wisely”, and prudently uses water
resources to reduce emissions at source. The
Group has instructed project managers to strictly
control sewage treatment and discharge and
strengthen the management of water resources,
in an effort to promote the recycling and reuse
of water resources, and hence reduce waste.
We promote the use of recycled water during
construction. The construction wastewater will be
sent to the sewage treatment tank for treatment
and reused for water spraying to reduce dust and
for equipment cleaning on the construction sites,
which helps reduce water consumption and control
the negative impact of emissions on the surrounding
environment. In addition, committed to raising
employees’ awareness of water conservation, the
Group promotes water resources management
measures to employees in environmental training
activities; meanwhile, the Group also strengthens
the maintenance, inspection and management
of water-consuming equipment to avoid leakage
caused by pipeline damage, thus achieving the
Group’s goal of water conservation. As the data
of water consumption are provided by the general
contractor, the Group had no relevant records
during the reporting period. In addition, as the
Group’s water is mainly from municipal pipelines,
there is no difficulty in sourcing water.

R HERERHRS

BRI

AEE-—EHREEBIEHHRAK-
RE MK BEMBERKE
R RRSRREE - A BB
ETRERTEBRBEEISK
B 3 B R N 058 B K B R H)
IR MO RKERKE
BB DIRE - it T8
B RPETERBERK
ETFRELNSKEXDS
IKEEIEMEEIE - ARAR T
MYER BB K BB S A
B B 7K 2 BR IR A BY I Il R IR
MEREERENEETE -
I AEETHARESET
MEN K AR B R - BIFIER
BERITmEISEEKER
EIEHEG ¢ [FE 750098 £ A K
REENEERETEE  A#ER
HERBEMEBURKIBER -
e E = & B AT K B K
BifE - AFEKEREAERIE
o FRAREEERSHAL
AREABRE - I KEW
RKEBREMRES - IR
BEUKH R & -
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Packaging Materials

The Group is primarily engaged in construction
works instead of manufacturing or retail, which
does not involve any packaging process. As such,
packaging materials are not significantly related to
our business. Therefore, the Group has no relevant
records of packaging materials.

2.3  Green Operation
Advocating green office

The Group proactively integrates environmental
responsibility into its daily operations. In this regard,
we have established the green office policy and
the management measures of green operation to
reduce environmental impact and the consumption
of natural resources. We will continue to examine
feasible strategies and measures for energy
conservation and explore new ways of energy
conservation and carbon reduction.

Name of measure

BiEaE HBERE
Green Office .
GERANE systems in the office

o MAEMBRAMERRGHEAD

Details of the measure

2.3

BEWH

AEBNATRAE - WHNE

XRTEX EPRASRE
A BEBIZ - FAABEYE R
REBLZBERNBE - Al -
AEBRAEBEYHANEET

REEBREGIREETRAL
TERELETAYT  BUEK
PRI R ATRR LG
EENEIRER  ORES IR
BEBAERNBER - KME
FERG AR AT TR
MFEE - WRRE % & e MR
TREYET 7 0% ©

Adopting zoning control for lighting and air-conditioning

5B 122 1

o Encouraging paperless office by replacing traditional paper

documents with electronic documents

o SEEALHA

- MR EF R E R A E R

° Setting air conditioners’ temperature at around 25°C

s REZEFBE/KK25°C

° Arranging for the supplier to collect toner cartridges to reduce
the production of hazardous waste

o HHMESLHAREEHIERK

B fEkREEMMES

o Advocating the use of recycled paper in response to the call

for cherishing the earth’s resources

s REEABEFANEERDIEMIRER
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Name of measure

a8

Promoting Green Concepts
in the Supply Chain
RS S EIRIR

Providing Environmental
Protection Training

RARRIE

Green Purchase and
Management
FERBERER

R HERERHRS

Details of the measure
BREAR

o All contracts entered into with suppliers contain all
requirements on environmental protection. Suppliers are
required to comply with environmental protection laws and
regulations and the standards of the Group

e HHEHFINARATBEERERENMERTE  HERLHE
BRBREEER LA EEZRE

o The Group will also use posters and emails from time to time
to encourage sub-contractors to comply with environmental
protection measures

o  AEENTRERESHMEFBHRES EBHERRRER

o The Group provides every new employee with environmental
protection training for them to understand the requirements
and standards of the industry and the Group on
environmental protection

e  AEEHERFIARNE TRHERRFRZI - EMMABERBRITER
AEBYRBRET AN ERLRFE

° At day-to-day meetings, we remind and educate employees
and workers on our environmental protection efforts
e HEHESFRPHERERHEEIRIABMERRIE

o Priority is given to models that are energy efficient and low
in emissions to support environmental protection when they
meet the Company’s requirements

o HERERATIEXREBERAT BEEERERERIERRDHEHROHT
S LA STHF IR IR

o After completion of a project, tools and equipment that are in
good condition would be transported back to the warehouse
to be used for other projects

e EIRBEETI® RERFHNIAREGEGHEEAEE @ AE
Hih TR HA

o The Group would procure materials based on the actual
needs of the project and would record the quantity used for
monitoring to prevent wastage due to lack of management

e RIBERFTEHIRENMENYE VEHBAENEE
=M PRARREEMESORE

° Regular inspections and maintenance are carried out to
increase energy efficiency, slow down the damage and
prolong the shelf life of the machineries

s TEHETHERSMRBLMET RN G Mg EE T
RIESHe
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Green construction

The major pollution generated by the Group
is from the daily operation of the construction
site. To effectively control and manage various
environmental discharges as a priority, the Group
has in place a Green Construction Scheme for
control and strict monitoring. It ensures that
construction works are carried out in accordance
with relevant environmental protection laws and
regulations to reduce the environmental impact of
the project construction process on the surrounding
environment.

e L

WRATEFSEENTIRE
ERENRIRZ— BBEMER
BERHEGE R R ARIR N
Y KEEHET -—EIRENR
ITHRINES RERERE
FERIE TR BARRRIRRARX
MEIT - SREEIHBEY

FENREZERERE -

Airborne dust prevention

bz

Noise suppression

L

EE

=z

=

Site management
T EE

Adopting effective dust prevention measures on site (for
example, water sprinkling, hard-paving ground, fencing,
netting and sealing)

LIS A MY AR (K - wmEmEl - BiE - BHE

= HEF

Ensuring the airborne dust control meets the requirements
of the Air Pollution Control Ordinance and Building
Environmental Assessment Method Plus for New Buildings
WRE TR GG EESIAED (ZREHIHEN) R (EER
T —RTERRREE) ME

Noise must not exceed the requirements of the Noise Control
Ordinance and Building Environmental Assessment Method
Plus for New Buildings

BENEHE (RFEHERN) & (GRRFT —MEEE) R
E

Regulating and controlling noise instantly on the construction
site
T e T35 57 R 5 2 17 B RS BRI B 22 )
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Site management

T EE
Wastewater treatment o Applying for wastewater discharge permit according to the
VERNEEE discharge requirements

o BBYEREREESKHKTE

° Assigning qualified units to monitor wastewater quality
o  HaBRIELETTREAKE A

. Ensuring the wastewater discharge meets the requirements of
the Water Pollution Control Ordinance

o BRISKEERESR CRISREHIRD) MRE

Waste management ° Setting a temporary storage site for waste
REEMETR s RIUEBEVREITSM

° Conducting waste classification with clear classification

o DEEMILBAENZERE

° Hazardous solid waste is required to be classified and placed
in a confined area
e FBEEBEEDMVASBERE  ARFEFR

o When certain amounts are stockpiled, local certified collector
is engaged to dispose of the waste

s RE THERUBAZAEMAEBNKREES KIS

o Ensuring the requirement of the Waste Disposal Ordinance
are met

o HERNA (BEMRERD) ORE

2.4 Addressing Climate Change 2.4 FEHREREL
The Group is well aware that climate change can AEEFPREEC ] 5|
lead to inclement weather, affecting especially LHRARIBEN  LEHEZEBIN
the arrangement and construction progress of TENLTHREIEE - &—
outdoor works. In case of inclement weather such B HHEEE - RRAERAE
as super typhoon, rainstorm and heat wave, the BERA EBRAEEZTAD
management needs to re-deploy manpower and AFMEDFERER - AT
take precautionary measures to prevent workers AZE - BORME S TR2A0E -

from being injured and reduce damage to the
project.
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The type of risks, description of risks and measures

to tackle risks related to climate change of the

Group during the reporting period are as follows:

Type of risks
EpER

Acute risks

BB 1 L B

Description of risks
[ B 48 2

Located in the coastal area, Hong
Kong is exposed to the risk of
reduced production capacity
resulting from construction
damage, supply chain disruption
and project delay due to shut-
downs arising from typhoon, flood
and heat wave.

AN SR - BEHEA -
IKRERERRRE  AJERBTR
FBE - HEREEREETmE
BITRRREEMNMETEFLER M &
MR o
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Measures to tackle risks

T2, B P 34 46 B

To respond to the sudden attack of
extreme weather such as typhoon,
rainstorm and heat wave, the Group
will adopt corresponding measures
according to the Guide on Safety at
Work in Times of Inclement Weather and
Code of Practice in Times of Typhoons
and Rainstorms issued by the Labour
Department, and the Guidelines on Site
Safety Measures for Working in Hot
Weather issued by the Construction
Industry Council. For office staff, we will
arrange employees’ reporting for duty
and release from work according to the
Code of Practice in Times of Typhoons
and Rainstorms released by the Hong
Kong Labour Department.
RIEHRME RO HRIHRAMEE - BF
REEERE  SE2RBAELETEREFLN B
HRATHIIELZ2ER) @ (RARE
WEETHI(EFR]) - URAREER
FELHN (EHARKR TIENIMEL S
3l - HIETHEREREE - MEHAE
WET HMEEREBL TR (R
NERESETIESAD) (IEFAD) &
BRZEHEEM LTI -
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Type of risks

el 8 k]
Policy and

legal risk
BRI R RR

Long-term risks

REIERE

Description of risks

. B i

The legal regulation related to
climate change in procurement,
transportation and construction
is tightening, resulting in risks
such as rising operating costs and
compliance costs.

HEHRRE  E% - RELHTEOR
RE(CHEMEREEMEE RS
. EAMEHEERALTARER
PRASE DN E R o

Extreme weather events caused
by climate change will make
the supply of construction raw
materials unstable and lead to
delays in construction projects.
Climate change will also have an
adverse impact on employees’
health and travel.

015 2 41 70 28 BB 1 o K R
P SR BV R B £ T AR
F o USIMBETIRER : MIRER
fbtb BB THREML (T E S
RTFFIZE -

R HERERHRS

Measures to tackle risks

[ iR FE 15 e

The Group implements various measures
to conserve energy and reduce
emissions, and strictly abides by relevant
environmental laws and regulations, with
a view to promoting energy conservation
and emission reduction while complying
with laws and increasing production.
SEBETZEMNERM S - W ERNE
STAEBRIRARBEER - BREMEIED
KIEINE S BRI - HaER T ETsE R BERY
IR

Upholding the concept of green
procurement, the Group implements
policies on regional procurement by
giving priority to procurement from local
suppliers to reduce energy consumption
and greenhouse gas emissions due to
additional transportation processes, so
as to promote sustainable development.
Furthermore, reducing additional
transportation processes also mitigates
the negative impact of project delay
arising from transportation.
SE-BEXHFEREBES  YETERES
MEBOBE - BRERAAMAER U
BRI ERBIE - MIE M EEIRA
FIORERBPR - ARSI &
B o AN - BB A T RN B B iR
12 ORVE RE R IR TR B H
% o
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3 GROWTH AND WIN-WIN 3 RERHEE

3.1 Equal Employment 3.1 FEERE

Overview of the Group’s employees up to 31 March B £2022F3A31H * K&

2022: MEEMME
By gender
T RIE D
W Mae B2t [ Female %1%
Male 514% 226
Female %1% 20
By employment type
BERERES
M Full-time [ Part-time [ Contract
2% Fidi an
Full-time 2 B 246
Part-time F 0
0

Contract & #J
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By age group
REwRARIE S
6%

f'

46%

[ Aged 31 or below M Aged 32-45 M Aged 46-60 [ Aged 61 or above
BTERSLAT 325 24588 46X Z607% 615%3k LA b
Aged 31 or below 3155 A T 14
Aged 32-45 32 E455% 49
Aged 46-60 465 =605 112
Aged 61 or above 61553 A _E 71

By geographical region
RLEE S

0.5%

M Hong Kong &7 [ Others HAth

Hong Kong & & 245
Others Hfth 1
Note: it -
The calculations were based on the Reporting Guidance HEERBIAAMOTSREEEA
on Social KPls issued by the Stock Exchange. BIEE RS S|
02FFH | CHREEEERAT 43




During the reporting year, the monthly average
employee turnover rates of the Group are set out as
follows:

Classification

28

By gender ZM 5 &%

Male 551%

Female Z 1%

By age group ZF#R 4RI &5
Aged 31 or below 315 AT
Aged 32-45 325 2455

Aged 46-60 465% £605%

Aged 61 or above 61578k A £
By geographical region % it & & %
Hong Kong &8

Others b

Note:

The calculations were based on the Reporting Guidance
on Social KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange.

Management approach and policies

Our business success depends on the unremitting
efforts and dedicated service of all employees. The
Group understands that recruiting, retaining and
cultivating talents will help the Group maintain its
market competitiveness. In order to protect the
rights of employees, the Group has formulated
employment policies that comply with relevant
laws and regulations. The Group strictly abides
by relevant laws and regulations on remuneration
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare,
such as the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance,
and there was no case of violation during the
period.
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FEEn  AEBNSEATY
Bk RMT -

Monthly average
employee turnover

rate (%)

B AFHIEERKLEER(%)

2.40
417

5.95
4.59
2.01
1.29

2.55
0.00

it

STEENE R A MBI SRR
MR ERED -

BT R E

BPNEBERNEEEESR
TEE A 5 8BRS
SEHABRS - RERAEA
FTEHERERFTHNZHEF N
RRERBEN  AEECH
ENARBEEARERERNE
BHR - NEEBIE BT AR
TR REREN T
R RE FEHE %
Tt~ RIBAR A R E 58 &
A e A RE R RARD - fln
(BEBEREN)  HAALKRE
ERBER -
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Equal opportunities and diversity

We implement a policy of diversity and
non-discrimination to demonstrate our
determination to create a non-discriminatory
working environment for employees and job
applicants. We provide employees with fair and
equal opportunities and benefits, regardless of
gender, age, family background, race, religion,
nationality, sexual orientation or health status.
During recruitment, we consider and evaluate the
candidates’ work experience, skills, abilities and
relevant qualifications. We have implemented a
highly transparent and unified recruitment process
to ensure the fairness, openness and impartiality
of the recruitment and employment process. When
determining the promotion of employees, we
follow the principle of “putting each person in a
suitable position” with reference to the evaluation of
employees’ work performance and their experience,
personal ability and potential which are regarded as
the conditions for promotion.
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Employee well-being

We offer competitive remuneration based on the
experience and performance of our employees.
Depending on the employment policies of each
business unit, our full-time employees in Hong
Kong are entitled to additional contribution to the
Mandatory Provident Fund by the employer, paid
leave, maternity leave, work-related group personal
accident insurance, group personal accident
insurance during employees’ participation in social,
recreational and voluntary activities, medical
insurance and long-term service awards. Moreover,
if employees suffer from an injury or die as the
result of an accident at work, the Group would
pay a reasonable compensation to the employees
and their family in accordance with the labour law.
The Group’s policy is strongly against overtime
work for employees. Prescribed overtime pay and
compensatory leave would be given for overtime
work.

The Group encourages healthy work-life balance
to ensure the well-being of employees. In order
to relieve work pressure, we also hold a series
of activities from time to time, including interest
classes, lectures, health lectures, fitness activities
and recreational activities, to help relieve work
pressure, enhance employee relations, strengthen
contacts between employees and enhance team
cohesion.
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Employee communication

Listening to employees’ voices is a unique way to
improve our efficiency. Meanwhile, it can keep us
aware of employees’ difficulties in a timely manner
and help solve their problems. We use different
channels to inform our employees of the latest news
of the Group and collect their opinions. Our senior
management will regularly review their suggestions
and propose solutions to the problems.

Occupational Health and Safety

Management approach and policies

The Group attaches great importance to the safety
of construction sites and regards occupational
safety and health as our top priority. The Group
strives to create the safest and most suitable
working environment, with zero work accidents
as the goal, and implements various management
measures to prevent potential risks of occupational
diseases and industrial casualties. Our occupational
safety and health management system and policies
ensure that risks related to all construction projects
of the Group can be effectively managed and
reduced. The Group observes the relevant laws and
regulations of the jurisdiction where it operates.
During the reporting period, the Group has passed
certification of ISO 45001 Occupational Health
and Safety Management System to verify the
effectiveness of the system.
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RIR - HERERRE

The Group strictly abides by the relevant laws and
regulations on providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational
hazards, such as the Factories and Industrial
Undertakings Ordinance, and there was no case of
violation during the period. In addition, there were
no work-related fatalities of the Group in the past
three years including the reporting period; and 150
working days were lost due to work-related injuries
in all construction projects of the Group during the
reporting period.

We have set up a comprehensive safety policy to
identify all potential risks, and will also carry out
crisis identification and risk assessment on a regular

AEBEBRKRETEERRELZS
TERRERRERE B B
MEEMHEBERRRG -
TN T R T34 51D K
BRI RBERBER  BLI -
BIEREHANBE=FARE
BAEATTWEMF MER
SHANAEBTE TRER X
B150HETHBEATIEEE -
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RABRIAEBERR - TE
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basis.

Implementation and
supervision

== = AR
BT REE

Safety training
I

We have set up dedicated safety management teams for all
EPC projects comprising site owners and the Company’s
employees at various levels

BN EAPIERE AR TERELEEIR/E  KEBERSE
ZEEXERONAFET

A dedicated safety management team is responsible for
conducting preliminary inspections on a regular basis on
operations and site work to identify the degree of potential
risks and review environmental and health goals and
strategies
HEXXERNEETHRECNRSTIEETISRER
BB FAENRER AR WEIRRE  REBRKIER
We conduct regular and ad hoc safety inspections and
supervision on construction sites for early detection of high-
risk or illegal operations
RIMETERANTEHN L2 RERES  PERaR/IE
RIRE

All personnel entering the construction site are required to
complete a safety orientation training course
FAEEATHITENABBTZAEILT 2 EHEIIRE
We conduct regular training on industrial and latest regulatory
standards for equipment operation and fire safety
EEETTABSWERE - BN 22 TE REFAOIFLENIE
We place conspicuous signs and safety notice boards in
prominent places
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R HERERHRS

Construction site safety We provide personal safety protection equipment for all

management construction workers
Tin 2ER s RUABHRIERHEAZZNEEE

o We hold monthly safety meetings to review the performance
of subcontractors in occupational safety and health and
environmental protection, as well as jointly develop effective
improvement and corrective actions

e BABMABARAZZEH RAZDHBEBZBRERRHRK
I W — A 6 R B E S A I B

° We select and reward frontline workers with outstanding
performance in occupational safety and health and
environmental protection each month, in the hope that this
will encourage more workers to pay attention to occupational
safety and health and environmental protection.

e BAYSRLELKEBERZENMRERARTELERENARET
AN BENBEEEELZTABIBRLZREIRRNER

o We hold regular emergency drills to ensure employees are
familiar with evacuation routes

o  TEHERTESER  URREIAZRAR

o We develop emergency response plans

e HEERZEHGE

° The safety department conducts thorough investigation after
a work-related injury accident

s HERATEHEEFHHZTE2HFRERSE

3.3 Talent Development 3.3 AAEE

Management approach and policies

The maturing of social developments will change
the business environment. In addition to attracting
external talents, the Company attaches great
importance to the cultivation of internal talents and
improve the professional skills and competitiveness
of employees, so as to keep pace with the times
and meet opportunities and challenges in the
future. As such, we facilitate employees’ individual
development by arranging various training schemes,
creating opportunities for healthy competition and
other means, with the expectation that they can
grow with the Company together.
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Training system

The Group has sponsored and provided
opportunities for employees to participate in various
training activities to enhance their knowledge and
skill, for example, providing mechanical operations
training for technician trainees and sponsoring their
licensing examinations. Furthermore, the Group
would nominate a number of employees to attend
operation training for new machine models provided
by the manufacturers; and would also arrange
them to participate in exhibitions to learn about
the latest mechanical developments. Through such
schemes, employees would be able to gain more
comprehensive knowledge on mechanical operation
and grasp new skills faster to help driving the
Company’s development.

The Group has always been concerned with
managing the career development of young
junior employees. In daily operations, the Group
will arrange team leaders to provide them with
on-the-job training and arrange experienced
staff to offer practical advice to them and to
share business and life experience with them. In
addition, managerial staff would attend seminars
on construction industry management or new
developments held by industry or professional
institutions to enhance their knowledge in
management and broaden their horizons. If a
department deems it necessary, employees may be
allocated to other positions to acquire knowledge
and experience from different fields.
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RIE - tERERBE

Up to 31 March 2022, the Group’s percentage of B £2022F3A31H * K& E

the employees trained and average training hours BRARENS S NRERESIF

completed per employee by category are as follows: DRk EBELEE KT IIFEY
R -

Average training
Percentage of hours completed

total employees per employee
Category trained (%) (hours)
BEEEREAK
LHBEZIEE ZINTOEH
7E B 7 (%) (/NEF)
By gender 3z B &5
Male 514 40 0.04
Female %% 60 2.00
By employee category Z{E S5 585
General Staff —f88 T 26.67 0.10
Supervisor £& 13.33 0.20
Middle management # /g 26.67 1.17
Senior management = 8 33.33 3.88
Note: 7
The calculations were based on the Reporting Guidance STEERBCRHAMOT SRS
on Social KPls issued by the Stock Exchange. MIEE R EHES] -
02FFH | CHNEEEBEARAT 51
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3.4 Protection of Rights and Interests

Management approach and policies

The Group explicitly prohibits forced labour
and employment of child labour, and attaches
importance to precaution in this regard. Before any
applicants are employed, the Group will thoroughly
check all kinds of documents and files and take
effective measures to verify their age to ensure that
they reach the legal age for employment. If child
labour is found, we will stop their work immediately
and carry out investigation to identify the loophole,
implementing remedial measures to prevent the
event from happening again.

The employment contract of the Group complies
with the requirements of local laws and regulations,
which specifies the rights and responsibilities
of both parties, protects employees’ due rights
and interests, prohibits any form of forced
labour, guarantees that all employees work on
a voluntary basis, and forbids the use of any
servile or contractual labour, corporal punishment,
imprisonment or threat of violence. The human
resources department also reviews the attendance
records on a regular basis. If overtime work
is discovered, investigation will be conducted
immediately to ensure that employees are not
forced to work overtime. If overtime is required due
to manufacturing or operational needs or under
special circumstances, it must be arranged with the
consent of the employee and must not affect the
physical condition of the employee, and overtime
payment must be provided as compensation.

The Group strictly abides by the relevant laws and
regulations on the prevention of child labour or
forced labour, such as the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance, and there was no case of violation
during the period.
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OPERATIONAL COMMITMENT

41

Supply Chain Management

Management approach and policies

The Group’s business requires close cooperation
with many suppliers and subcontractors, whose
involvement is critical for its sustainability. We clearly
set out requirements and standards during the
tendering and procurement processes, and set up
effective mechanisms to ensure that both parties
act in strict accordance with laws and regulations.
The Group had 141 Hong Kong-based suppliers
for contracted out projects or sub-contracting
processes to provide a wide range of construction
materials including concrete, steel, decorative
materials, and site equipment. The Group insists
on establishing long-term and stable strategic
cooperative relations with competent suppliers;
and focuses on strategic procurement to achieve
common development with suppliers based on
equality and win-win.

Supplier selection criteria

The Group has established an internal policy
to regulate the tendering and quoting process,
which requires that detailed assessments must be
performed on suppliers and contractors to ensure
that they meet the Group’s internal requirements;
the policy covers suppliers’ and contractors’
past performance, labour rights, performance in
occupational safety and health and environmental
protection, financial position and business ethics.
Moreover, all departments within the Group maintain
close communication to monitor and ensure that
the tendering and procurement process meets the
standards and is fair and transparent.

4
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Stringent regulation

The Group adopts a comprehensive supply chain
management mechanism. The project management
team of the Group would continuously monitor
the skill and labour safety performance of the
contractors, recording the relevant inspection
results for follow up work. We hold regular meetings
with contractors to review the quality and speed of
work of the contractors. We also conduct regular
assessments of the suppliers’ social, environmental
protection, occupational health and safety
standards to ensure that they comply with the law.
Any non-compliance may result in exclusion from
the tender list and termination of the contract. The
Group has implemented environmental protection
and occupational, safety and health guidelines
for contractors. These include best practices of
construction and engineering design, material
selection and pollution control. Additionally, the
Group would instruct suppliers and contractors
to provide training related to the operation of the
Group’s environmental management system.

During the year, the Company completed the
relevant review of all suppliers in accordance
with this policy, that is, the number of suppliers
disclosed in the Report passed the review that
covered, among others, product and service quality,
business ethics, environment protection, labour
practice, safety and other requirements to ensure
that the sustainable performance of the supply
chain was in line with the Group’s policy. The
results of the review confirmed that all suppliers had
implemented the supplier practices specified by the
Group.
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Sustainable supply chain

As a responsible company, the Group not only
commits to complying with all operation-related
laws and regulations but also expects to create a
better and greener future with our supply chain.
We require suppliers and contractors to comply
with the Group’s environmental protection and
occupational health and safety policies and strict
corporate governance standards, which are set
out in the specifications. To actively promote green
procurement, the Group will give priority to suppliers
with outstanding environmental performance, such
as selecting models with high energy efficiency
and less emissions, provided that the requirements
of the Group are met. In addition, the Group
implements regional procurement to promote green
procurement. Furthermore, we also firmly believe
that all employees in the supply chain should be
free from discrimination, and will never tolerate child
labour and forced labour practices by suppliers. We
regularly review the performance of suppliers and
contractors to ensure that they comply with relevant
requirements and continue to make improvements.

During the reporting period, the numbers of
suppliers of the Group by region are as follows:

Region
i &

Mainland China A Bl A b,
Hong Kong, the PRC # Bl &
Others E At

Note:

The calculations were based on the Reporting Guidance
on Social KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange.
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4.2 Quality Construction

Management approach and policies

The Group has always regarded the quality of
products as the key to our business success.
Therefore, we strive to provide customers with
quality, healthy and safe foundation engineering
service in accordance with all applicable laws
and regulations. Over the years, the Group has
always implemented a sound and effective quality
management system, conducted internal audits
on a regular basis, monitored quality performance,
proposed improvement measures, and continuously
improved the quality management process. The
Group’s quality management system has been
certified under the international standard ISO 9001.

The Group strictly abides by laws and regulations,
such as the Buildings Ordinance, related to product
health and safety, advertising, labelling, remedies
and intellectual property rights protection, and also
follows laws and regulations related to privacy.
There was no case of violation during the period.
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Product safety

In order to ensure all piles meet relevant safety
standards, we conduct product testing with specific
and effective methods to make sure that our
products meet quality and technical requirements.
We have developed testing and inspection plans
for different stages of the construction project,
and run various appropriate tests on all piles in
accordance with the relevant contractual provisions
upon completion of projects; of which quality
control tests cover a wide range of areas, including
inspection of the angle of inclination of the bored
pile, the quality of concrete and fractures, the
binding force between the concrete and rocks, and
a series of incoming quality control to ensure the
quality and safety of the product in all aspects. The
Group would also provide customers with the test
reports of all piles to guarantee the safety of the pile
structure.

Customer service

The Group is committed to becoming a professional
and reliable business partner, and firmly believes
that reliability, fairness, high quality and transparency
are the key to the success of long-term close
cooperation. In addition to attentive services, our
product services also cover quality assurance after
completion of the project. We would, in accordance
with the relevant contract terms, be responsible for
fixing any construction defects within the warranty
period, which is within one year after the completion
of the project. In addition, we set up multiple
channels for customers to give feedback and ensure
that we can collect customers’ opinions, so as to
improve product and service quality.
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Protection of consumer data privacy

The Group focuses on information security and
confidentiality, all employees are required to comply
with the privacy policy regarding personal data and
Hong Kong’s Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance to
protect customer data. The Group stands by the
confidentiality clause in the signed contract with
the customers, ensuring that the information and
documents provided by the customers would be
properly stored.

Advertising and Labelling

As a responsible company, the Group understands
the importance of advertising and sales pitches.
Accordingly, our business units strictly comply
with all relevant laws and self-discipline practices
relating to the labelling and promotion of products
and services. In addition, we regularly review our
management approach to make sure that the
publicity information is timely and accurate and
complies with relevant laws and regulations.
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R HERERHRS

4.3 Corporate Governance

Management approach and policies

The Group firmly believes that fairness, honesty
and integrity are important business assets.
We will never tolerate any forms of corruption,
including bribery and solicitation, fraud, and money
laundering. As such, to create and maintain an
ethical corporate culture, we have formulated
regulations on professional ethics in economic and
business activities, requiring business partners
to sign a commitment letter of cooperation unit,
regulating their companies and business personnel
to abide by the provisions of professional ethics,
and jointly maintaining a simple, transparent, clean
and fair partnership.

The Group strictly abides by relevant laws and
regulations on the prevention of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering, such as the Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance, and there was no case of
violation during the period.

Preventive regulation

In order to prevent any conflict of interests, we have
established a mechanism for conflict of interests,
and employees should first make a statement to
the Board through reporting channels. We have
also formulated fair, open and impartial procedures
for product or service procurement or tendering
to inhibit any potential corruption. In addition, the
Group engages independent auditors to audit the
Group’s financial statements, to ensure that the
Group’s accounts are correct and to strengthen
financial oversight to protect the interests of
shareholders.
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Whistle-blowing procedures

As a part of our anti-corruption measures, we
have formulated the Policy on Whistle-blowing and
developed relevant policies to effectively implement
internal monitoring and risk management. The
policies provide employees with reporting guidelines
and channels, and help increase employees’
alertness towards fraud, corruption and other
misconduct.

Anti-corruption training

To create a wholesome corporate atmosphere, the
Group provides employees with anti-corruption
training, including simulating response to coercion
and bribery by suppliers, and guiding and regulating
the daily conduct of the employees of the Group.
In addition, the directors of the Group participate
in the director training scheme provided by
HKEX to obtain practical advice and tips, gain
new insights through reviewing old materials and
enhance their knowledge and skills to improve the
anti-corruption management of the Group. With a
top-down approach, the Group has established an
anti-corruption culture and consciousness.

As a result of the above supervisory and preventive
measures, no corruption-related lawsuits were filed
against the Company or individual employees, nor
were any acts of corruption discovered during the
reporting period.
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SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION

With the mission of giving back to society and the
philosophy of taking the resources pooled from the
people and using them for the benefit of the people, the
Group fully understands that our responsibility not only
lies in our direct contribution to society and the economy,
but also includes the influence and effect of our business
operation and charity projects on the whole society.
The Group actively contacts community groups with
similar corporate responsibility concepts as the Group
to understand the needs of the community. In order to
undertake its duty as a corporate citizen and serve the
community, the Group donated to various charitable
institutions and community groups in the past year. In the
future, we will continue to look for collaboration with more
non-profit organisations of different types in the hope of
bringing benefits to more people.
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I%

F HERERRE

AWARD AND ACHIEVEMENT 6

Name of award and achievement

®ERHEE

ISO 14001 Environmental Management System Certification
ISO 140013R3FE B BE RRH

ISO 50001 Energy Management System Certification
ISO 50001 88 JRE I §8 R 5R 7

ISO 45001 Occupational Health and Safety Management System
Certification

ISO 45001 B @R M2 2 EIRHE RRE

ISO 9001 Quality Management System Certification

ISO 9001 mE B IR 8 RXRE
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7 HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE ENVIRONMENTAL, 7. EBBERRE - HEBERERKRE

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE 55| & 5|
INDEX
A Environmental3® £ SectionZ ff
Aspect A.1 Emissions Pollution Control
FHE AA 23587 T RAE I
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Pollution Control
BE AL PEp i iR R AR B PR - VEE St
KPI'A.1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse Pollution Control
gas emissions (in tonnes) and where appropriate intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume per facility).
EE A2 BHiE (SE) ket REE (BE2) RAEREEME (AMEETE) 5%
R(n@aR) BRE (A BES SN  BERETE) °
KPI'A.1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where No record as project
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per hazardous waste is
facility). disposed of by the
general contractors
512 A3 FEABEEEEYRSE UNE) R (WER)BE (MAEE IRAEFEEVHHE
BEN - 8EXRMEIHE) - HFGEE IR - R A
FOEE
KPI'A.1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where No record as project
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per non-hazardous waste
facility). is disposed of by the
general contractors
EIE A4 EAEEEZEYAE (ANTE) X (WER)BE (MAEGE IREETEEVHIHE
BEf - BERBE) - HFIEE IR - R A
Eikz
KPI'A.1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to Pollution Control
achieve them.
EIE A5 MRV M EEERREIE LB EMEMN LR - EE Sedil
KPI'A.1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are  Pollution Control
handled and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.
EIE A6 MR REAEERESEEDMN L REAMEIZARERR SR E
RRETELB BRI -
02FFH | CHNREEEERAT 63
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A Environmental3® 1% SectionEZ
Aspect A.2 Use of Resources Use of Resources
FHEA2 ERERA ERBIR
KPI'A.2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Use of Resources
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
EIE A2 REAESHEERER HHEEER(WE - fza) B2 (A ZRER
TERTERE) REE (MNGESEN §HERETE) o
KPI'A.2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of No record as project
production volume, per facility). water is provided by the
general contractors
IR A22 BEKERZEE(WMNGESEN  BHERBTHE) - TRAKEREAER
B B2 Btk
KPI' A.2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps Use of Resources
taken to achieve them.
B2 A2.3 HMPEI VM REA YR BRI AEINELARAERY ZRAER
KPI'A.2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water Use of Resources
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.
EIE A2.4 HHSKEGE AR LR B A EE - MRAFTVHAKEEE ZRER
BERREINGEE B EMERERN LR -
KPI'A.2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in Use of Resources
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.
EIZ A2.5 B mAAEEMHNRE (UEAE) R(MER)BEEE ZRER
G & o
Aspect A.3 The Environment and Natural Resources Green Operation
7 HE A3 RERRAARER FEEE
KPI' A.3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the There were no
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to accidents with a
manage them. significant impact on
the environment and
natural resources during
the period
512 A3 HAEBTHHRERRAERNEAZEZREERNEERES HARBHRERRA
BT BN - BRONBEATZEN TN
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A Environmental& & SectionEZ i
Aspect A.4 Climate Change Addressing Climate
Change
B H A4 KRIEEL ST RIRE L
KPI'A.4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which Addressing Climate
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and Change
the actions taken to manage them.
E1R A4 BRI EHBRTAEERENEARRGHEBEE SRR B L
NEHITE -
B Socialit & SectionE
Aspect B.1 Employment Equal Employment
FHE B.1 =& FERR
KPI B.1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, Equal Employment
full- or part- time), age group and geographical region.
1% B.1.1 IR ERER (MEREFRE)  FRAMNMERE SN FEHEER
EEHEE -
KPI B.1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Equal Employment
geographical region.
EEB.1.2 RIR - FiER MEE DHEE MK X - FEER
Aspect B.2 Health and Safety Occupational Health
and Safety
»H B.2 BREHEZ2 BEREREZS
KPI B.2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of  There were no work-
the past three years including the reporting year. related fatalities for
the past three years
including the reporting
period
512 B.2.1 BE=ZF (BRERFE)FFEAITHRNHABRLE - BREREANNBE=
FRERITHEMH
KPI B.2.2 Lost days due to work injury. There were 150 days
lost due to work-related
injuries during the
reporting period
E1Z B.2.2 EIEEAIERE - BREHANHEEFIS0BERAT
BEATIERE
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B Socialtt & SectionE
KPI B.2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Occupational Health
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored. and Safety
1% B.2.3 RMILPTRANBRERRLT 25 ARBEATRESRST BEREREZE
% o
Aspect B.3 Development and Training Talent Development
5 B.3 BRRE AT # R
KPI B.3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Talent Development
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).
518 B.3.1 BUEFIREERN (MERERRE HREBRE)ES>NTI  ATEE
EEBEDL -
KPI B.3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by Talent Development
gender and employee category.
1518 B.3.2 BRURIREEEMNED  BREETKIINN TR - AT # R
Aspect B.4 Labour Standards Protection of Rights and
Interests
7 H B.4 BT AR R RE
KPI B.4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to Protection of Rights and
avoid child and forced labour. Interests
1% B.4.1 it BEESIN R AR R E T REH ST - R IRFE
KPI B.4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when There was no case
discovered. of violation during the
period
5% B.4.2 A IR E RIS NS ER A BGPTSR 8 o HARBERER
Aspect B.5 Supply Chain Management Supply Chain
Management
5 B.5 HEEEE HEHE R
KPI B.5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain
Management
1512 B.5A1 BB S HEEEHE - HAEEE
KPI B.5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, Supply Chain
number of suppliers where the practices are being Management
implemented and how they are implemented and monitored.
$51Z B.5.2 MR ERAREAHEEENED  mERTERENMHERSE  HEREEE

B ARBERTRERTE -
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R HERERHRS

B Socialtt & SectionZ
KPI B.5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental Supply Chain
and social risks along the supply chain and how they are Management
implemented and monitored.
#51% B.5.3 H BB HERGERGNREIEERARNED - ARk HERER
MHEARITRERAE -
KPI B.5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Supply Chain
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers Management
and how they are implemented and monitored.
151Z B.5.4 MM EREHERREEZARRERLIRBOED - ARE HEEEE
BT RERGE -
Aspect B.6 Product Responsibility Quality Construction
7 H B.6 EmEE BERL
KPI B.6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to No products were
recalls for safety and health reasons. recalled for safety and
health reasons during
the period
1518 B.6.1 CEXCEXERBETRAZEREEAMAQDKNES HBARFERELZEHR
Lk ° fi FR T2 e M 78 B
KPI B.6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received There were no
and how they are dealt with. complaints during the
period, and no products
were recalled for quality
issues
51% B.6.2 EEENRERERGORFBBENARESE L - HARBORKS - K
ERMEREmAR K
EmIERN
KPI B.6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting Quality Construction
intellectual property rights.
¥E1E B.6.3 B RIREANBEREANEA - BEmT
KPI B.6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Quality Construction
procedures.
]E1F B.6.4 G EREBEREMBKET - BEmLT
KPI B.6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies Quality Construction
and how they are implemented and monitored.
1512 B.6.5 B EEERMRERALBEE  AREERTRERFE . EEET
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B Socialtt & SectionEZ

Aspect B.7 Anti- corruption Corporate Governance

FHE B.7 REF BEeIE

KPI B.7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices  There were no
brought against the issuer or its employees during the corruption lawsuits
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases. during the period

FE1E B.7.1 REBRANEETAXEEEREVEEENETHARY HARBETHARN
BB REFAER -

KPI B.7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Corporate Governance
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

EIE B.7.2 A EEERRREN  UREARTRERFE - hERE

KPI B.7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors Corporate Governance
and staff.

1% B.7.3 HAmEEREIRENRESEI - hEIBIE

Aspect B.8 Community Investment Social contribution

7 H B.8 HERE BlgE tf [

KPI B.8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental Social contribution
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).

$51Z B.8.1 EIERSBE(NHE REFH SIFK F XXt O] 8 4t @
BE) -

KPI B.8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.  Social contribution

512 B.8.2 EEISBMBHAER(NEENERE) - o
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance, and strives to maintain transparent
and responsible management practices that will create long
term value for the interests of shareholders. The Board will
continuously review and improve the Group’s corporate
governance practices, and maintaining a high standard of
business ethics across the organisation.

The Company had complied with all the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) under
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31
March 2022.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry with all directors, the directors confirmed that
they had complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2022.

As required under the CG Code, the Board has established
guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code for relevant
employees in respect of their dealings in the securities of the
Company.

ERERRE

EEERER

EEERIAERRKTINEEELR X8
NEFEARAEENERER - M5
BRRNGEERREE EFSHTER
ARBEAKRENEEERAER  LEE
BRI K ENEEEE-

RRABRE 22022938318 ILFE—H
BFRBBMER AR DT ([EEZAT])
FHEWAR (T ETRAND M E14F7E
W EERTRI([REERTA) WA
SF Bl &S -

ESETHEERRS

NN E BB AN AR BB SR 10FT E (L
MBITAEZETESFRXZHELESFAD
([ZESFR]) c &M EEFIEHARS
o EEWMREENEE20229F3A31H
IFE—BETERETFMESMNETE L
Al o

RIEEXEATAMRE EFSENARH
BEESARRAEHFFESERS - 53

NEEZ T RETRRER -

2022FFH | ZHNEFEEEERAA

69



70

Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

THE BOARD

The primary role of the Board is to protect and enhance
long term shareholders’ value. The Board oversees the
management, business, strategies and financial performance
of the Group. It also ensures that good corporate governance
policies and practices are implemented within the Group. In
the course of discharging its duties, the Board acts in good
faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The management is
responsible for execution of the strategies in the Group’s daily
operations and implementation of the risk management and
internal control systems.

The Board currently comprises 7 members whose biographies
and family relations are set out in the “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 80 to 83 in this annual
report. The posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are separately held by Mr. Lau Chun Ming and
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, respectively, to maintain an segregation
of duties between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to
manage the Group’s business and oversee the management.
The directors bring a good balance of skills and experience to
the Company. The independent non-executive directors serve
the relevant function of bringing independent judgment on the
development, performance and risk management of the Group.
The directors have been made fully aware of their collective
and individual responsibilities to shareholders.

The executive directors have entered into service contracts
with the Company and each of the independent non-executive
directors has been appointed on specific term of three years.
Notwithstanding the specific term of appointments, the articles
of association of the Company provides that every director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years. At each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors for the time will retire from office by
rotation and being eligible for re-election by the shareholders.
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Board meetings

The Board held four meetings during the year ended 31
March 2022, at approximately quarterly intervals. All directors
attended these meetings, at which business development,
investment strategies, financial performance and potential risks
relating to the daily operations of the Group, were discussed.

Directors’ induction and development

In the year ended 31 March 2022, all directors complied
with the provision of the CG Code in relation to continuous
professional development and submitted their training records
to the Company. In doing so, the directors have undertaken
various forms of activities that have included attending a
presentations given by external professional advisors, and
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business,
directors’ duties and responsibilities.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees to
oversee specific aspects of the Company’s affairs and help
it in the execution of its responsibilities. These committees
each have specific written terms of reference which clearly
outline the committees’ authority and duties, and which
require the committees to report back on their decisions or
recommendations to the Board.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee is responsible for the engagement of
external auditor, review of the Group’s financial information and
oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system, internal
control procedures and risk management system. It is made up
of three independent non-executive directors including Mr. Ip
Tin Chee, Arnold (chairman), Professor Wong Sue Cheun,
Roderick and Mr. Chu Tak Sum.

The audit committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 March 2022, which was attended by all of its members,
to review, among other matters, the consolidated financial
statements, internal control review report and continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2021, and have a private meeting with external auditor
without the presence of the management; and the unaudited
interim financial information of the Group for the six months
ended 30 September 2021.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee held one meeting during the year
which was attended by all of its members. It is responsible for
annually reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board (including its mix of skills, knowledge and experience),
making recommendations on proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors. It also oversees
the implementation of the Company’s policy on diversity of
directors. It is made up of four members including Professor
Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick (chairman), Mr. Chu Tak Sum,
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, being independent non-executive
directors, and Mr. Lau Chun Ming, an executive director.
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The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
The Company has a diversity policy of Board members. Under
this policy, the diversity of the Board is considered in terms
of factors such as gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments are
based on merit, and candidates are considered against various
objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business operations and environment as
well as the industry in which the Company operates. The
nomination committee will continuously monitor and review
the implementation of this policy and the progress towards
achieving the measurable objectives.

The Board currently comprises 6 male and 1 female directors
with different age, educational background, skills and
experience. The nomination committee considers that our
directors have extensive experience in different fields and
professions that are relevant to the Company’s business, which
enable them to provide valuable and relevant insights to the
Board.

The nomination committee is responsible for the development
and implementation of the nomination policy which aims at
setting out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of directors of the Company; ensuring that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company; and ensuring the
Board continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship,
the following criteria should be considered: character and
integrity; qualifications; measurable objectives in achieving
Board diversity; independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules; potential contributions the candidate can bring to the
Board; time commitment; and such other perspectives that are
appropriate to the Company’s business and succession plan.
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The nomination committee will conduct regular review on
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
policy and where appropriate, make recommendations
on changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy and business needs. Upon receipt of the
proposal of appointment of new director and the biographical
information of the candidate, the nomination committee should
evaluate such candidate based on the objective criteria it has
set forth to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship. For directors standing for re-election, the
nomination committee will review the contribution of the retiring
director and the level of participation and performance on the
Board.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the year
which was attended by all of its members. It is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all the directors
and senior management of the Group and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy for approval by the Board. It is made
up of four members including Mr. Chu Tak Sum (chairman),
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick, Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold,
being independent non-executive directors, and Mr. Lau Chun
Ming, an executive director.

In determining the remuneration of the Directors and the senior
management, the Remuneration Committee would consider
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and the senior
management, performance and contributions of the Directors
and the senior management and the change in market
conditions. Details of the remuneration paid to the directors
and the other five highest paid employees are set out in notes
29(a) and 7(c), respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard
shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets, and
reviewing their effectiveness of annually through the audit
committee. The audit committee reports to the Board on any
material issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

The Group has maintained an operation manual, which
provides a comprehensive internal control guidance and
procedures on the Group’s operational cycles relating to
revenue, purchase and expenditure, inventory and human
resources etc., to ensure proper accounting records are
kept so that reliable financial reporting can be provided,
effectiveness and efficiency of operation can be achieved,
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
safeguarding of assets can be maintained. These procedures,
together with the Company’s compliance manual, have also
shaped the control environment at which and how the Group
operates in, including the budgeting controls, investment
decision making, risk assessment and practices of corporate
governance. These systems are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance and protection against
errors, losses and fraud.

The Company does not establish a standalone internal audit
department, however, the Board has put in place adequate
measures to perform the internal audit function at different
aspects of the Group which are discussed below.

The Company has appointed an internal control adviser to
conduct annual review on the risk management and internal
control system of the Group for the year and reported their
findings and recommendations to the audit committee and the
Board. It is designed to review the effectiveness of the Group’s
material internal controls so as to provide assurance that key
internal control measures are carried out appropriately and
are functioning as intended. During the year, risk assessment
and management, compliance and litigation, cash and treasury
cycle, human resources cycle, information technology cycle
and investment cycle were reviewed and found that adequate
controls are in place.
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For the foundation works business, the Group has to comply
respective requirements and pass the regular reviews in order
to retain its listing in the Development Bureau Specialist List
(Group 1l) in large diameter bored pile (with bell-out), the
Housing Authority List of Piling Contractors (large diameter
bored piling category) Probation and the Buildings Department
Registered Specialist Contractor — Foundation Category.
The Group has also implemented a management system in
accordance with the requirements under ISO 9001, ISO 14001,
ISO 45001 and ISO 50001 to ensure that the Group’s services
meet the requisite health and safety, quality and environmental
requirements. During the year, the Group passed the audits
conducted by external consultants and renewed these
certificates. Upon completion of pile construction, the Group is
required to engage external professionals to conduct various
applicable tests on all piles based on the relevant contractual
requirements and ensure full compliance with customer
requirements. Subject to these piling records available to the
customers for their testing and inspection, the authorised
persons employed by the customers certify the value of the
works completed in the payment certificates issued to the
Group. Therefore, stringent on-going controls and monitoring
systems have already been embedded in the daily operations
of the foundation works business.

The executive directors held monthly meetings with senior
management to review and monitor the business and financial
performance against the targets, the progress of certification
and contract receipts from the customers, the efficiency
in the use of the Group’s resources in comparison to the
budgets, and the operational matters to ensure the Group has
complied with the regulations that have material impact to the
Group’s business. The aim is to enhance the communication
and accountability of the directors and management so that
significant strategic, financial, operational and compliance
risks or potential deviations are timely identified and dealt
with in a proper manner, while significant issues are reported
back to the Board for their attention. The Company also
compiles monthly reports to the Board (including independent
non-executive directors) to update the latest financial
performance, position and prospects of the Group.
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The Company also has a policy for disclosure of inside
information. While any potential inside information will be
escalated to the executive meetings or the Board via the
established reporting channels, the directors will assess and
determine if inside information of the Company exists where
timely disclosure is required to be made by an announcement
published on the Stock Exchange website. On the other hand,
in order to enhance the communication with the market, the
Company will publish voluntary announcements to update
the public on the latest development of the Group’s business
to enhance the transparency of the Company, whenever
practicable.

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system at its Board meeting
on 23 June 2022, including its financial, operational and
compliance controls, and its risk management functions.
The Board’s review included a consideration of the internal
control evaluations conducted by the executive management,
the findings of the external auditors during the annual audit
and the internal control review reported by an internal control
adviser engaged by the Company. There was no material
fraud or errors came to the attention of the Board from all
these sources. Therefore, the Board was satisfied that the
risk management and internal control systems were in place
and implemented effectively during the year without significant
weakness identified.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Total auditors’ remuneration for year ended 31 March 2022
in relation to statutory audit work of the Group amounted
to HK$1.6 million (2021: HK$1.6 million), of which a sum
of HK$1.3 million (2021: HK$1.3 million) is paid or payable
to PricewaterhouseCoopers, independent auditor of the
Company, in respect of the audit services related to the audit
for the year ended 31 March 2022. No fees were paid for
non-audit services to the independent auditor during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of financial statements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view, it is
fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently. The reporting responsibilities of
the Company’s external auditor on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 94 to 107 of this annual report. The
directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company’s company secretary Mr. Chan Sun Kwong
coordinates the supply of information to the directors and is
the primary contact person within the Company for all matters
relating to the duties and responsibilities of the company
secretary. All directors have access to the company secretary
to ensure that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. During the year, he had taken no
less than 15 hours relevant professional training as required
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Please refer to his
biographical details which are set out on page 83 of this annual
report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

We endeavour to ensure that shareholders are treated fairly
and are able to exercise their shareholders’ rights effectively.
Shareholders are entitled by the articles of association of
the Company and are also encouraged to participate in the
Company’s general meetings or appoint proxies to attend
and vote. Shareholder(s) holding not less than 10% of the
Company’s paid-up capital may request the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting and put forward proposals.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary for the such purpose and specify the
transaction of any business to propose in such meeting.
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If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as
director in a general meeting, the particulars of the candidate
must be stated in a nomination notice signed and deposited
together with a notice of willingness signed by the candidate to
the company secretary at the Company’s headquarters or at
the Registration Office (Tricor Investor Services Ltd., Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong) of the
Company. The notice should be given at least seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

There was no amendment made to the constitutional
documents of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2022.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

We are committed to maintaining effective and timely
dissemination of the Group’s information to its shareholders
and the market. We have established a shareholders’
communication policy which emphasises the importance of
regular communication to the shareholders and the market to
ensure they have the available information reasonably required
to make informed assessments of the Group’s strategy,
operations and financial performance. The annual shareholders’
meetings and other shareholders’ meetings of the Company
are the primary forum for communication by the Company with
its shareholders and for shareholder participation. In addition,
the Company’s website (www.samwoo-group.com) contains
extensive company information which is easily accessible.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio. The Board considers a number of factors in
declaration and payment of dividends, including the financial
condition, results of operation and level of cash; statutory
and regulatory restrictions; future prospects and any other
factors that the Board may consider relevant. The Board
has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company to the extent that the Company
shall maintain adequate cash reserve for meeting its working
capital requirements and future growth.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Chun Ming, aged 79, is an executive director, the
Chairman and founder of the Group. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. Lau is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and business development
of the Group, overseeing the tendering and quotation
process, research and development and formulation of overall
corporate policies of the Group. Mr. Lau has been involved
in the foundation works business since 1990. He is a brother
of Mr. Lau Chun Kwok and Mr. Lau Chun Ka, the spouse of
Ms. Leung Lai So and the father of Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, aged 70, is the chief executive officer
and an executive director. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries within the Group. He joined the Group in the
1970s. He is responsible for the overall management of
foundation works and ancillary services projects of the Group.
He has been involved in the foundation works business since
1990. He is the brother of Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau
Chun Ka, brother-in-law of Ms. Leung Lai So and uncle of
Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Mr. Lau Chun Ka, aged 68, is an executive director. He
is also a director of various subsidiaries within the Group.
He joined the Group in the 1970s. He is responsible for the
overall management of maintenance and repair of machinery
and equipment of the Group. He has been involved in the
foundation works business since 1990. He is the brother of
Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, brother-in-law of
Ms. Leung Lai So and uncle of Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Ms. Leung Lai So, aged 75, is an executive director. She
is also a director of various subsidiaries within the Group.
She joined the Group in the 1970s. She is responsible for
the administrative and human resources management of
the Group. She obtained a diploma in smaller company
management from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in
July 1997. She is the spouse of Mr. Lau Chun Ming, mother of
Ms. Lau Pui Shan and sister-in-law of Mr. Lau Chun Kwok and
Mr. Lau Chun Ka.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick, aged 77, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in September 2014. Professor Wong holds a
bachelor's degree of arts from San Diego State College in
the United States of America, and a doctoral’s degree in
mathematics from the University of Alberta in Canada. He is
a Fellow of the Royal Society of Canada, and Chevalier dans
I’Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur of France, and elected
as a member of the European Academy of Sciences. Professor
Wong is currently an independent non-executive director of
BExcellent Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1775) and
G&M Holdings Limited (stock code: 6038), which shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chu Tak Sum, aged 74, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Chu is a registered architect in Hong
Kong under the provisions of the Architects Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 408 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and has been
engaged as an architect for about 44 years. Mr. Chu obtained
a bachelor’s degree of arts in architecture studies from The
University of Hong Kong in 1971. He is also a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects and holds Class
1 Registered Architect qualification of the PRC. Mr. Chu is
currently the managing director of T.S. Chu Architects Limited.
He had been an independent non-executive director of Henry
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 859) until February 2018.

Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Ip obtained a Master of Arts degree
from Trinity College, Cambridge University. Mr. Ip is chairman
of Altus Holdings Limited (stock code: 8149), which group
companies focus on providing corporate finance services
to listed and unlisted companies in Hong Kong, as well as
property investments.
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Mr. Ip is an independent non-executive director of Pioneer
Global Group Limited (stock code: 224), Pak Fah Yeow
International Limited (stock code: 239), and Icicle Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8429), each of which is a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ip worked for
Standard Chartered Asia Limited and was a director of Yuanta
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited thereafter until January 2001,
specializing in a range of corporate finance and advisory
activities for companies based in Hong Kong and China. From
1984 to 1988, he worked at Arthur Andersen & Co in London
specializing in taxation and qualified as a Chartered Accountant
in 1988.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wu Kwai Keung, Peter, aged 67, is the Deputy General
Manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
business development, tendering and overall management
of the foundation works and ancillary services projects of the
Group. He obtained a master degree in arbitration & dispute
resolution from City University of Hong Kong in 2003. He has
more than 35 years of experience in the construction industry
both locally and abroad. He is a member of the Institution of
Civil Engineers and Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.

Mr. Ho Ting Leung, Robin, aged 66, is the Deputy General
Manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
managing, supervising and actuating the current projects of
the Group. He has over 35 years of experience, working in
the construction industry, since graduated in 1981 from Civil
Engineering Department of Hong Kong Polytechnic.
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Mr. Kwok Kan Kuen, Lawrence, aged 58, is a project
manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
supervision of the related foundation projects of the Group.
Prior to joining the Group in July 2012, he has over 20 years of
experience in the engineering field. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in civil engineering from the Chu Hai College in 1987
and a master’s degree of science in international construction
management and engineering from the University of Leeds
in the United Kingdom in 1994. He is currently a registered
professional engineer under the Engineer Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 409 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and a
member of each of the Institution of Civil Engineers of the
United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
respectively.

Ms. Lau Pui Shan, aged 48, is the chief financial officer of the
Group and a director of certain subsidiaries within the Group.
She joined the Group in September 1999. She is responsible
for financial accounting, treasury and banking matters,
investors relation and information technology system of the
Group. She obtained a bachelor’'s degree of commerce in
accounting and finance and a master’'s degree of commerce in
international business from the University of New South Wales
in Australia. She is a fellow certified practicing accountant of
CPA Australia and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She is the daughter of Mr. Lau
Chun Ming and Ms. Leung Lai So.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, aged 55, is the company secretary
of the Company. He obtained a diploma of business
administration from the Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now
known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University) in 1990. He is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute, the Chartered Governance Institute in the United
Kingdom, the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is an accredited mediator of The
Hong Kong Mediation Centre. He has over 30 years company
secretarial experience.
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The directors of the Company submit their report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the provision of foundation
works and ancillary services. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements. The segment information of
the operations of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022
is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and principal risks of the Group for
the year are included in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis in this annual report.

The environmental policies and relationships with key
stakeholders are included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis in this annual report. Further details of the above are
included in the Environment, Social and Governance Report in
this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

on page 108 of this annual report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the published results and of the assets and

liabilities of the Group for the last five years is set out on page
212 of this annual report.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to about HK$8,000.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2022,
calculated under the Companies Act, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to HK$200 million (2021: HK$200 million).

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

No shares were issued in the years ended 31 March 2022
and 2021. Details of share capital are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 March 2022.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant
to a shareholders’ written resolution of the Company passed
on 15 September 2014. No options have been granted,
exercised or cancelled under the Scheme since its adoption up
to the date of this annual report.
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The purpose of the Scheme is to attract and retain personnels
to remain with the Group and to motivate them to optimise
their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group by
providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity interests
in the Company. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Scheme to the directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors), the directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other
persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.

Total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to the Scheme and any other share options schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
on the Company’s listing date, i.e. 16 October 2014, being
40,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each on the listing date
(or equivalent to 160,000,000 shares of HK$0.0025 each
subsequent to share subdivision effective on 23 December
2015) (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). The Company may
renew the Scheme Mandate Limit with shareholders’ approval
provided that each such renewal must not exceed 10% of
the shares in the Company in issue as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of shares underlying all outstanding
options which have been granted and have yet to be exercised
pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the
manner as set out in the Scheme, the maximum number
of shares underlying the options granted to each eligible
participant (including both exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1.0% of the shares in issue for the time being.

The period during which an option may be exercised by
a grantee (the “Option Period”) shall be the period to be
determined and notified by the Board to the grantee at the time
of making an offer, which shall not expire later than 10 years
from the offer date.
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Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules, an
option may be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at any
time during the Option Period in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme and the terms on which the option was granted.

The grantee shall pay HK$1.00 upon acceptance of an offer of
an option.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the offer date, which must be a trading day;
(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the offer date; or (c) the nominal value
of the shares on the offer date of the relevant option.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after
the date of adoption.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Lau Chun Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lau Chun Ka

Ms. Leung Lai So

Independent non-executive directors

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick
Mr. Chu Tak Sum
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold

In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Lau Chun Ming, Mr. Lau Chun Ka and
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold will retire and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered all of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
any member of the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE GROUP’S
BUSINESS

Save for disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company’s
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent companies was a
party and in which a director or controlling shareholders of the
Company and the directors’ connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management
are set out on pages 80 to 83.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of
directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO, or as notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, are as follows:

(@) Directors’ interest in the Company:

Number of ordinary shares
of HK$0.0025 each held (long position)
FisEREE.0025E THEEREE (H8)

Name of director

Esps

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
BREA LS

1,200,000,000

Ms. Leung Lai So 1,200,000,000

REHLL

(b) Directors’ interest in associated corporations of the
Company:

Name of associated

Name of director  corporation Number of shares
Esps HEZEER RHHE

Mr. Lau Chun Ming  Actiease Assets Limited 61 shares
BREA L 61

Mr. Lau Chun Ming  Silver Bright Holdings Limited 10,000 shares
IRALE 10,0008
Mr. Lau Chun Ming ~ SWAA Holdings Limited 1 share
BRA L 1

Ms. Leung Lai So Actiease Assets Limited 61 shares
2EEHLL 61

Ms. Leung Lai So Silver Bright Holdings Limited 10,000 shares
REHLL 10,000

Directors' Report

EEEHRE

@i E

R2022F3A318 » EERAXA NEE
BEAB (TR REBEFRBERE ([BHF K
HRE 1) SEXVER) B AR 1D~ AERIRR G5 K
BEHFPHRAREEF R EIRG 35215
BTEFEENECMACHOEIRAR
SARE E AR R SR 10FT S I A
ERETESFRHNZESTRAMNG AR
AR RS AR

(a) ESZEHNAAFMEZR:
Percentage of
shareholding Capacity

BREAL st

71.43% Founder of a discretionary trust
2REENEIHA
71.43% Beneficiary of a

discretionary trust
PRETNZEA

() EERARDFABEE M -

Percentage of
shareholding Capacity
BEREDK g%

100% Founder of a discretionary trust
RREFMEIHA

100% Founder of a discretionary trust
RREEEMERA

100% Founder of a discretionary trust
PREFEMEIMA

100% Beneficiary of a
discretionary trust
PREANIHEA

100% Beneficiary of a

discretionary trust
PREANIEA
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So far as the directors are aware, as at 31 March 2022, the
interest and short positions of the persons, other than a director
or chief executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

(c)  Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions in
the Company:

Number of ordinary shares of

Name of shareholder HK$0.0025 each held
Fi¥8 R E{E0.002558 T Y

BRREHE EBEREA

Actiease Assets Limited Long position 1,200,000,000

#F £1,200,000,000%
Silver Bright Holdings Limited Long position 1,200,000,000
#F & 1,200,000,0008%

SW AA Holdings Limited Long position 1,200,000,000
#¥%£1,200,000,000/%

Notes:

1. 1,200,000,000 shares were held by Actiease Assets
Limited, a company wholly owned by Silver Bright Holdings
Limited which is indirectly owned by a discretionary trust of
which Ms. Leung Lai So is the beneficiary.

2. Silver Bright Holdings Limited is 100% held by SW AA
Holdings Limited as trustee of a discretionary trust set up
by Mr. Lau Chun Ming.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The controlling shareholders have confirmed to the Company
of their compliance with the non-competition undertakings
provided to the Company under a deed of non-competition
dated 15 September 2014.

In addition, the Company requested and obtained the
information of the companies owned by the controlling
shareholders of the Company. The independent non-executive
directors, based on their review of the confirmation, noted that
no engagement in competing business had been reported by
the controlling shareholder of the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2022; and there was no particular situation
rendering the full compliance of the undertakings being
questionable.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 96% (2021: 79%) of
the Group’s total turnover. The largest customer accounted for
approximately 43% (2021: 23%) of the Group’s total turnover.

During the year, the Group’s five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 56% (2021: 62%) of
the Group’s total purchases. The largest supplier accounted
for approximately 16% (2021: 19%) of the Group’s total
purchases.

To the best of the knowledge of the directors, none of the
directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year set out in note 26 to the financial
statements included transactions that constitute connected/
continuing connected transactions for which the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules have been complied with.

MARKET CAPITALISATION

As at 31 March 2022, the market capitalisation of the listed
securities of the Company was approximately HK$141 million
based on the total number of 1,680,000,000 issued shares of
the Company and the closing price of HK$0.084 per share.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 March 2022 and as at the date of
this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Group
had complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
places where we operate in all material respects.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Articles provides that every director is entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto provided that such indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to the director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability

insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate
cover for the directors.
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EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On 20 June 2022, the Company signed a loan agreement with
Sam Woo Ship Building Limited, a related company beneficially
wholly owned by the executive directors of the Company, to
obtain a loan amounted to HK$100,000,000 for the Group’s
working capital purpose. The loan is unsecured, repayable on
or before 30 June 2024 and bearing interest at 1-month Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus 1.85% per annum. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 20 June
2022 for details. Save as information disclosed herewith, there
is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company
or by the Group after 31 March 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2022 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

L

pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION
GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Sam Woo
Construction Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 108 to

211, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2022;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince's Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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1B M A A

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters identified in our audit are
summarised as follows:

° Accounting for construction contracts

° Estimated useful lives and residual values of
plant and equipment

Key Audit Matter
BAEENSE

Accounting for construction contracts

Refer to note 2.17 in the summary of significant
accounting policies, note 4(a) in the critical
accounting estimates and judgements and
note 5 and note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

F2HERGTBRRPEZME2.17 - GREMBRE
Bt 54 (a) B E & 5t {4 51 KA DA K2 B SE5 AP 7E7 -

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group
recognised revenue amounted to HK$362,514,000
from construction works, with the related
construction contracts costs amounted to
HK$380,035,000.
BHZE2022F63A31RLEFEE X BEEERER
362,514,000 TR ATIR B R T - MAERAE
25 4K /380,035,000 T °

HMREITEE(E)

BAERGT PR ARG SEMLNT

s HESHMNERREE

s HMRERBHEHAUERAFHLRRERE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNEA NN EEBRENSE

=1/

BESHNETTER

Our procedures in relation to management’s
accounting for measuring the progress towards
satisfaction of the performance obligation, revenue,
cost and profit recognition of construction contracts
included:

REREHAERTRABZHNEE EELONK
A AR aEMERN G EE - AFERROEFE
tCE

- We assessed and tested the key controls
over the project costs budgetary process
and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

= BAEAERAFABEEXNAREBIETNEIER
% WERZE R T RERE REMER R
A= (el F8E ZHRUEEERR
SHFFRBURME ) KPR A ERBERRAAEF
[E B o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Revenue on construction contracts is recognised
over the period of individual contract by measuring
the progress towards complete satisfaction of
individual performance obligation. Generally, the
Group recognises revenue using either input
method or output method, with the selection
of method dependent upon which method best
depicts the way the Group satisfies its performance
obligation over time. For the year ended 31 March
2022, the Group recognised revenue using output
method. The decision as to which method to use
is made for each contract, after considering the
nature of the goods or services that the Group
promised to transfer to the customer.

BESHNNOBABBFAEEN T RBITENBHERS
BEEEERSOPATUARER - —RME - BE
BHRARAES I E AR - FEANERBUAR
WBiE S R & EMiE G EREBERERITBRNRG
WA - BE2022F3A31ALFE - EBEEEKRA
B EERBA - BESNTHRAMNERERLE
B BEEEAGREBERATFNERIBBHLERR

E °

Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

MREITEE(E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESNAEERRETSE

- We selected, on a sample basis, contracts
to examine management’s budget of the
cost component, such as costs of materials,
subcontracting fees and labour costs, etc. We
compared the budgeted cost components to
supporting documents including but not limited
to price quotation and rate of labour costs.

- BPMERELSAONEREEBEHMEAER - 5
BERRBEBERREXREKRBOTRE o H
RS AR D BB EMELE - &
PEFETRNHREEREBHHRER -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

1B M A A

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Under input method, revenue on construction
contracts is recognised with reference to actual
costs incurred by the Group up to the end of the
reporting period as a percentage of total estimated
costs for each contract. Under output method,
revenue recognition is based on the stage of
completion of contract activity by reference to work
performed at balance sheet date as a percentage
of the total contract value.

BEBERAE BEEANKARZEZEEZHREHN
RN BEEEERELENKNEEE MR AER
WBEDLEMER - RiFE LA - WABRBEENK
SELEGAMETIIEGASGHNEER S LIRES
AEBH T LREER ©

Recognition of revenue, cost and profit on
contracts requires significant judgement and
estimates in (a) measuring the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation; (b) estimating total budgeted costs
and profit margin for each projects; and (c)
estimating the expected recovery of costs arising
from variation of work scope during the contracts
periods. We focused on this area as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the revenue and
the related costs to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and the significance of the
judgement and estimates involved.

BHHBRA ~ KA R s M EREELH (@ EER T
PRITBAEBHER  OEABEONEERR
MERFEE : Re)fhsta BRI ESKRESE
MELMKRGELT DY - ARWARBEXASE &
SEGEMBRRONEZWLIARE 5 K H &
MENWEEN  BARESERETFENZ IR
It E5 0 o
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HMREITEE(E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESNAEERRETSE

We inspected material construction contracts
of the Group and agreed contract sum and
variations, if any, to management’s records.
BMERR BEEENERBESAVIKRERRE
THREANERREE () -

We tested, on sample basis, actual costs
incurred to supporting documents including, but
no limited to, suppliers’ invoices and labour cost
allocation schedules.

BHAERBEZEXMH (BEETRNHEERE
EMBETIRADRR) HESHKENERBKAET
ORI -

We assessed the competence and
independence of external quantity surveyors
involve in selected contracts.
BMTE2EMEL 26 N INETRAI SR 2
BE ) RS o

We compared the actual costs incurred against
the latest budgeted costs to understand the
status of the project completion and profit
margin, identified whether there are any cost
overruns, potential onerous contact or variation
of work scope. Where applicable, we checked
these changes from the original work scope to
supporting documents.

B ESEENERK RN ERANARTEE LT
B UTHREETIRARNEE BEESRRF
EEMKRAES BEBRE AR TESRENE
% EEANER RIS RRE R TEDE
ZEEEE o

We inspected the correspondence with
customers and sub-contractors, on a sample
basis, for corroboration of management
explanations.
BMEMmERREEETP kY BR 2 ErEA - A
EEEREERGA -



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Independent Auditor’s Report

18 M A AR

MREITEE(E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESNAEERRETSE

For projects where revenue was recognised using
output method, we also performed the following
procedures:

HR UG HDERBBANEEMS - HAITFEHER T
B

- We checked the completion status specified in
quantity surveyors’ certificates and compared
the status/amount with revenue recognised.

- BMERETHASMEBRASHETAN T IR
WiHsEBARR SREEDBBBAIELE -

- We discussed with the project managers about
the status of the projects and latest budget
costs, to identify any variations of contracts,
claims and potential onerous contracts, and
to obtain explanations from management for
fluctuations in margins and changes in budget
as well as the expected recovery of variations.

= B2 HEIE R KB RER MR KRR
B UBFEEAHNEE BRRLEEERS
A WEAEERRE)  REZHREHESKE
BHEENGEEREEMNRA -

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that management’s judgements and assumptions
applied in determining the revenue, cost and profit
recognition of construction contracts were supportable
by the evidence obtained and procedures performed.
ERBHARFNER BMRREERERETRESN
B ~ BCZR K s T B SR B PATJRE PR Y 1 il K (R Bk BV A ER
EREBREFERIS -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BRETEE(E)
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRETEE BMNES NN EEERENSE

Estimated useful lives and residual values of HBRRENAETUEAEHRESBER
plant and equipment

Refer to note 2.5 in the summary of significant  Our procedures in relation to management’s estimated
accounting policies, note 4(b) in the critical useful lives and residual values of plant and equipment
accounting estimates and judgements and note 14  included:
to the consolidated financial statements. MEEEHMH L EENEET I EREEE LTS EER
F2HERGHBRMENT2.5 REMBWEM BMEEDNEFEE
it4b)EZ G FHEE R HE A MM FE14 -

- We understood and assessed the key controls

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying value of plant over the valuation of plant and equipment
and equipment amounted to HK$524,935,000, with and assessed the inherent risk of material
depreciation charge for the year ended 31 March misstatement by considering the degree
2022 amounted to HK$25,914,000. of estimation uncertainty and level of other
20224 3A31H " H#MWMERBZEHER inherent risk factors such as complexity,
524,935,000/ e M & £22022F3 A31 H ILFE 2 #7 subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
E ¥ 1 A25,914,0008 7T ° management bias or fraud.

- BAC THRLFEERERERENERER
WEBZBEF T ETEEREBELRERA
=(EMNE TEE ZPRBEEERI K
MAFR SR K FREEXRERRANEFR

B o

- We discussed with the management on the
recent market development that might impact
the prevailing market values for equivalent
aged assets for each category of plant and
equipment and the value of scrap metal at
year end. We performed independent research
to corroborate with the management’s
assessment.

= BMEREIRE R wmI A Al se e 8 SRR
BHRSERREERFREHEEENTZENT
HEE c BB #ETBIHENTETEENT
fil o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
AEETSE

Management estimates useful lives of plant and
equipment annually by reference to the industry
practice, expected repair and maintenance, and if
there is any technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in the
market. Residual values of the plant and equipment
are determined based on prevailing market values
for equivalent aged assets taking into account
the condition of the relevant assets or the value
of scrap metal. Depreciation expense would be
significantly affected by the useful lives and residual
values of the plant and equipment as estimated by
management.
EREEF2ETXREN BHEECRRE UK
BEEMAT S A EERNEMKEES
EBE - e HR R REOAIERFH - B &R
BHORGREBEDRBEERERKREENRITMEE
i’iﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ?%#ﬁﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁﬁoﬁﬁﬁ
PR 5t e i K 3% 5 0 BT {8 B 4F B R R eR B (E S S 4T
EEREEAYE-

We focused on this area, in particular machinery
and equipment which contribute substantially of
the carrying amount of plant and equipment, as a
key audit matter due to the fact that the carrying
value of plant and equipment represented 93% of
non-current assets and 65% of total assets of the
Group, and significant judgement is involved in
determining the useful lives and residual values of
plant and equipment.

MR AR RENREENGE EEEERDEEN
93% K # & EH165% + LA KR FE 8 FE Mk SR SR B B0 AT
ERFHRRREERR S REZHE - RPARLS
BRESFEMBEINUEE - CERERM KRR
HREREEIEE R D R R & -

Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

MREITEE(E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNEA NN EEBRENSE

- We sample checked market quotations
and recent scrap metal price to assess
whether the residual value of each type of
plant and equipment is within reasonable
range and challenged the judgement and
estimates involved in the assessment with the
management.

= AP B TS A% 35 T 35 S (B o s 5 ) 3 B (B A DAY
HREEBEREORREESETBESEEE -
I BERT A PSR B FI T R st E R R E

- We also compared, on a sample basis, the
key specifications, including the model, year of
manufacture, equipment and modifications of
the comparable plant and equipment with those
owned by the Group to assess the suitability of
the comparison.

= BTG E ZRE (BIERIE LB & & 8
ISR BUEF)  REBRUERBR)E BEEH
PRVEA BV S SR B T T IR LB ARTE B
LB EREA o

- We reviewed the sensitivity analysis performed
by management on financial impact of
fluctuation on residual values and estimated
useful lives to depreciation.

= B EHEREEARNGEBERETAIERE
HRBUTENM B EETHORRESN -

= We assessed useful lives by benchmarking to
other industry players and performing research
to consider whether there are changes or
improvements in the market which could
potentially result in technical or commercial
obsolescence.

= HPIAE MR m%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
RIAZ B RSB M5 &b ko2 Al s 8 Bl
HEEFEBE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BRETEE(E)
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRETSE BMNEA NN EEBRENSE

We tested, on a sample basis, whether
additions to plant and equipment have been
recorded in proper categories with relevant
useful lives and residual values, for the
calculation of depreciation.

M RITEM S - H A2 FEOR S K 3R 7Y
NEET N A BRI B & B R R E
B8R -

Based on the procedures performed, we considered

that management’s judgements and assumptions

applied in the estimation of useful lives and residual

values of plant and equipment were supportable by the

evidence obtained and procedures performed.
ERNEHREFNAER - RAIBREBERVEF M RER
1 B BT (0 B 4F B K R 6 B (E 1R A2 P BT FE P 0 2 T S 1R
ROERBEEBENMEFERE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

18 M A AR

Hpf5 2

BERAESAHEMEERE - HMES
BREFHRANAEREE BETRELGRAM
BHER LR MOZEE RS -

BAESEEMBHRRNBELL MREEM
B R AEZEREMEREREM
AR EEE® -

BaRMERAMBERROEFS - HAIW
BEERMEEMES  HEIEES &
HpEEER B EMBmRABRMES
BT TBABEATEENBESE
UFFEEARERBLABER -

ERBHEATOIE  REMALSE
fEERFEERERRML - RAUFERS
ZEE - HENE RFVREEA®RSE -

EERBERZEENGESUBHRREAEX
EHEE

BERREFEAAERBEBTESIMAER
e EB M B wE LR KB E(A A%
FOOBREREREEEM T SNEA
Bk WHERBRESREPBEHRERN
BETFEARAGFRERMEBNENXN
HBRBULFT R AEERI B R

2022FFH | ZNEEEEERAA

103



104

Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

18 M A AR

BRBMRES RSN BRRAENEE

(&)

ERB(EBBIERD R T BB
BB T BRI R T R
KEAEIE o AT

a8 Bl A BT R 7 R GF Sk #R AR 1 8 B
REMBRMRFEEAHERRAH
Rk - BREF RMITE R ARY
B - A REIRERMNEE /)
BAHRE O FEREMERANER-
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BER  ERERL - SOERBER A
2z b Bt REEH B EKREEM
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BE T IR P 55 AR T E B H) B K #H AR R
) R o

THRREEARORES - AR
AAEENEARERF BENLFE
i BEEEANERNAEREER
BR e

AEEFRASTBRRNRE L
REH G A MBERENSIE
1 o

2022FFH | ZNEEEEERAA

105



106

Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT REBMRET RV ERRAENET
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (#&)
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Hin Gay, Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 June 2022

18 M A AR
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

merZHEBRER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #%2022F 3831 IEF/E

Revenue from contracts with customers
Cost of sales

Gross loss
Other loss

Other income
Administrative expenses

Operating loss

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance (costs)/income, net

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit

Loss for the year

Loss attributable to equity holders
of the Company

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss

Fair value gains on financial
assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss attributable to
equity holders of the Company

Basic and diluted loss per share

The notes on pages 113 to 211 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Note
Bt
EEAHRKA 5
§HE AR 7
FiB
Hibgsia 6
H b U A 6
THRAX 7
B R
B 75 Mg A 8
9155 R 8
B (BH) WA~
R 8
B BT 15 B4 AT 5 18
Fris ik % 9
FEEHE
KABERZEFEA A
FE1HE 1B
FEEE
H b 2w A

THRE L EHHAE
oz > HA
BAFEFAERE
WAZ SREES
DA

FEE2HEEARE

ARBEmFTB ARG
EHEEIRARE

BREAREEEE 11

RZHERERD °
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2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
362,514 356,211
(420,036) (360,264)
(57,522) (4,053)
(1,171) —
195 15,149
(44,457) (47,945)
(102,955) (36,849)
56 1,397
(1,779) (1,386)
(1,723) 11
(104,678) (36,838)
3,981 3,087
(100,697) (83,751)
(100,697) (33,751)
(100,697) (33,751)
1,810 410
(98,887) (83,341)
(98,887) (83,341)
2022 2021
HK cents HK cents
AL B
(5.99) (2.01)
F113E211 B 2 M s Bt Fir 6 B 15 W



Assets

Non-current assets

Right-of-use assets

Plant and equipment

Deferred income tax assets

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Deposits and prepayments

Current assets

Trade and retention receivables

Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Income tax recoverable

Restricted bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Note
B 5
BE
RBEE
ERAEEE 13
MR K2 2% 1 14
BEEFTISTHEE 19
EAFEFAEMEE
WAZ&REE 15
e RIERFRIE 16
REEE

EWEZREARREE 16
Be  BNREREM

FE U IR 16
A Y B AT 15 8

IR H ER 1T 45 5 17
ReRBREEEY 17
BE#HE

R

fi& A< 18(a)
A 18(b)
ERBHE

mEEERER

As at 31 March 2022 7202243311

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
13,199 13,347
524,935 544,783
1,371 1,408
22,340 20,530
2,525 2,155
564,370 582,223
99,984 152,749
11,913 7,214
11 70

- 3,192
127,928 187,921
|- 239,836 | 891,146
804,206 933,369
4,200 4,200
527,899 626,786
532,099 630,986
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEEERER

As at 31 March 2022 7202253 A31H

2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B = FBT FET
Liabilities a8&
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings & 22 7,200 2,534
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEFTSR AR 19 46,549 51,821
Lease liabilities HEAE 13 4,126 6,364
57,875 60,719
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and retention payables ENESZZERREE 20 70,360 58,927
Accruals and other payables JE T R0 IA I H A E A
TRIB 20 13,561 18,395
Borrowings B 22 90,680 103,977
Lease liabilities HEAE 13 8,474 7,104
Income tax payable JE <t BT 18 5% 1,157 69
Amount due to a director B —2EENE 21, 26(d) 30,000 53,192
214,232 241,664
Total liabilities &&EesE 272,107 ¢ 302,383
Total equity and liabilities EERAEELEH 804,206 933,369
The consolidated financial statements on pages 108 to 211 F108E211 B 2 4r & M B 2k B 702022
were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2022 and FOoR2HEEESHME - WA T AL
were signed on its behalf. REKESE o
Lau Chun Ming Leung Lai So
23R REE
Director Director
EZE EZF

The notes on pages 113 to 211 are an integral part of these F113E211BE 2 M s Bt Fix 4 B 15 W
consolidated financial statements. RZHEKED °
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #£2022F3A31H L F/E

Financial assets

at fair value
through other
comprehensive
Share Share income fair value Other Retained
capital premium reserve reserves eamnings Total
BOVEGAEM
2ERAZEH
A RARE BEZLTERRE bR REEF @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL THL T TAL Tin
Balance at 31 March 2020 HR2020F3A31H 2 &g 4200 194,087 370 10,500 488,770 697,927
Comprehensive loss 2EFE
Loss for the year EEER - - - - (33,751) (33,751)
Fair value gaing on financial assets ~ RAFPEFALMRERALZ
at fair value through other SRAE ATEYE
comprehensive income - - 40 - - 40
Total comprehensive loss EEXEFRER
for the year = - 40 - (33,751) (33,341)
Contribution by and distribution ~ E&EAHLERMEMEH
to owners ipipid
Final dividends relating to the BEEZ020EIA3NBLER
year ended 31 March 2020 nofe 10) %R E (F110) - - - - (33,600) (33,600)
Balance at 31 March 2021 R2021F3A31H 2t 4200 194,087 780 10,500 421,419 630,986
Balance at 31 March 2021 R202153A31H 2 &5 4,200 194,087 780 10,500 421,419 630,986
Comprehensive loss 2EFR
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (100,697) (100,697)
Fair value gains on financial assets ~ ZATFEFAEZERALZ
at fair value through other SHEELATHENE
comprehensive income - - 1,810 - - 1,810
Total comprehensive loss EEXEERER
for the year - - 1,810 - (100,697) (98,887)
Balance at 31 March 2022 R2022F3A31H 2 &t 4,200 194,087 2,590 10,500 320,722 532,099

The notes on pages 113 to 211 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FIBE211E 2 [ E Bl F4R 6 B 15 =R
RZHEKI D -

2022FFH | ZNEEEEERAA
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #%2022F 3831 IEF/E

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash used in operations
Interest paid

Interest received

Interest element of lease payments
Restricted bank balances

Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/refunded
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of plant and equipment

Prepayment for purchase of plant and

equipment

Proceeds from disposal of plant and

equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Drawdown of long-term bank loans
Repayment of long-term bank loans

Drawdown of short-term bank loans
Repayment of short-term bank loans
Principal elements of lease payments

Repayment to a director
Drawdown from a director
Dividend paid

Net cash used in from
financing activities

Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year

Represented by:
Cash at bank and on hand
Bank overdraft

The notes on pages 113 to 211 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Note
B 7

RELERHNRERE
RETBTABR S FERE 25(a)
ERHE

B UWH B

HEMZH BB

IR I R 1T A BR

(B REBEFEH

REEZDFRAREFR

REREETHNRERE

BB W N R

BB R

8 1 70|

o MR K R

Fr{S3k38 25(c)

REZHMAREFE

REMEZHNRERE
REEHARTER 25
BRERHPRITER 25
REHVE HIR1TE X 25
BEEHARTER 25
MENR 2 A2 2D 25
BE-—REZRE 25
—HREFHETHFA 25
ENEE

CACICICICHCHC)

BMEETHMAREEE

RERREEEY
ERERES

REMNNRE R
REeFEY

REKNRERAS
ZEY

2% % :
RITKEFERES 17
RITEX 22

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH&xT FHET
(14,784) (3,008)
(1,334) (996)
56 1,397
(445) (343)
3,192 (47)
(107) 334
(13,422) (2,661)
(7,740) (12,243)
(423) -

3 —

(8,160) (12,243)
17,504 -
(12,085) (8,601)
288,347 248,294
(282,563) (272,306)
(9,780) (8,117)
(50,000) -
30,000 50,000
- (33,600)
,,,,,,, (18,577)  (24,330)
(40,159) (39,234)
168,087 207,321
127,928 168,087
127,928 187,921
- (19,834)
127,928 168,087

FIEZ2ME ZHWE AN ERE MR

RZHERERD ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, the Cayman lIslands.

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in foundation works and ancillary services in
Hong Kong and Macau.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except for the financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income (Note
15) which are stated at fair value.

e PR RRME

—mEr

= MEEEBARAR ([ARF])
RIBERAS S EMNE2E(RRDE)
(19615 JABI3 + 476 RIEFTA)
CHREHEFMNLAEREER
NGNS L= 0 F i /=8 b e 1V
M Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands °

RRRRREERAT - MENEB
ARE(MBEIAEE]) TEREE
NORPINE 3 A T A2 N i B AR 7% ©

ARBIZBOREBEERAER A
[RARERLEM ©

B AMEIN - RE P ERRIAE
(BT 25 -

EXRETBRRBE

REU ERAMBERRARANE
ZEHBRRERTX - KR EHEH
BN REBRRAE2IFE—
EERUEA -

21 IRBIEE

AEEZRE M IERER TR
BEESeHtAg ([B5e
RS ) B 2 A E
REBTBHREERL ([
RS ER) REBE
Bl E622F BB R A K H 2
WEHTERE - AEE 4R
B W HRE AT AN LR
. R AFEFAEME
ABAZEmEE (H:E15)
BIE A FETBRBR D ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of the financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 4.

(a) Amended standards and revised
conceptual framework

The Group has applied the following new
and amended standards, improvements and
interpretations for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 April 2021:

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)
HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

Reform - Phase 2

The standards and amendments listed above did
not have any impact on the amounts recognised
in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

(b) New and amended standards,
improvements and interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet adopted

Certain new and amended standards,
improvements and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 31 March
2022 reporting periods and have not been early
adopted by the Group:

SAMIWOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2

BEAETHERE(Z)
21 HREEE(E)

RIBE B M B RE L R
MBHmRAERE THEH
Srtfhat - EEEREAAR
SE S ERERE IFBEEHL
HIE - % RBZ HE R BE
o HEBBRER R EER
BB HRRBEATEND
B PO B R4 B EE -

(@)  ABEETEAIRAEEET
BERHER

AEEB 2021F481H
F1A Y F S SRS HAR B X e
AT 35T M a&saT 28]

HGE A J 2 R
BRMERSED RRALERR
F16% 23] SNRLER

BECHEN S0 HEREEYE-
BRHBREEY F-KE
E4% BREBRS

RAIETS - RGN
LEABRRES

SRR E16%

ZEH

LR RAERTH B B
RO EREEATE
FER TS HE R SOR R
ELXBATE -

(b) B 2B 518 5] K R A B
FaT RASISETEA -
EREFE

AT ] REEETEER « 2
ERREEEM  EHRR
B E2022F3A31H IR &
HAR SR Hl ARk BoREARE
BEiEREA -



2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  New and amended standards, (b) B HME E KR
improvements and interpretations that FIET RASIEETERY

have been issued but are not yet adopted

(Continued)

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)
ERRBREERE16% 2B
HKAS 16 (Amendments)

BB EAE16% 2 BT
HKAS 37 (Amendments)

BB EHREEITR 2B
HKFRS 3 (Amendments)
BEAYMBRERNEINR 2 BT
Annual Improvements Projects
FEYCERER

Accounting Guideline 5 (Revised)
25H155|E55% (KE5T)

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
BRI EANE 1R BT
HKFRS 17

BN BREER ST
HKFRS 17 (Amendments)
ERUBRERIEITR BT
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

BB RS (2020%)

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 (Amendments)
EAMBRERNEBAER2R 2B
HKAS 1 (Amendments)

BB e R E1R 2B

HKAS 8 (Amendments)

BA GRS 2 BT

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

S HEAIZ 1082 1]
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

BRMBREENEI0RREE G ER
F28 5]

21 HREBEE(E)

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 2021

1 FRBAFUEREENM TR

Property, Plant and Equipment -
Proceeds before Intended Use

NE BHRXE-(EREREANAERE

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfiling a Contract

EEEHN-BITEHNRK

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Z2REER

Annual Improvements 2018-2020 Cycle

2018F E2020% {8 M0 & F

Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations

LEEHEH A g

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

BEEABERRBAERD

Insurance Contracts

RREH

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

ERAMBREENEITR 2B RRE D

Presentation of Financial Statement - Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause

B IRREN 25— EHRA LB 3 AR 2R E R A
THERNAE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

BEEHHE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

BEEIHR

Definition of Accounting Estimates

ERRCRPA

Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities
Arising From a Single Transaction

BE-QHEECEERARABNELEHE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

REERABERAFAZ R ANEELERTE

2022FFH | ZNEEEEERAA

HERZFE(E)

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning on
or after
T30 B 83
ZERR
SETHIR AR

1 April 2021
2021F4A1R
1 January 2022

2022F1A1R
1 January 2022
2022F1A1H
1 January 2022
20221 R1R
1 January 2022
2022F1A1R
1 January 2022
2022F1A1H
1 January 2023
2023%1A1H
1 January 2023
2023F1A1H
1 January 2023
2023F1A1H
1 January 2023

2023F1 A1E

1 January 2023
2023F1A1H
1 January 2023
2023F1A1H
1 January 2023
2023%1A1H
1 January 2023

202351 A1H
To be determined
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards,
improvements and interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet adopted
(Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these new
and amended standards, revised accounting
guideline, amended annual improvements and
amended interpretation is expected to be in the
period of initial application. The Group does
not anticipate the adoption of them to have
a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

Principles of consolidation
2.2.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(note 2.2.2).

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Principles of consolidation (Continued)

2.2.2 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets
are acquired. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business, the equity interests issued
by the Group, the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and the fair value of any
pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquired
entity over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase.

e PR RRME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Principles of consolidation (Continued)

2.2.3 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the profit or
loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the statement of
comprehensive income on a net basis within
other gain/(losses).

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-monetary
assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or
loss and translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equities classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing exchange rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation
of cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
rate on the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of
the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are expensed in
the profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of both owned and leased plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs to their residual
values over the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Machinery and equipment 10-15 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount of the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (note 2.6).

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

e PR RRME

2 EXSTBRBE(F)

2.5

P B 5% 8

AR K B M ¥R IR SE R AN TRk R
AHTERZFIREIR - F
SRABRKEEEERE
HRRX -

EREEABIARREHE
FMEEFTREMALERE - AR
BEMKANBER SERTER © H
BRAT G ABENERE
BEXERA/BULEE (WE
R -BEEBoNEEER
R BUHRER © FTA b &
EREBEBENELEBHEER
8K o

AE R B RS
SRR E TR R NS
ERAESRERFBEE
HEFE - AR
mF

MR B RN 102154
REAREE 54
RE 5%

BEEMFIREE LA FRE
IR & HME R aT MFAR
(WEE) -

W& EZ R EBEE G
KBS - MZEEZK
T {5 BV B H0RH 22 EL AT U B
7 (ff5E2.6) o

HERELFGHEIRER
P AR ERE E R L8
T UYRERAEERERA

2002FFHK | ZNBEEEARLF

121



122

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.7 Investments and other financial assets

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the

following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at
fair value through other comprehensive

income (“FVOCI”); and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

SAMIWOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2

BEAETHERE(Z)
26 JEemEERNRE
EBEEMHERNIBERNEE

2.7

T BR TH B 7] B A I [l B
FHECEESRRELETT
Rl o MEBREEE K
EHEBOHET @S ENE
BER - AINOERREE
B X PR R 35 B B AR B E A
BEMEPHRSE  N&T
AR EERAIERED
/N REMEEESN
(REEEEM) THADE -
BB AN Z ESREEH
BERE - BN S @S B8R
AMESBRER TRE -

BRERHEMEREE

(a) S AE

AEERESREENER
IATEE8ER

0 Hg AR AFEFA
HpzmPA (A
FEFARMEZEK
ADNZHAFE &

. BB HKARGE -
DERTECHANEESR

é?ﬁ‘]%i‘k%‘iﬁ&fﬁi/ s
& KRR E



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(a) Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or other comprehensive income (“OCI”). For
investments in equity instruments that are not
held for trading, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
the assets changes.

(b) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

e PR RRME

2 BEREHBEBEE)

2.7

KRENHEMEREE (&)

(a) o E)

BAFEFENEEMS -
MEREBEET ABmsH
2 EUA - MEERFIER
ENRATENKREMS -
AR F AR & B )RR
EEEEE A HE Z &
B MBEARER QYT
Bt AR EZE R AT -

AEBAREREEANE
BREEENEHEAE S
EREBREAEHHE -

(b) RIS

AERTABEARLENE
MEENAEEARE AR
HEEENRSRER - &
WEBRKBEREEZRER
EMENIHXLEEE
MAKECKAEENRE
RO REREEE £
BEENK LR

2022FFH | ZNEEEEERAA

123



124

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(c) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction cost of financial assets carried
at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset.

(1) Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement. Impairment losses are charged within
operating profit in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

2) Fair value through other comprehensive

income

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in the
consolidated income statement. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income

using the effective interest rate method.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line items in the

statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in

fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(d) Impairment

The Group’s financial assets measured at
amortised cost are subject to HKFRS 9’s new
expected credit loss model. The Group assesses
on a forward-looking basis where the expected
credit losses associated with its assets carried
at amortised cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.1(c) set
out the details on how the Group determines
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade and retention receivables, other
receivables and contract assets, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables. The provision matrix is determined
pbased on historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the contract assets and trade
receivables with similar credit risk characteristics
and is adjusted for forward looking estimates.
At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

Impairment on other receivables and deposits,
cash and cash equivalent and restricted bank
balances are assessed on a 12-month expected
credit losses. If a significant increase in credit
risk of a receivables has occurred since initial
recognition, then the impairment is measured as
lifetime expected credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the balance sheet where
the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The Group has also entered into arrangements
that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but
still allow for the related amounts to be set off in
certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
termination of a contract.

Trade and retention receivables, and deposits
and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services performed
in the ordinary course of business. They are
generally due for settlement within 90 days and
therefore are all classified as current. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and retention receivables, and deposits
and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of the unconditional consideration
unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair
value. The Group holds the trade receivables
with the objective to collect the contractual cash
flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturity of
three months or less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and retention payables, and other payables

Trade and retention payables are obligations
to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade and retention payables, and other
payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of
the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
balance sheet when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are charged to the profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16  Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the year
is the tax payable on the current year’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax
rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is
probable that a taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures
its tax balances either based on the most likely
amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of
the resolution of the uncertainty. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 2.16 BIEAREIEFTSH (&)

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income
tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 Revenue recognition 217 WWAMER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. Revenue is recognised when
goods are transferred or services are rendered to
the customer.

Depending on the terms of the contract and
the laws that apply to the contract, service may
provide over time or at a point in time. Service is
provided over time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the
customer; or

° creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs;
or

° does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to
date.

If service transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
asset.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Revenue recognition (Continued)

If the Group expects the reference to progress
certificates issued by the customers, with
additional adjustments where necessary, depicts
the Group’s performance in transferring control
of goods or services promised to customers
for individual projects, the Group satisfies the
performance obligation over time and therefore,
recognises revenue over time in accordance
with the output method for measuring progress.
Under output method, revenue recognition
is based on the stage of completion of the
contracts, provided that the stage of contract
completion and the gross billing value of
contracting work can be measured reliably. The
stage of completion of a contract is established
by reference to the construction works certified
by independent surveyors.

If construction projects have no alternative use
to the Group contractually and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment from the customers
for performance completed to date, the Group
satisfies the performance obligation over time
and therefore, recognises revenue over time in
accordance with the input method for measuring
progress. Under input method, revenue on
construction contracts is recognised based on
the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of
the performance obligation, by reference to the
contract costs incurred up to the end of reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs
for each contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 Revenue recognition (Continued) 217 WAMER(E)

When the outcome of a contract cannot be
estimated reliably, foundation work and ancillary
service is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included in supply and foundation
work and ancillary service to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for the services that
the Group has transferred to a customer. In
addition, incremental costs incurred to obtain
a new contract, if recoverable, are capitalised
as contract assets and subsequently amortised
when the related revenue is recognised.

Contract assets are assessed for impairment
under the same approach adopted for
impairment assessment of financial assets carried
at amortised cost.

A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to
render the services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration from the
customer. A contract liability is recognised by the
Group when the customer pays consideration in
advance before the Group renders the service to
the customer. Contract liabilities mainly included
the advance payments received from provision of
foundation work and ancillary services.
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e PR M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17

218

Revenue recognition (Continued)

On the consolidated balance sheet, the Group
reports the net contract position for each
contract as either an asset or a liability. A
contract asset represents an asset where costs
incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised
losses) exceed progress billings; a contract
liability represents a liability where the opposite is
the case.

Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for
financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leaves are not recognised
until the time of leave.

(b) Pension Obligations

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in accordance
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance of Hong Kong. Under the rules of the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees in
Hong Kong are each required to contribute 5%
of the employees’ gross earnings with a ceiling of
HK$1,500 per month to the MPF Scheme.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the MPF Scheme and the Social Security Plan
is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination when
the entity has a detailed formal plan to terminate
the employment of current employees without
possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than twelve
months after balance sheet date are discounted
to present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

° the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

o by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements
in ordinary shares issued during the year
and excluding treasury shares.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

o the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at which
the leased asset is available for use by the
Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group has elected not to
separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease
component. However, for leases of real estate
for which the Group is a lessee, it had elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components
and instead accounts for these as a single lease
component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on

an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

Leases (Continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability, if any.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received, and makes adjustments specific to the
lease.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance costs. The finance costs are charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.
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e PR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability;
o any lease payments made at or before

the commencement date less any lease
incentives received;

° any initial direct costs; and

o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and
all leases of low-value assets are recognised
on a straight-line basis as an expense in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise small items of office equipment.

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial
direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are
included in the consolidated balance sheet based
on their nature.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22

2.23

2.24

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements and
Company’s financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred income and are
credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved
by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.
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e PR M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is
not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow
is probable, they will then be recognised as a
provision.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety
of financial risk: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of the financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies
approved by the directors of the Company. The
Directors provide principles for an overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific
areas.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities which are denominated in a
currency that is not the Company’s functional
currency.

The Group’s transactions are mainly
denominated in HK$. The majority of assets and
liabilities are denominated in HK$ and there are
no significant assets and liabilities denominated
in other currencies. Management considered that
the Group does not have significant exchange
risk in respect of transactions or balances.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly
attributable to its cash and bank balances and
borrowings. Except for borrowings with variable
interest, the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing liabilities. Borrowings at variable
interest rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. Cash and bank balances at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The Group has not used any interest
rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate

risk.

As at 31 March 2022, if the interest rates on
borrowings had been 100 basis-points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax loss for the year would be HK$817,000
(2021: post-tax loss: HK$916,000) higher/
lower (2021: higher/lower) mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on floating rate

borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
trade and retention receivables, deposits and
other receivables, contract assets, cash in bank
and restricted bank balances.

To manage the risk arising from cash in bank
and restricted bank balances, the Group only
transacts with reputable banks which are all
high-credit-quality financial institutions. There has
no recent history of default in relation to these
financial institutions. The expected credit loss is
close to zero.

For deposits and other receivables, management
makes periodic collective assessments as well
as individual assessment on the recoverability
of deposits and other receivables based
on historical settlement records and past
experience. The management believes that the
expected credit loss is close to zero.

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s
policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, all trade and retention
receivables and contract assets are monitored on
an ongoing basis.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group applies the simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade and
retention receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
and retention receivables and contract assets
have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due.
The contract assets related to unbilled work
in progress and have substantially the same
risk characteristics as the trade and retention
receivables for the same types of contracts. The
Group has therefore concluded that the expected
loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets and retention receivables.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of trade and retention
receivables and contract assets over the period
before the consolidated balance sheet date
and the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the customers to settle the
receivables. The Group has identified the Gross
Domestic Product (GDP) and the construction
expenditure index of the cities in which it
operates to be the most relevant factor, and
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based
on expected changes in these factors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group overall considers the shared credit
risk characteristic and the days past due of
the trade and retention receivables as the
measurement for the expected credit loss.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 March
2022 and 31 March 2021 was determined as
follows for both trade and retention receivables:

31 March 2022 2022434310
Hong Kong e
Expected loss rate HHBER
Gross carrying amount FHAHE

- trade receivables —-EWE5HE
Gross carrying amount FHAHE

- retention receivables -EhREE
Loss allowance BiERE
Macau 15
Expected loss rate HHBEX
Gross carrying amount FHAHE

- contract assets —aHEE
Loss allowance BiERE

3

Current
k]
HK$°000
TER
0%*
29,138

46,314

100%

25,009
25,009
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

31 March 2021 2021%3R318 Current
0
HK$'000
THAT
Hong Kong 5
Expected loss rate BHERE 0%"
Gross carrying amount g
- trade receivables ~[EWE 5B 80,961
Gross carrying amount EE A
- retention receivables  -EWRES 58,158
Loss allowance FHiERkfE =
Macau ey
Expected loss rate BHERER 100%
Gross carrying amount EE A
- contract assets -AHBE 25,009
Loss allowance EERE 25,009

*

Expected credit loss is close to zero as these
trade and retention receivables are limited
recent history of default.

The Group categorises trade or other receivables
for write off when a debtor fails to make
contractual payments. Where trade or other
receivables have been written off, the Group
continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due. Where
recoveries are made, these are recognised
in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that an entity
will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial assets.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of
sources including orderly realisation of short-term
financial assets, receivables and certain
assets that the Group considers appropriate
and long-term financing including long-term
borrowings are also considered by the Group
in its capital structuring. The Group aims to
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient
bank balances and interest-bearing borrowings
which enable the Group to continue its business
for the foreseeable future.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interests payments computed using contractual
rates, or if floating, based on the current rates at
the year-end date). Where the loan agreement
contains a repayable on demand clause which
gives the lender the unconditional right to call
the loan at any time, the amounts repayable are
classified in the earliest time bracket in which the
lender could demand repayment. The maturity
analysis for other borrowings is prepared based
on the scheduled repayment dates. Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying balances,
as the impact of discounting is not significant.

e PR RRME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBRBER (&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HHEBEZEE)
(d)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (@  AEBELEE(E)
On
demand

and less Between Between

than1 1and2 2and5 Carrying
year years years Total amount
REXRR

PR-F -EWME —EIF gt RELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExr TER TER TER TER

As at 31 March 2022 R202253A31H
Trade and retention payables B E 5508

RRE € 70,360 - - 70,360 70,360
Accruals and other payables B RIER

H it 1T 508 1,980 - - 1,980 1,980
Amount due to a director ERN—2EEHRE 30,000 - - 30,000 30,000
Long-term bank loans REHTER 8,571 6,125 1,226 15922 15,397
Short-term bank loans RHRITER 82,871 - - 82871 82483
Lease liabilities MERE 9,061 3,490 700 13,251 12,600

202,843 9,615 1,926 214,384 212,820
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2021
Trade and retention payables

Accruals and other payables

Amount due to a director
Long-term bank loans
Short-term bank loans
Bank overdraft

Lease liabilities

M2021E3H31H

ENE

5

RiRE g

JERt R R M B

e

BN—2EZRE

RER
R
RITE
HE

TEH
T

1TEN

X

&

3 MERKRER (&)
31 HBEREZRE)
(@  EEBELERE(E)
On
demand
and less Between Between
than1 1and2 2and5b Carrying
year years years Total  amount
REKR
PR—F —ZMF _—EILF By BHE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
THr THEx THx THExT TEx
58,927 - - 58,927 58,927
2,304 - - 2,304 2,304
53,217 - - 53217 53,192
7,740 2,576 - 10,316 9,978
76,779 - - 76,779 76,699
19,834 - - 19,834 19,834
7,428 4,544 1,947 13,919 13,468
226,229 7,120 1,947 235296 234,402

2022FFH | ZNEEEEERAA

155



156

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBRBER (&)
3.2  Capital risk management 32 EAXRRERE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital REBEEEANH B IZER
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue EAREEAFELSE R
as a going concern in order to provide returns for 71 AR R E R &
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders REMERFTFE AREA
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to & ARNREBRENELRE
reduce the cost of capital. TE AR (R E AN AN o
The capital structure of the Group consists of REBWEREHEBIEER
equity and borrowings. In order to maintain or NAEFR o Btk AT E AR
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust B ANEERSFHESN T’
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, RHRECH  MRREEE
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares & BITHIRE R E B E LR
or sell assets to reduce borrowings. The Group DER - REBUEERAGL
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. The RESENR o BEBMBLLERMN
gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided BEFERAEERTE -8
by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total BEFEABERRRE MRS
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. The EHEY - BEABLIRNT :
gearing ratios were as follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FATT
Borrowings (note 22) B (Hfat22) 97,880 106,511
Less: cash and cash equivalents B BREMIREEEY
(note 17) (Htat17) (127,928) (187,921)
Net cash R FE (30,048) (81,410)
Total equity B 532,099 630,986
Gearing ratio BEARLE N/ATE A N/AT i A
As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group was R20224F 202143 831

in net cash position, taking into accounts its
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets (other than financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income) and
financial liabilities, including cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank balances, trade
and retention receivables, deposits and other
receivables, trade and retention payables, other
payables and borrowings approximate their
fair values, which either due to their short-term
maturities, or that they are subject to floating
rates.

The carrying amount of amount due to a director
was a reasonable approximation of its fair value.

The Group’s financial instruments are measured
in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised
into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as

follows:

2022

Financial assets at fair value BATFEGT AEAM
through other comprehensive 2EEAZ
income (Note 15) SREE(MiF15)

2021

Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFAEAM
through other comprehensive 2EHBAZ
income (Note 15) SREE (MiF15)

3 BEERER (&)

3.3

Level 1
F-E
HK$’000
FHET

AT

AEENEREE (BAF
B AREMEEBEAZEE
BERIN RemAE (8
EReEMREEED  ZR
HIERITHE R ~ EULE H5KIR
RREE  REMEMER
R BNESHARRE
T~ H Ao A SRR K AE )
A2 8 B8R RIRF B A=K
PR RFEERARMNK
HERARENQFERS -

BN —REFFENEKEE
RENFENAEOH -

AEBE 2z 2R T BRAUG
R HEZAERTEAER
EERZEEERBRER
FEAK TR AERR
AFEERBEARMT=

:
Level 2 Level 3
- BB
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT
- 22,340
- 20,530
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

&8 Fair value estimation (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2022, there
were no transfers of financial assets of the
Group between different levels of the fair value
hierarchy.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, there
were no significant changes in the business or
economic circumstances that affect the fair value
of the Group’s financial assets.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are addressed below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(@)

Construction contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimates
of contract revenue, contract costs, variation
orders and contract claims prepared for each
construction contract as the contract progresses.
Budgeted construction costs are prepared by
the management on the basis of quotations
prepared by the management on the basis of
quotations from time to time provided by the
major contractors, suppliers or vendors involved
and the experience of the management. In order
to keep the budget accurate and up-to-date,
management conducts periodic reviews of the
budgets of contracts by comparing the budgeted
amounts to the actual amounts incurred. Such
significant estimate may have impact on the profit
recognised in each period.

The Group recognises its contract revenue
based on the satisfaction of the performance
obligation either input method or output method,
by reference to the contract costs incurred up
to the end of reporting period as a percentage
of total estimated costs for each contract, or
according to the percentage of work performed
to date of individual contract of construction
works as a percentage of total contract value.
Because of the nature of the activity undertaken
in construction contracts, the date at which the
contract activity is entered into and the date
when the activity is completed usually fall into
different accounting periods. The Group reviews
and revises the estimates of contract revenue,
contract costs, variation orders and contract
claims prepared for each construction contract
as the contract progress. Management regularly
reviews the progress of the contracts and the
corresponding costs of the contract revenue.

e PR RRME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(o)

Estimated useful lives and residual values of plant
and equipment

Management estimates useful lives of the plant
and equipment by reference to the Group’s
business model, its assets management policy,
the industry practice, expected usage of the
assets, expected repair and maintenance, the
technical or commercial obsolescence arising
from changes or improvements in the market.
Residual values of the machinery and equipment
are determined based on prevailing market
values for equivalent aged assets taking into
account the condition of the relevant assets or
the value of scrap metal and other economic
considerations. Depreciation expense would
be significantly affected by the useful lives and
residual values of the plant and equipment as
estimated by management.

If the residual values of plant and equipment
had further decreased by 10%, the depreciation
expenses would increase by HK$6,747,000
for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021:
HK$5,397,000).

If the useful life of plant and equipment had
further decreased by one year, the depreciation
expenses would increase by HK$4,169,000
for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021:
HK$3,808,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(©

Estimated impairment of non-current assets

The Group assesses whether there are
any indicators of impairment for plant and
equipment at the end of each reporting period.
Management considered the Group as one single
cash-generating unit as the major business
of the Group is engaged in foundation works
and ancillary services in Hong Kong which
is the smallest identifiable group of assets
that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent. Plant and equipment are tested for
impairment as plant and equipment contribute
substantially of the Group’s non-current assets.
Plant and equipment are tested for impairment
when there are impairment indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of
an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from market
quotations of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of
the asset. Management determines the market
values of plant and equipment by reference to
comparable market transactions.

Such valuations with reference to comparable
market transactions are made based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties
and might differ from the actual result. In making
the judgement, reasonable consideration has
been given to the underlying assumptions by
adjusting the differences to reflect current
prices in active market for plant and machinery
of different model, condition and age. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual
market data and sales transactions in the market.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(©

Estimated impairment of plant and equipment
(Continued)

In the impairment review for plant and equipment,
management has performed sensitivity analysis
by discounting the market value. Management
believes that any reasonably foreseeable changes
in any of the above key assumptions would
not cause the carrying amounts of plant and
equipment to exceed the recoverable amounts.

Fair value of the financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Management considers the fair value of the
unlisted securities mainly represented the fair
values of the investee’s investment properties,
net of its net current liabilities. These investment
properties are determined by using valuation
technique. Details of the judgement and
assumptions have been disclosed in note 15.

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgment
in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in
Hong Kong and Macau. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in
the period in which such determination is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH
CUSTOMERS AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue from contract with customers, which is also the
Group’s turnover, represents gross contract receipts on
foundation works and ancillary services in the ordinary
course of business. Revenue recognised is as follows:

Foundation works and
ancillary services

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company. The
executive directors regard the Group’s business as
one single operating segment and reviews financial
information accordingly.

Revenue from foundation works and ancillary services
are recognised over time during the year 31 March 2022
(2021: same).

(@) Segment information

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from
customers in Hong Kong. The principal assets
of the Group were also located in Hong Kong as
at 31 March 2022. Accordingly, no analysis by
geographical segment is provided.

W& T A2 N B AR 75

e PR RRME

EFEHNBARDHER

BEEAHBAEERREEBRRES
WETITREHNERENEEHIK
WA

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TER THET
362,514 356,211

ARRNPTETRHESEER
BERRA -HTEFTHAKEN
EBElon—EE—KEDH - I
HREERMYHER -

RE 220223 A31H IEFE i
T2 R K88 AR 75 0 U A T B8 B i
R (20214 : HE) °

(a) o EBE

AEEBNKRAEEREE
BRE o B £2022%3 A31
B AKENEEEENM
RE - Bt - WERHRIR
H[E D EEITH AT o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH

CUSTOMERS AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b) Revenue derived from major customers

External customers which individually contributed
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for
any of the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021
are as below:

Customer A LY
Customer B ®EEZ
Customer C XFR
Customer D 2ET
Customer E BPIK
Customer F XEC

=
,{-\x

AMQO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

i
=

EFEHNBARDBESR (F)

() REETEEFHKRA

KRB E20224F 2021438
318 IR —EFE BB
ABASBENAEBFENLYK
ABEBBI0%ZINREF

R
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFA&T
88,532 81,860
35,807 77,986
N/A T~ E A 55,462
N/A 73E A 36,444

154,796 N/A T3 F
57,880 N/A T@EH




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

OTHER LOSS AND OTHER INCOME HEMmEREUREMUA
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Other loss H b EsiE
Loss on disposal of B M B2 ER R Y
plant and equipment EE 66 _
Write-off of plant and equipment it 85 e A % R A 1,105 -
1,171 =
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FH T
Other income H A
Leasing of machinery & e - 366
Government grants (Note) BT B (A t) 136 14,783
Others Hfih 59 =
195 15,149
Note: During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group it - HZE2021F3A31BIEFE

NS B U ER B K T 4 B B R B
BIEESE T R E 5T
21 B % AR A9 #7 Bh 14,604,000
77T H B20197E MR K = E
(Teot1o@BMmER]) HE -
% 1 B 7 4 B 75 4 A] R 2 B
{4 ok H b 3k B &1 o

received government grants including from Employment
Support Scheme (“ESS”) under Anti-Epidemic
Fund, which is related to Coronavirus Disease 2019
(“COVID-19”) amounting to HK$14,604,000. There are
no unfulfilled conditions or other contingents attached
to the grants.
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e PR M

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 BREBE SR
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FH&T
Cost of sales $HE A
Construction contracts costs (note (a)) EEA XK (f1:@E) 380,035 319,892
Depreciation e
— owned plant and equipment —BER R 25,022 26,431
- right-of-use assets —FRAEEE 31 108
Repair and maintenance HIERIRE 1,298 1,100
Others Hit 13,650 12,733
420,036 360,264
Administrative expenses THRAX
Staff costs, including BEIXRAN(PEESEHE)
directors’ emoluments (note (b)) (B #Z®)) 16,581 19,370
Auditors’ remuneration % S EM N & 1,613 1,613
Depreciation e
- owned plant and equipment — BB &E 892 727
— right-of-use assets —EREEE 9,529 7,023
Operating lease rental in respect of AR ENEEEERS
- office and storage premises —MRERBEYMHE 3,830 5,326
— directors’ quarters —EEEE - 722
Professional fees EHXEH 3,524 5,476
Motor vehicle expenses ABERX 3,332 2,894
Bank charges RITHAX 562 298
Exchange losses [ pi=] 125 267
Others Hity 4,469 4,229
44,457 47,945
Total cost of sales and $HE KA R
administrative expenses TH A #58 464,493 408,209
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e PR RRME

EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Construction contract costs included but are not

limited to costs of construction materials, staff costs

(refer to note (b) below), consultancy fee, parts

and consumables, subcontracting charges and

transportation.

Wages and salaries
Pension costs

— defined contribution plans
Employment benefits

Less: amount included in cost of sales

TERFE
RIRE KA

—E R REE
BERAH

B T AERAZ SR

BEMER DR (E)

Hfiz -

@ BEAHUKAEBFEEIRR

BEMBRA - BITRA (2
RTXHizEb) - ERER -

THEEER DBRERANE
BEMR -
(b)

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T T
134,548 149,406
3,951 4,422
1,223 2,250
139,722 156,078
(123,141) (136,708)
16,581 19,370
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued) 7 BREEE WX (E)
(© Five highest paid individuals (c) hAEZREHFALT

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the five individuals
whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
include three directors (2021: three) whose emoluments
were reflected in the analysis presented in note 29(a).
The emoluments paid to the remaining two individuals
(2021: two) are as follows:

Salaries, other allowances and e - HMER
benefits in kind X EYEF
Bonus 14T
Pension costs RIKE KA
— defined contribution plans —EREH KA S

The emoluments of these individuals fell within the
following bands:

HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £2,000,000/% 7T

No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for the loss of office.
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HZE202243A31HILFE -
AEEREZERHTALS R
BRE=4Z(2021F : =%) &
= HEEH SR E29(e)
B DA AR 25 o [ H MR
(2021 : MB) AT ZTH
P&

2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTEx TAET
2,940 2,940
245 245

- 17

3,185 3,202

ZEALTHME N FIAT &
F :

Number of individuals

AH
2022 2021
2 2

AEBEHERNENESERE
AREH AL EMBME
ERMARKEHMALRSE
] B O SR B SR B BB AR (E



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

FINANCE COSTS, NET 8 MBEER- R
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FHETT
Finance income I ON
— Interest income on bank deposits —IRITERHF B A 56 1,397
Finance costs W ER
— Interest expense on bank loans —RITEZMFEHAX (1,304) (960)
- Interest expense on bank overdrafts —$R17i% X B F BB X (7) (36)
— Interest expense on lease liabilites —HAE & &/ S5 (445) (343)
— Interest expense on amount — BN —R2EEFEN
due to a director (note 26(b)) FEF X (KaF26(b) (23) (47)
(1,779) (1,386)
Finance costs, net BB HA - FE (1,723) 11
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

9 INCOME TAX CREDIT 9 FriEBiiE &R
The amount of income tax credited to the consolidated RiFE2EB SRR ABNFTER
statement of comprehensive income represents: FIE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FHET
Hong Kong profits tax BBF B
Current income tax BV HA A7 15 B3 1,111 46
Deferred income tax (note 19) EIEFTISFL (H2E19) (5,235) (3,133)
Under-provision of current EFREAMERNEE N
income tax in prior year 143 =
Macau complementary tax SRPIET IS
Current income tax BVE AT 1584 - -
(3,981) (3,087)
Hong Kong profit tax is calculated at 16.5% (2021: E 7B N B TR F NG 5T B R 4 i
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. A)16.5% (20214 : 16.5%) 5T & °
Macau taxation is calculated at tax rates applicable to SR PSR TE OB Y R A T R R
jurisdictions in Macau at 12% (2021: 12%). i E12% (20214F : 12%) 7t & o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs

from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

tax rate of Hong Kong as follows:

Loss before income tax

Calculated at tax rate of 16.5%
Tax effects of:
Tax rates of overseas operation
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible
for tax purposes
Tax losses for which no deferred

income tax asset was recognised

Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses

Under-provision of income
tax in prior year

Effect of two-tiered profit tax rate
regime (note)

Tax reduction

Income tax credit

Note:

B P 15 7% B 5 18

1216.5%H B K5t B o) 1A

P20k
N TG R B R
BARBUA
PRI X2

B/ 48R .
FE

WEERBRLERSHEE

MR TR B 1R
B FA A FE I AR R
BB R

EFBHABRETRE

e PR RRME

FreBiER (2)

AEERATSHAE RN HRER
RAEREFENERTENER
LI

MERMAS 2 & (A1)

BRI

ML

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”)
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.
The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was

gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits

tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of qualifying

corporations will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2

million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of corporations

not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will

continue to be taxed at 16.5%.

Wiz -

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET

(104,678) (36,838)

(17,272) (6,078)
29 59

(15) (2,666)

39 8
13,281 5,611

- (1)

143 -
(165) -

(21) (20)

(3,981) (3,087)

MR2018%3H21H - BB A G EiB2017
FRF (BF]) (BT G E ) ([EFIE
2]) B3| AFISFHMAARG  ZIEHERR
201853 H28HEZEEZEX AEMN - WHREH
EBEMTE - BBEFGSHMAL - & EED
% /) 52,000,000/ 7T i F1 #5 128.25%#) Fi
KB - 1 H2,000,0000 7T 2 i 15 1%
16.5%M T EZHEFH - TRAFBHBAEHE
18 B0 1 305 F 5 42 B 12 16.5% HI B R FL »
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

10

11

DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022.

On 23 June 2020, the Board of Directors proposed a
final dividend of in respect of the year ended 31 March
2020 of approximately HK$33,600,000 representing
HK$0.02 per ordinary. Such dividend was approved
by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of
the Company. This proposed final dividend was not
reflected as a dividend payable as of 31 March 2020,
but was recorded as a distribution of reserves for the
year ending 31 March 2021.

LOSS PER SHARE

(@) Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing
the loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the respective
years.

Loss attributable to equity holders of
the Company (HK$’000)

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose
of calculating basic earnings per (FR%)

share (thousands)

Basic loss per share (HK cents)
(b) Diluted

Diluted loss per share is of the same amount
as the basic loss per share as there were no
potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for
the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.
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10

11

ARBERFBA
EHER(TET)

AEEREREND
T BN T 5 2

FRENERGEW)

KRS

EEW I EZREE2022F3 A31
BIEFEIRMNARERE -

MR2020F6A23H ' EE € E &M
HE2020F3A31H IEFEIRNM K
HAN B BRE@R0.02E T - &3
#733,600,0007% 7T - B BB FF
BRERAFERRBAF RS Lt
fE o BB BT BRI AR 2020F
SAITEMENFE Btk A E
E2021F3A31H L FE 2 FEED
K

BREE
(a) ZHK
BREXEBTIRBEARR R

A AL B R IAME
BEED BT BBINEF

HEETE -
2022 2021
(100,697) (33,751)
1,680,000 1,680,000
(5.99) (2.01)
(o) #E

EREBEERESRER
BEAER - WIRRERE
20224 k202143 H31H Ik
FEWERTENEEEE
EBAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

SUBSIDIARIES

Name

W

Directly held by the Company:

HADFEERER:

Sam Woo Group Limited
(“SW (BVI)")

(T=FBVI)))

Capital Plus Group Limited

Indirectly held by the Company:

HADARERES:

Sam Woo Bore Pile Foundation

Limited (“SWBP”")

= EERAA ([ZFHE])

Sam Woo Construction &
Engineering Limited

SHERERARAF

Sam Woo Engineering Equipment

Limited (“SWEE?)

=MERERAR ([=MER])

Place of
Incorporation and

kind of legal entity

AL 3t B R
HERBER

British Virgin Islands,

limited liability

company
RRENAS

BRAT]

British Virgin Islands,

limited liability

company
EERAHE

ERAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B ARAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B ARQA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

& ARAA

Particulars of
issued share
capital

ERTRAHR

10,000 ordinary
shares of US$1
each

10,000
GREMEIET
i AR

2 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

2R =R
EEIET
VAR

10,000,000
ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

10,000,000
BREEIBT

VR

100,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1
gach

100,0008%
SREEVET
fL B AR

500,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1
each

500,000/%
SREEVET

12

Ep- PN

Effective interest

held as at

FisERER

2022 2021
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities
and place of operation

TEXBREBME

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHETIRLR
TR AL B AR A

Trading of and leasing of
machinery and equipment
in Hong Kong

REREBERHEHKH
E

Leasing of machinery and
equipment in Hong Kong

REBREHM L RE
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e PR M

12 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name

&8

Indirectly held by the Company:
(Continued)
HAAREERES ()

Sam Woo Foundation Limited
(“SWFL")

Sam Wooltt ZE R A Al
(TSWit % 1)

AA Foundation Limited

M EERAR

Sam Woo Givil Contractors Limited

“MEATIRARAA

Sam Woo Civil Works Limited

ZAEIARERAF

Sam Woo Foundation Limited

=M EIRERAR

Sam Woo Finance Limited

ZAYBERDA

Place of
Incorporation and
kind of legal entity
TR it E R
EEERESR

Macau, limited liability
company

B ARAT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B ARAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&R ARAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&8 ARAA
Hong Kong, limited
liability company
&5 ARAA
Hong Kong, limited

liability company

B BRDA]

Particulars of
issued share
capital

EROTRAHE

2 ordinary shares
of MOP15,000
each

REREE
15,0009 %
&R

40,000,000
ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

40,000,000%
BREEVET

10,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1
each

10,000
BREBTET
LR

2 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

2B REE
1B TTH L @R

2 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

2B EREE
1B TR L AR

2 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

2RBREE
1B TTH L @R
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12

Effective interest

held as at

FERER

2022 2021
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

MY R ()

Principal activities
and place of operation

TEXBREERY

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Macau

RRFETHETR
AR B R

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHETRE
To bR £ 3 8 P s

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHETRE
To b £t 3 8 e s

Inactive

LEEX

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHETRR
RO R R

Inactive

LEXE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name

=L

Indirectly held by the Company:

(Continued)
HAAREEES ()

Sam Woo Asia Development
Group Limited
SNENEREBERAA

Sam Woo Foundation
Group Limited
M EEEBRAA

Redland Contractors Limited

TREEARAR

Place of
Incorporation and

kind of legal entity

ALt B R
EEREREE

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&g ARAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&g ARAT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&g ARAH

Particulars of
issued share
capital

ERTRAHFE

1 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

1RERAE
BT @R

1 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

1RERAE
BT @R

2 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

2B BREE
TETHERR

12 MBARE (&)

Effective interest
held as at

s ERER

2022 2021

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

Principal activities
and place of operation

TEXBREELY

Inactive

EREY

Inactive

EREY

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHETRE
IR0 B R

2002FFHK | ZNBEEEARLF
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e PR M

13 LEASES 13
This note provides information for leases where the
Group is a lessee.

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet
Right-of-use assets
Of which are: g
Properties Y%
Machinery and equipment e K 5%
Lease liabilities
Of which are: g
Current lease liabilities REBHEARG
Non-current lease liabilities FERBHEEEE
Note:

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year
ended 31 March 2022 were HK$7,918,000 (2021:
HK$17,221,000).

Lease modification arising from the rent-free period
received from a property were HK$1,006,000 (2021:
Nil).
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HE

AHEREBBASEEREAEA
MEENER -

(a)

R EERBBERERNS
#
FEHAEEE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAT
10,730 13,347
2,469 -
13,199 13,347
HEEE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
8,474 7,104
4,126 6,364
12,600 13,468

B E2022F3A31H EFE
ANEFAEEER7,918,000
7B 7T (20214 : 17,221,00078
JT) °

RAHAR —BEYEWIRZ
& & 5] A1,006,000/8 7T
(20214 : BF ) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13 LEASES (Continued)

(b)

Amounts recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income

Depreciation of right-of-use assets of
HK$31,000 (2021: HK$108,000) have been
included in cost of sales and HK$9,529,000
(2021: HK$7,023,000) have been charged in
administrative expenses for the year ended 31
March 2022.

Expenses relating to short-term lease for office
and storage premises of HK$3,830,000 (2021:
HK$5,326,000) and directors’ quarters of HK$
Nil (2021: HK$722,000) have been included in
administrative expenses.

The total cash outflow for leases for the year
ended 31 March 2022 was HK$14,055,000
(2021: HK$14,508,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases offices, factory premises and
staff quarters. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of 1 year to 3 years with no
extension and termination options.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions including lease payments and lease
terms.

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, no lease is
committed but not yet commenced.

e PR RRME

13 HE (&)

(o)

LB E2022F3H31H IEF
EimE 31,0007 7t (2021
4 : 108,000/ 7T ) HyfE FA 4
BENEDFATHERAE]
9,529,000/ T (20214 :
7,023,000/ 7T ) EETTE
X HBR o

EBEAMRLRERRREYMEZ
%2 HA7H & /Y 7 %.8,830,000
7 7T (20214 : 5,326,000
BIL)REEFEENZT AT
(20214 : 722,000/ 7T) B2
ATAITHEAY o

H £20229F3H31H LlEF
EHEMBEERLAEE
14,055,000/ 7T (20214 :
14,508,000/ 7)) °

AEBMHAE
7=

SEBMHE AR

AEBBAERAE  BEK
BIE® HEGHNEATIZ
1E3FREFE BRI - I
BT AR bR -

BRI B Bl R

BEEBE TR AGERR R I&
- EREENKEEEY
fR o

4%:—1

S

R20224 202143 A31
B WEEAFHEHKRFR
WiEE -
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e PR M

14 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
At 31 March 2020 #2020%F3A31H
Cost A
Accumulated depreciation 2EHTE
Net book amount EHFE
Year ended 31 March 2021 HZ202143A318
HEE
Opening net book amount ENEREFE
Transfer from right-of-use assets EROFAREEE
Additions NE
Depreciation e
Closing net book amount FREEFE
At 31 March 2021 R2021%E3A31H
Cost %N
Accumulated depreciation 25T E
Net book amount EHFE
Year ended 31 March 2022 #HZ202263A318
H5E
Opening net book amount ENEEFE
Write-off A
Disposal k=
Additions NE
Depreciation e
Closing net book amount FREEFE
At 31 March 2022 20223 A31H
Cost A
Accumulated depreciation 25t E
Net book amount HREHE
N
I
§)
e\
'rl‘flf‘y'
Y
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14 HBHERRAE
Machinery Furniture
and and Motor

equipment fixtures vehicles Total
BHKkRE BRREE RE Mt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THAT TET TET
818,118 1,467 8,997 828,582
(276,672) (1,197) (7,042) (284,911)
541,446 270 1,955 543,671
541,446 270 1,955 543,671
15,978 - 49 16,027
11,377 148 718 12,243
(26,330) (111) (717) (27,158)
542,471 307 2,005 544,783
846,466 1,538 9,895 857,899
(303,995) (1,231) (7,890) (313,116)
542,471 307 2,005 544,783
542,471 307 2,005 544,783
(1,105) - - (1,105)
- - (69) (69)

5,795 757 688 7,240
(24,878) (216) (820) (25,914)
522,283 848 1,804 524,935
850,422 2,294 10,419 863,135
(328,139) (1,446) (8,615) (338,200)
522,283 848 1,804 524,935
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14

(a) As at 31 March 2022, plant and equipment
amounting to HK$50,864,000 (2021:
HK$35,203,000) were secured for the Group’s
bank loans (note 22(e)(ii)).

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
has exercised the purchase option to purchase
the leased assets related to machinery and
equipment amounted to HK$16,027,000 upon
the expiry of the lease period.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 15
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Opening amount FUwHE
Fair value gains N ER
Closing amount FREE

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income is unlisted equity securities in
Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group holds 5% of issued
capital of Gold Champion Enterprises Limited which
is an unlisted entity principally engaged in investment
properties holding (2021: same).

W R (E)

(a)

MR202293A31H ' €8 A
50,864,0007 JT (20214 :
35,203,000 Jr.) M) # i &
BREAEASBERITERD
R (FT sE22(e)(ii)) °

R E E£202143A31H 1k
FE AEBERBHER
RITHEEERAB AR
16,027,0007%% 7T A& BA# A%
R HEBE -

BRAVESFAREMEZABAZS

MEE
BAFEFAREMEEBRAZBEAR
wRE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TER THET
20,530 20,120
1,810 410
22,340 20,530

BRAFEFARMBEERAZ 2R
BERNBRBZIFLMBRARES

R2022F3A31H  AEEFE &
BEEEGRAREBITRASS -
PHEATEREREMELER 2
ETEE (20214 : #R) °
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e PR M

15

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (Continued)

Management considered the fair value of the unlisted
securities mainly represented the fair values of the
investee’s investment properties, net of its net current
liabilities. These investment properties which are
situated in Hong Kong are valued by an independent
valuer, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited (2021: RHL
Appraisal Limited), with reference to prices realised
on actual sales and/or asking prices of comparable
properties of similar size, development scale, nature,
character and locations. The valuations have been made
on the assumption that the owner sells the investment
properties on the market in their existing state without
the benefit of a cash rebate, deferred terms contract,
leaseback, joint venture, management agreement or any
other similar arrangement which could serve to increase
the value of the properties. Management considered
that the net current liabilities approximated their fair
values due to their short-term maturities.

The fair values of financial assets through other
comprehensive income is within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy (see note 3.3).
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BAFEFARMEZERAZE
MEE(E)

BRAFEFARMBEEBEAZ KA
RE(#&)

EEERR FLEmBEHZATE
TEEBEREFREMEZATF
BEMHMBRERDEETFR) - %5
BEMEMRER  THIEE BB
AN BRAEE - HE - SRR
ENTLEBMENERHEEPER
WERKREEEABEERM
FEEITRIZ RN AR A F (20214 :
KFTELEBBAR QR #E/TE
B o MEREES AAYERR
MG LR EREYEMER €O
BRLERRAEN  SREHE A
B EERESKEMEAmATR
FMEEBZEULHENTR - &
BEERARBDEEFEAEHDES
ML E A FE -

BRAFEFAEMEEBRAZER
BEZAFEERAFEEBHR 2F
=A% (R KI5E3.3) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES, 16
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables FEU Z Z 508
Retention receivables R IR BB &
Trade and retention receivables EWE SHRBERRE S

Less: loss allowance (Note (b) and (c)) & = K188 (H1:2(b) % (c))

Deposits, prepayments and e - TR FIE K H M RE I
other receivables (Note (a)) KA (Hit(a)

Less: non-current portion B JERNEER

Current portion BN EA 28 o

Note (a): The balance mainly represents rental deposit,
prepayment for sub-contractor fee, prepayment
for plant and equipment and other miscellaneous
prepayments.

The credit period granted to trade customers other than
for retention receivables was generally ranged from
45 to 90 days. The terms and conditions in relation to
the release of retention vary from contract to contract,
which may be subject to practical completion, the expiry
of the defect liability period or a pre-agreed time period.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

e PR RRME

BREZRERRES  URE
&~ T RRIE R H Ath B KR

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
53,670 94,591
71,323 83,167
124,993 177,758
(25,009) (25,009)
99,984 152,749
14,438 9,369
(2,525) (2,155)
11,913 7,214

Kiita) mEHRIZBRESRE -
DBREBEMNRIE - &
R 1 B0 TR AN FRIA DA B Ho At
RN KA ©

REKREERIN  BHEFP —KE
RABZOHMEEN - RERES
R BRI RS R MM AT
[l - ATREZAFERRT - REEE
M AL O ENMEEREL T %)
B o AEE Y ES A TAERmIE
EAR -
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e PR M

16

TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES,
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The aging analysis of the trade receivables based on
invoice date was as follows:

1 to 30 days 1Z230H

31 to 60 days 31£260H
61 to 90 days 61290H
181 to 365 days 1812365H
Total HBET

Retention receivables are settled in accordance with the
terms of the respective contracts. In the consolidated
balance sheet, retention receivables were classified as
current assets based on the operating cycle. The aging
of the retention receivables based on invoice date was

as follows:

Within 1 year —F A
Between 1 and 5 years —EZRF
More than 5 years it 38 1

There is no movements in the provision for impairment
of trade and retention receivables that are assessed for
impairment.
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BREZRERRES  URE
T-ENREREMERRE
(%)

FEUE 55 IE R IR R A AR BRER
DR

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER TAET
29,138 80,961
378 7,123

- 6,507

24,154 =
53,670 94,591

EWREEEIRBEBNE KK
BE -REaEEABRA B
RBEDEARDEE - ERNEE
FHERRESBIBEEEAHNRE
BT

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFAT
5,903 17,484
37,369 38,371
28,051 27,312
71,323 83,167

SR E N RN E S RERRE S
LA A E (TR T -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES,
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Note (b):

In February 2017, SWFL, a subsidiary of the Company, has
filed a civil procedure in Macau court against a customer
to recover certain retention receivables amounted to
MOP10,447,000 (equivalent to HK$10,134,000). The First
Instance Court delivered a judgement against the claims in
June 2018. An appeal was launched against such judgement
in January 2019, before the Second Instance Court agreeing
to the fact that part of the evidence submitted by SWFL should
have been considered by the First Instance Court when it made
its original judgment. After the judgment made by the Second
Instance Court, the customer lodged a further appeal to the
Court of Final Appeal in December 2019. Such appeal was
denied by the Court of Final Appeal in June 2020, and the First
Instance Court issued a revised judgment in February 2021,
demanding the customer to pay the claimed amount to SWFL.
The claimed amount totaled MOP21,277,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$20,639,000), which included the
abovementioned retention receivables as well as compensation
for certain variation order.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, a full provision
was made against the retention receivables amounted to
HK$10,134,000.

As at 31 March 2022, the customer has not yet repaid the
claimed amount to SWFL. Taking into consideration the
uncertainty surrounding the timing of the repayment as well as
the customer’s ability to repay, management did not adjust the
full provision made against the retention receivables during the
year ended 31 March 2022.

16

e PR RRME

BREZRERRES  URE
T-ENREREMERRE
(&)

Kiatb) -

R20174F2 7 - SWith & (KA 7] B
A7) EH AT P RRPAR IR
REFZEREF AYIE10,447,00058F9
® (88 710,134,000 7T) 2 & T
FEUIR B & o SR PT ¥ AL BT 722018
FOAELBEBABBER AR M
SWith £ 7201941 A 3t 3% #I R IZ K
EFF  BPIR FORRT R R P A&
SEBEVEH R 28 HIRES FEE B 205 A
SWitth E 2 33 K 75 4 o 7R P A AE
Br VB #IR 1% - 52 B P R2019512
AR RE AR — 0 E5R o
B £ R2020F6 A R P K FE
AR BB - T SR P ] AR BT 1A 2021
FoRAEHEBRTHR RBREEZBRFRA
SWit ESX N RECHE  RESHES
H 521,277,000 FI% (A E R 4
20,639,000/ 7T) + H A B Ll fE
WRBEARE TERTEMNHE
4 e

ARATREE2019FE3A31B ILFEE
2 5t eI IR EE £10,134,000/ T 5HR
BB -

M20229F3A318  ZEF H AR
SWit EEERESHE - EEINERK
RRANREFPERENNTHIEEA
= EEEREE2022F3A318 1t
FENWEAERE BRBIRE S E
R 2 B o

2022FFH | ZNEEEEERAA
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e PR M

16

TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES,
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Note (c):

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, SWFL had another retention
receivable, amounted to MOP15,335,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$14,875,000), due from another customer
which remained outstanding. The customer did not settle the
retention to the Group due to the fact that it has lost its court
proceeding in preserve the land use rights to the relevant
construction site. Management has been seeking to negotiate
with the customer for the recovery of the retention receivables
but there has not been any significant progress. As a result,
management made a full provision on this retention receivables
during year end 31 March 2020.

Taking into consideration the uncertainty surrounding the timing
of the repayment as well as the customer’s ability to repay,
management did not adjust the full provision made against the
retention receivables during the year ended 31 March 2019.

The carrying amounts of trade and retention receivables
approximated their fair values and were denominated in HK$.

Impairment and risk exposure

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade and retention
receivables and contract assets.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables
and the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign
currency risk and interest risk can be found in note 3.1.
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BREZRERRES  URE
T-ENREREMERRE
(%)

Kiit(c) -

MR20224F K20214F3A831H -
SWit EBE RIS —2EFP &
#15,335,00008 % (BE R4
14,875,000/ L) 2 EWIRBE - B
FARIAEEAKREE BARZEFPEREA
MBI E T i 2 -t (F AR AR
AR Z2BRFPUEMASEEEER
fREE:  -BHEE—ESKEZE
FREFNEEERERRES - L
EAMBEAER - ALt - EEERE
ZE2020F3A31 B ILFEARE BEIE
WIRBEIEL 2 RERME -

ERIEFRFEANARZTFERENN
THAREZ EEERE 201943
A31B L FE A EFERE R
REBSEHHN D EEE -

BUE P HERRR S HREERL
ATEME - FABTEE -

B K =

AEBERBEEM GRS EAE
SEOEF EEMERERE - B
ERUEZFEMREEARA
MEERRBREFENEHNBEE
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

Cash at bank
Cash on hand

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents and
restricted bank balances

Maximum exposure to credit risk

RITRE
FERS

Re kBReFEY

R HIRITER

RelBReFEEMAR
R B IR1TAEER

PAENRSEERR

Note: As at 31 March 2021, the restricted bank balance
represents a deposit of HK$3,192,000 placed by a

director (note 21(a)).

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents

and restricted bank balances were denominated in the

following currencies:

HK$
MOP
Others

BT
R
HAl

RERASEEYWURZRHIR

1THE R
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
127,802 187,861
126 60
127,928 187,921
- 3,192
127,928 191,113
127,802 191,063

Biat - 2021383180 © R #l
R 1T 45 #2 £ 3,192,0007%8 T
H—ZE=HFAMNES (M
21(a)) °

RBe kR FEWARZRBIRT
ERNREEATIIEEEE :

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTERT TAET
127,740 190,877
160 196

28 40
127,928 191,113
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e PR M

18 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND 18 BA& s REOBERREE
RESERVES
(a)  Share capital (a) f& 7
Number of
shares HK$
B EBE BT
Ordinary Shares, authorised: ZERCGEE) -
At 31 March 2021 and MR2021F3A31H &
31 March 2022 202243 A31H 4,000,000,000 10,000,000
Ordinary shares, issued ZTER(CBETRAR) :
and fully paid:
At 31 March 2021 and R202163H318 &
31 March 2022 202243 A31H 1,680,000,000 4,200,000
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e PR RRME

18 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND 18 BA& - RO EERRE(F)

RESERVES (Continued)
(b) Share premium and reserves (b)

Financial assets

at fair value

through other
comprehensive

Share income fair
premium  value reserve
RATEA
Rf2E0A

LEREE

RBEE 2 ATERRE
HK$ 000 HK§'000

B0 342 (B N feé

Other Retained
reserves earnings Total

RibfE REBA it
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
TR TR Tin

(Note)
)
10,500 488,770 693727
(33751) (33751)
= = 40

= (33,600) (33,600

10,500 21,419 626,786
- (100,697) (100,697)

- - 1810

10,500 320,122 527,899

Thn Tk
At1 Apri 2020 H2020E4A18 194,087 310
Loss for the year FEEE
Fair value gains on financia assets at FVOC EATEAL2ERAL
SREELDTENG - 40
Final dividends relating to the year ended BEEZ0FIAAL
31 March 2020 (ots 10 FENRBRE Hitn) - -
At 31 March 2021 AAERYRIE 194,087 780
Loss for the year EEER - -
Fair vaue gains on financial assets &t FVOC| BATEHALHZENAL
SHAEZATRNE - 1810
At 31 March 2022 LR R 194,087 2,590
Note:

Other reserves of the Group represented the difference
between the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the reorganisation over the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
thereof and the difference between the aggregation of
the nominal value of the share capital of SWBP and
SWEE acquired over the nominal value of the share
capital of SW (BVI) issued in exchange thereof pursuant
to the reorganisation completed in 2003.

Wit :

AEERHEMFEERREESR
BT U B8 RO B B 2 B B AR AN =
BB ABBRAMBEITARA
AR ANE E M = RBER
20034F SE Ak B9 E 48 AT BB A9
= 0 b B B = A0 A B9 AR A
EEBAT - SR AREE R
AN T 3 1T 89 = M(BVI)AR AR &
BEREEE -
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e PR M

19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.

Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTIST ARG
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTEME E

The movement on the deferred income tax account was

as follows:

Balance at 1 April R4 818 Z &%

Recognised in the consolidated REEEEEKERA
statement of comprehensive R(H:7F9)

income (note 9)

Balance at 31 March M3 A31H 2 &6k

SAMIWOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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EFEFREB

EEFTSH R B ERA A HOER 5
ITHER 5 BN HA A IR & A B D B A
HEEYHHE  BREMFHER—
BABH RA AR RE B T IA4E 8H -

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
(46,549) (51,821)
1,371 1,408
(45,178) (50,413)

BRIEFMEHEREHOT :

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
(50,413) (53,546)
5,235 3,133
(45,178) (50,413)
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e PR RRME

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, were as

follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

Balance at 1 April 2020

Recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income

Balance at 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021

Recognised in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income

Balance at 31 March 2022

Deferred income tax assets

Balance at 1 April 2020
Recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

Balance at 31 March 2021 and
1 April 2021

Recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

Balance at 31 March 2022

19 RIS

B (%)

EXEPTEHAE

BREHBERBEMEENES (LT
ZRMARAMEEEEEERAZE
BREH) T

Accelerated

tax
depreciation
IR BT E
HK$'000
FHT
R2020F4 A1 8 2 46k 88,264
RirEE2mEBE KR ANER
91)
MR20219F3H31H &
20214 A1 Z 84 88,173
Rirs 2 E K =R AER
(2,808)
R20229F3 A31H Z & & 85,365
RIEFTSHEE
Unrealised Tax
profit losses Total
AEBRRA BIEEE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET TAET FTAET
R2020F4 18 2 &% 1,507 33,211 34,718
KR 2 EANERNER
(1,507) 4,549 3,042
202163 A318 &
2021F4F1H 2 84 - 37,760 37,760
Rzt 2 ANERNER
- 2,427 2,427
R2022F3A310 2 & - 40,187 40,187
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e PR M

19

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, a subsidiary
of the Company has received a letter from the
Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department of Hong
Kong (“IRD”), where the IRD disagreed on certain
depreciation allowances claimed in relation to the years
of assessment from 2012/2013 to 2015/2016. The
subsidiary is at a taxable loss position and is entitled
to lodge a formal disagreement towards the IRD’s
Statement of Loss or within one month after the IRD
issues a tax assessment incorporating the loss to be
issued in subsequent years as and when the subsidiary
turns to a taxable income position. According to the
IRD’s calculation, the tax losses brought forward will
decrease by HK$32,738,000. The corresponding impact
on the deferred tax liabilities arising from accelerated
tax depreciation as at 31 March 2022 would decrease
by HK$5,402,000, whilst deferred tax assets arising
from tax losses as at 31 March 2022 would also
decrease by the same amount. These impacts have
not been adjusted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as at 31 March 2022 because the directors
do not agree with the IRD’s assessment that such
depreciation allowances should be disallowed (2021:
same). The Group is in the process of seeking advices
from their tax consultants as to how to take further
action in respect of this letter and continues to provide
for deferred taxation based on management’s best
estimates.
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I PS8 (42

BELEFRSREE (&)

REE2021F3A31BILFE * &
AR —HNB AR EEREMRK
B(BBREL Kk - BB RHTR
BB AR BE2012/2013F E &
2015/2016F EM M EERBE
FTHERE - ZMBARERR
JERTE B - ME HE SRR
MU AMREER - AIERERBBR
HEFEERTT (MAHBREER)
B—EARNETEEBRANEIRD
ERARE - REFBEROTE - &
B K 75 T8 B5 48 15 R > 32,738,000
JC ° 202293 A318 » A pl &k i
BETEMEESEEREA BENAE
5215/ 15,402,000 7T 0 TR
202243 H31B A EEEME A&
WIRERIEE ENEHRAER
o HRESUIAREREHENL
MR RATERIERBBETER
TigE B EFETEENEEE
F2022F3A31HMiRE B =k
R (20214 : HA) - A& H
IR IE ORISR B = B DAL % K
FEEE — 5178 - WERBREE
BEENREGFELERIER R
1 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable
profits is probable. As at 31 March 2022, the Group
had unrecognised tax losses of approximately
HK$118,177,000 (2021: HK$38,418,000) that can be
carried forward to offset against future taxable income,
of which an amount of HK$752,000, HK$1,311,000
and HK$653,000 will expire in 2023, 2024 and 2025
respectively (2021: HK$844,000, HK$752,000 and
HK$1,311,000 will expire in 2022, 2023 and 2024
respectively) and an amount of HK$115,461,000 (2021:
HK$35,512,000) has no expiry date.

19

e PR RRME

EREFRGH ()
BEELEFRSREE (&)

s B 45 18 7 7R FE 2R B m A1) 5 IR 48
BERIEF D B AEANTFEEIE
BRELEFSHEE - RN2022F
SA31H  ANEE A &8 UK E R
PR RR B UL Y K B SRR TE 5 1B
#49/5118,177,0007 7T (20214 :
38,418,000/ 7t.) + H A752,000
# 7t ~ 1,311,000/ 7t }&653,000
7B TT D Bl #5 120234 « 20244 &
20254 E| #f (20214F : 844,000/
JT ~ 752,0007% 7T K 1,311,000/ 7T
2 Bl #5 1A 20224F + 20234 2024
F 2 H) - 115,461,000/ 7T (2021
135,512,000/ 70 ) WEEEIEGH o
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20

TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES, 20
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables
Retention payables

Total trade and retention payables
Accruals and other payables (Note)

R E 53R
ERNRE 2

RNESFEARRECHRE
J& &t R IR I Ho Al e 5RR
(Ktez)

Note: The amounts mainly represent accruals and other

payables for constructing work-in-progress, wages,

legal and professional fees and transportation costs.

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on

invoice date was as follows:

0 to 30 days

31 to 60 days

61 to 90 days

91 to 180 days

181 to 365 days
More than 365 days

0Z30H
31E60H
61%E90H
91Z180H
181%365H
A #8365 H

SAMIWOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

EREZRERRES B

TR R H fth FE S IR

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

TEx FHET

55,692 46,581

14,668 12,346

70,360 68,927

13,561 18,395

83,921 77,322

Wit BREFRIZ/MBEERT
BFHE ARREXEMHA
18 B PR AN O B AT SRl B A R

fH3R0R -

e B 2R AR B R A MM AR

DR :
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
30,943 17,596
798 8,292
96 3,030
1,221 1,661
1,389 15,151
21,245 851
55,692 46,581
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES,
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

In the consolidated balance sheet, retention payables
were classified as current liabilities. The aging of the
retention payables was as follows:

Within 1 year —F RN
Between 1 and 5 years —FERF
Over 5 years HF

The carrying amounts of trade and retention payables
approximated their fair value and were denominated in
the following currencies:

HK$ BT
MOP SB[
Others H i

20

BNEZR
EREMENE

RERREE - BT
RIA (&)

RERBERBRRA  BURES
TRRRBDEE - BNREESHK

BT
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHE T FE T
3,482 1,006
4,735 7,246
6,451 4,094
14,668 12,346

BNESRBARGESHEREE

BENFEMBS LA TINEREF
5 -
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TET
64,251 54,360
4,431 4,431
1,678 136
70,360 58,927
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e PR M

21

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

(@)

Pursuant to the Deed of Indemnity, Mr. Lau
Chun Ming (“Mr. CM Lau”), a director of the
Company, irrevocably undertakes to deposit
a sum of HK$20,000,000 into a bank account
under the name of the Group for the purpose
of indemnifying the Group against any claims,
challenges and rejections from the Hong Kong
tax authority and/or Macau tax authority and
costs incurred in relation to the Group’s tax
liabilities arising up to October 2014.

In the event that no claim in relation to taxation is
instituted by both Macau tax authority and Hong
Kong taxation authority against the Group within
seven years after the date on which dealings in
the shares on the Main Board first commenced,
i.e. 16 October 2014 (“the Listing Date”), the
balance shall be released and returned to Mr.
CM Lau on the seventh anniversary of the Listing
Date.

In June 2017, the final and conclusive tax
assessment and final tax demand note for the
years 2013 and 2014 were issued by the tax
authority in Macau, indicating that the Group had
no outstanding amount on the required tax for
the years of assessment of 2013 and 2014 in
Macau; the Macau tax assessment for the years
2013 and 2014 have been concluded, final and
settled. There is no tax liability so far demanded
by Hong Kong tax authority in respect of the
transactions and income contemplated under the
Machinery Lease Agreement and the Machinery
Agency Agreement.
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BEBERE  AQRES
214 B %5 A 7 A] Bl AR
RREREEHE BB
P&,/ SORPIFL IS B PI 4R
BEREREZR HREKE -
LA R 2N &2 B 8 22014410
RESXOHREEERBEK
K mAEEZTRITERRS
F A 173%20,000,0007 7T °

WRRHDERFAERERE
= 2 B (B12014%10A16H
([EmBHED)EEEFEA -
B P 5 765 20 P e B A T 75 30
PItEE A EEIRH B M
EMBER - BIREEN LT
HEECHEFTEBEBERR
BT RIRRASLAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21 AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

In July 2017, the Company partially return to Mr.
CM Lau HK$17,000,000 out of the deposit of
HK$20,000,000 pursuant of Deed of Indemnity
together with all the bank interests earned up to
12 July 2017 amounting to HK$1,006,000 in view
of the updated tax positions mentioned above
and the estimate on maximum exposure made by
the tax advisers of the Company. The remaining
HK$3,000,000 represented the estimated
remaining tax exposure of the Group.

As at 31 March 2021, the balance of amount
due to a director is secured by restricted bank
balances HK$3,192,000 and interest bearing at
effective interest rate of 1.47%.

During the year ended 31 March 2022. The
balance of HK$3,192,000 has been released and
returned to Mr. CM Lau.

The remaining balance of HK$50,000,000 of
amount due to a director is for operational use,
denominated in HK$, unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

e PR RRME

21 EN-—REEXREGE)

(@)

(%)

B it SR MR AR &
AN AR R R R B _ERR
[2 B fh 51 - 201757 A -
RNATREIRA S EFER
{E 224 18 20,000,000/ 7T
17 3 #917,000,0007% T 38
RZEF KRB E2017F7 H
128 PR AN A — L08R 1T 17 3K
# 81,006,000 7T ° & T~
3,000,000/ 7T 1§ 7~ & & Y
fEHER TR R b o

202138318 @ B —
BEF IR Z B Z R
R 17 4 £323,192,000/% 7T iK
Wi E R ZEA1.47 %5t
B o

o)

B E20229%38318H IF&F
£ - &5 £23,192,000/% 7T &
B3R 30 5708 T 2R AR O

o

X

H &

#:%8 450,000,000/% 7T K &
N—BESERBIEER
HE2R HRBTEE -
AEERE - B RIRERE

o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

22 BORROWINGS

Non-current
Long-term bank loans

Current
Short-term bank loans
Current portion of long-term bank
loans due for repayment within
one year
Bank overdraft

Total borrowings

22

R
RHISRITER

=3
)L

REHERITE R
R—FRIRAEED
RHRITERD
BIERE8
RITEX

{8 RAB R

(a) The maturity of borrowings was as follows:

(i) Bank loans

The maturity of bank loans are as follows:

Within 1 year
Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 5 years

—F R
—EmMF
—ERF

it R
B A

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiER TR
7,200 2,534
82,483 76,699
8,197 7,444
- 19,834
90,680 108,977
97,880 106,511

@ EXNIBBERET :

(i) RITEX

RITERNFHABERAT -

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx THET
90,680 103,977
5,981 2,634
1,219 =
97,880 106,511

S
1)
\\ §A ‘ué‘!l\
419 1
¥ a8 | Al QO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022
f At 4 Mﬂ"ﬂ % bl



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 BORROWINGS (Continued)

(b)

The weighted average interest rates were as
follows:

Short-term bank loans WHRITER

Long-term bank loans RHIBRITER
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings
were denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ BT

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings
approximated their fair value as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

22

e PR RRME

(b)  MEFHFERLT

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TER THET
2.5% 1.7%
3.2% 2.5%

€ AEEERNREENAT

A EHE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE FHT
97,880 106,511

(d @BARFRFEALTEKR K
SENEFEREREQY
BEE -
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e PR M

22 BORROWINGS (Continued)

(e) The Group’s banking facilities are subject to
annual review and the utilised facilities comprise:

Secured BHEA

Unsecured 44 19

(i) an unlimited guarantee given by certain
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2022 (2021:
same);

(if) certain plant and equipment of the Group

as detailed in notes 14.

23 COMMITMENTS

(@) Capital commitments

22

23

Capital expenditure contracted for at RS ERE 514
the end of the reporting period but BEHEREEZ

not yet incurred are as follows: BARRAZIAT :
Property, plant and equipment Y2 - B KRR
24 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 24

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has given guarantees
on performance bonds of HK$14,386,000 (2021:
HK$74,597,000), in respect of two construction
contracts of the Group in its ordinary course of business
(2021: three). The performance bonds are expected
to be released in accordance with the terms of the
respective construction contracts.
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B (&)

) AKENRITEEAEFE
Bl  EBRMEEERENATE

18 :
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER THET
15,397 9,978
82,483 96,533
97,880 106,511

() 202293 A31H » & T
M8 A AR At a9 RSB AR
(20214 : HRA) + &

(ii) AEBEzE THWRERE
(FERMWE14) -

&

(@  BAEE

2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$’'000
TRERT TET
422 -

HREE

N2022F3A31H - XEERE B
ANEBHBSEBKHERNNRIBRE
A (20214 + =18) BB 1R K
B H ¥E 1R 14,386,000/ 7T (2021
F 1 74,597,000 70) ° EZ:JEZ’J
RUTEF BB IE R EEES ORIE
/Ty\ﬁﬁtﬁ/%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OF CASH FLOWS

(@)

Reconciliation of loss before income tax to net (@)

cash used in operations:

Loss before income tax

Depreciation of plant and equipment
(note 14)

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(note 13)

Gain on disposal of plant and
equipment (note 6)

Write-off of plant and equipment
(note 6)

Finance income (note 8)

Finance costs (note 8)

Net exchange differences

Changes in working capital:
— trade and retention receivables

— deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

— contract assets

— trade and retention payables

— accruals and other payables

— contract liabilities
— amount due to a director

Net cash used in operations

B TS 70 A B 18

WA R R AT E
(Kat14)
FREBENE (#i£13)

B N 2% O W2
(K#tete6)
WEH AR SRR
(Htite)
A (B 728)
MBER (HiF8)
FERER

BEESE
—-EKRESHER
RES
—&&  BERER
H fth fE UK IE
—BREE
-ENESHEK
RES
—FEETRRIE R
H fth fE A 5K IE
—aHaE
— N —ZEEZE

REETBTARESFR

e PR RRME

ReRERERWE

BRPTSTR AT BB B R & TS
FTAR S FEME R :
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
(104,678) (36,838)
25,914 27,158
9,560 7,131
66 -
1,105 -
(56) (1,397)
1,779 1,386
- (192)
(66,310) (2,752)
52,765 83,914
(4,646) (1,549)
- 379
11,433 (65,372)
(4,834) (6,260)
- (11,366)
(3,192) -
(14,784) (3,008)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

25 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 25
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

RERERBRMEE(E)

(b) Net debt reconciliation (b)

This section sets out the reconciliation of liability
from financing activity for each of the years

AT H AR

AEBI 25| 2 B FEAF
BERPELEZABENHER -

presented.
Other assets Liabilties from financing activities
A e RERDEERR
Amount
due to
directors -
Cash and cash Bank Lease  Short-term Long-term financing
equivalents Overdraft liabiliies  bank loans ~ bank loans partion Total
Ef
ReRk ok R EENE-
ReEEN  RAEx HERE  BAER BAER @A Bt
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
ThL Thr TER Thn Thr ThL THEL
As at 1 April 2020 R2020%4A18 207,321 - (4,364) (100,903) (18,579) - 83,475
Cash flows: Beim:
- Principal element of  ~HEFFASL
lease payments Bt = - 8117 - - - 8117
- Drawdown of ~RRFTER
bank loans - - - (248,294) - - (248,294)
- Repayment of -ERRTER
bank loans - - - 272,306 8,601 - 280,907
-Drawdownfoma ~ ——£EEBLH
director HE = = = = = (60,000 (50,000)
-Decreaseincashand ~ ~B4 RHELSE
cash equivalents map (19,400) (19,834) - - - - (39,234)
Non-cash flows: FRER:
- Foreign exchange —SHERE
adjustments - - - 192 - - 192
- Addtion - lease -HE-HE (17.221) - - - (17.221)
3
g Asat 31 March 2021 H2021E3A318 187,921 (19,834) (13,468) (76,699) (9.978) (50,000 17,942

Sh
4 i it
hite g,\
\ i 5ie .“‘%‘
e ity ¥
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

25 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 25
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

RERERERWE(E)

(b) Net debt reconciliation (Continued)

b) FEBHERGE)

Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
ifpgE REEBEL EH
Amount due
Cash to directors -
and cash Bank Lease  Short-term  Long-term financing
equivalents Overdraft liabilities ~ bank loans  bank loans portion Total
Fff
B4R 4 58 EERE-
RESEN BB HERE  BAEX  BOER  RMERS st
HKS000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TiEn TéEn TR TiEn TiEn TéEn TR
As at 1 April 2021 021 E4A1R 187,921 (19,834) (13,468) (76,699) (9,978) (50,000) 17,942
Cash flows: Rei:
- Principal elementof ~ ~BERFALHH
lease payments - - 9,780 - - - 9,780
-Drawdown of bk~ —ERETER
loans y - - - (288,347) (17,504) - (305,851)
-Repayment ofbank ~ —~EBERFER
loans - - - 262,563 12,085 - 294,648
- Repayment to a diector ~EE—%EZA - - - - - 50,000 50,000
-Drawdownfroma -~ 4EZ3%
director E - - - - - (30,000) (30,000)
-Decreaseincashand  -BeREEE
cash equivalents iy (59,999) 10,834 - - - - (40,159)
Non-cash flows: FREN
- Addition - lease -HRE-HE - - (9,918) - - - (9,918)
- Lease modification ~~ —HEEE] - - 1,006 - - - 1,006
Asat 31 March 2022 720223A31H
(note 13) (Hiz13) 127,928 - (12,600) (82,483 (15,397) (30,000) (12,559)
(c) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, (c) RieReRERT @ HE
proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment M M RIENTSRIER
comprise: 75
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$’'000
TET FAHET
Net book amount (note 14) BRTE B (Mt 14) 69 -
Loss on disposal of plant and S B AR I 5 HY 5 48
equipment (note 6) (Htit6) (66) -
3 —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

26

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability
to control, jointly control or exert significant influence
over the other party in holding power over the investee;
exposure, or rights,
involvement with the investee; and the ability to use
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control or joint

to variable returns from its

26 BBALIXS
BARE A TS B RE IR -
TERNNALITEEAR

AL
& 77 Hy B] 2 [0 3R 19 [ B

4 %‘J QZ%F =

control. Related parties may be individuals or other AT o BAHE A TR BE A S EA

entities. T

(a)  The directors of the Company are of the view that @ AREEZRAE TIAR
the following companies were related parties that RHEEAREEEITRH A

had transactions or balances with the Group:

Name of the related party
BABALTER

Mr. CM Lau
2R ER 5 A=
Cheer Crown Limited

EBHERANF

Cheer Crown Property Holdings
Limited

EEMEZRERAD

Cheer Profit Internaﬂonal Enterprise
Limited

EMNERPEERAD

Cheer Wealth Intemanonal
Development Limited

ERBERERBER AT

East Ascent Enterprise Limited

RAGEXERAF
Healthy World Investment Limited

REREBRAF

Long Ascent Development Limited

RAERBRAA
Sky Ease Holdings Limited

LA AR B AL

Relationship with the Group
HEAKENERE

Director of the Company

RRAAES

A related company beneficially wholly owned by
Mr. CM Lau

HERALEE2EERHENBAE QA

A related company beneficially wholly owned by
Mr. CM Lau

HERALEE2EERHENBAE A A

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HAEBETEENEARGEXNELERENBE AR

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HAEBETEENEARGEXNELERBNBE AR

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HAEBETEENEARGEXNELERB OB AR

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group

HASEETEE2ERENMAN A A

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group

HASEETEE2ERANMAN AR

A related company wholly owned by Mr. CM Lau

HERALEE T EHE AN @ QT
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26

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 26

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Transactions

(o)

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the

consolidated financial statements, the following

transactions were carried out with related parties

at terms mutually agreed by both parties:

Rental expenses paid to related

parties recognised in statement of

comprehensive income:

Rental expenses to Cheer Crown
Limited (note i and iv)

Rental expenses to East Ascent
Enterprise Limited (note ii and iv)

Rental expenses to Cheer Profit
International Enterprise Limited
(note ii and iv)

Rental expenses to Long Ascent
Development Limited (note ii and iv)

Rental expenses to Cheer Wealth
International Development Limited
(note ii and iv)

Rental expenses to Healthy World
Investment Limited (note ii and iv)

REERBRHERN
ENEBAL
Hemx:

IRTRBERRAN
Me R (Fetikiv)

IRTRACEERAT
SR (i Zikiv)

IRTENBEREERR
UNEIL:OF ikl b3
(Kt itiRiv)

INFRAZERERRAR
MM SFZ (M ikiv)

YHTERERERER
NAMBSHX
(B :2iiRiv)

TR TREREFRAT
KSR (M iikiv)

e PR RRME

BABALXS (&)

R
BRNER A M I R B B
PR EEE SN - AN SR B B R B
ATIREETT 1 TE B R RAE 1T
ATR5:

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET

- 720

- 200

- 292

- 200

2002FFHK | ZNBEEEARLF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

26

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 26 BBATRZ(E)
(o)  Transactions (Continued) b) X5 (#E)
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Payments paid to related parties HESEETENM
under lease liabilities: B TR
Payments to Cheer Crown Limited IRTEHERAA
(note i) BRI (Hi3H) 720 1,440
Payments to Cheer Crown Property YN FEEMERKRAR
Holdings Limited (note i) A RIE (ft i) 1,440 -
Payments to East Ascent Enterprise IR FRACEERAR
Limited (note i) B SROR (K atii) 46 31
Payments to Cheer Profit International X FERMBEECEER
Enterprise Limited (note i) A RIRO I (B &tii) 46 31
Payments to Long Ascent Development ST REAZEAR A
Limited (note ii) B 3R08 (H i) 600 400
Payments to Cheer Wealth International S FEHEEERESR
Development Limited (note ij) A RIROFRIA (B 2tii) 876 584
Payments to Healthy World Investment X FHEREFR QA
Limited (note i) KSR (M i) 600 400
Expense paid/payable to B/ EAEBALEY:
a related party:
Interest expense paid/payable to a BN/ ENESHSRAY
director (note iii and iv) (B i Riv) 23 47
Note i: Rental for storage of machinery and equipment Btati - PR{ETERRBEHR KR 3%
are based on terms pursuant to the tenancy BHHEESTIERE
agreements as mutually agreed by the relevant MR T HEREER

parties.

Note ii: Rental for directors’ quarters are based on
terms pursuant to the tenancy agreements as
mutually agreed by the relevant parties.
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27

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Transactions (Continued)

Note iii: Interest expense was payable to a director,
Mr. CM Lau, in respect of the amount due to a
director.

Note iv: This relating party transaction also constitutes
continuing connected transaction as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but its
size is such that the transaction was exempt
from the disclosure and shareholders’ approval
requirements for continuing connected

transaction.

(c) Key management compensation

Key management includes directors
(executive and non-executive) of the Group.
The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is disclosed
in note 29(a).

(d) Balance — non-trade

Payable to a director:
Mr. CM Lau (note 217)

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

Management consider that Silver Bright Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, is the ultimate holding company of the Group,
which is a company indirectly owned by a discretionary
trust, the beneficiary of which is Ms. Leung Lai So.

BN —BESERE:
BIRBA K & (faE21)

26 RBBMALIXRE (&)

(o)

X5 (%)

Ht iiii <

Kiativ -

M EFX IS
—REEFAME
NEZIIRA L
£ o

ZIEBEBALRS
iR T AR B 2
1AAENTER ZHF
BRER S B
BRZEERE -
B RAEA G P B 2R N
% B AL AR TE
BREERS -

TREEASHH

TEEBEABBEAEEE
= (MITRIERTT) - SLES
RECNRENTERER
A B BB FE29(a) IR

BH—FES

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTERT TET
30,000 53,192

27 BHEERAFE

‘& 12 [Z % ASilver Bright Holdings
Limited (— 7 58 iz Z B & £ it
BB A R BAEEREER

n

-

C ZARIHNARBHRLLI AR

BANEREEEERES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

28 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 28 AFAAFMNEEEBRRFEBEEZD
OF THE COMPANY
2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
=2 FET &L
Assets BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR E 5,927 5,927
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments TEAS 5B 92 28
Amount due from a subsidiary JFE U — R KT B~ &)
FKIE 197,880 197,936
Restricted bank balances IR Bl R1T A fR - 3,192
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBREEEY 606 531
Income tax recoverable A Y [ P 4S8 11 70
[ 198,589 . 201,757
Total assets EE#E 204,516 207,684
Equity R
Capital and reserves ERR#FE
Share capital % 75 4,200 4,200
Reserves Ei] (a) 200,290 200,281
Total equity AR 204,490 204,481
Liabilities =R
Current liabilities REAE
Amount due to a director B —ZEENIE - 3,192
Accruals and other payables JEST IR N E A
JE 1~ /318 26 1
Total liabilities EEHEE 26 3203
Total equity and liabilities EEREEHEE 204,516 207,684
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the RRAGBHEE B BRE R2022F
Board of Directors on 23 June 2022 and were signed on 6H23HBEEEZHE - WA T
its behalf. ATREREE -
Lau Chun Ming Leung Lai So
2|4 BA REF
Director Director
EZE EZE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT KRN EERBRRRAEEE
OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (%)
Note (a): Kiit(a) -
Reserve movement of the Company KATHNEESS
Share Other Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
R4 R E Hittf#E REBF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT FHT FHET
At 31 March 2020 202093 A31H 194,087 5,927 1,304 201,318
Profit for the year FEERA - - 32,563 32,563
Final dividends relating to BEREHE2020F3A31H
the year ended 31 March 2020  |F& EH) R 2K S
(Note 10) (Fzz10) - = (33,600) (33,600)
At 31 March 2021 202143 H31H 194,087 5,927 267 200,281
Profit for the year FEm A - - 9 9
At 31 March 2022 1202243 A31H 194,087 5,927 276 200,290

Other reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the net asset value of SW (BVI) acquired over

the nominal value of the share capital of the Company

issued in exchange thereof.

NN B R H At 48 BT KB = 0
BV)HWEEFEBBAR A AR
BEEEEMBETRAEmEBENZEZRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

29 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 29 EEENRER
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEMe
The remuneration of each director of the RAAREESZHMEH T
Company is set out below: R

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BEN2FIANALEFE

Employer’ s

contribution

Discretionary  Directors’  to pension
Fees Salaries bonus quarters scheme Total

Exm

Bty
ne ¢ BMERAL  EEREE  FHNEXR @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TiER TER TER TEn

Executive directors HTES

Mr. OM Lau® 2R L A - 863 - 643 - 1,506
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok" ARE S e - 910 - 600 - 1,510
Mr. Lau Chun Ka ARREE - 910 - 600 - 1,510
Ms. Leung Lai So 2BELT - 494 - 324 - 818
Independent BUkHTES

non-executive directors
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, E 2%

Roderick 248 - - - - 248
Mr. Chu Tak Sum KEHREE 248 - - - - 248
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Amold EXBEL 248 - - - - 248

44 3177 - 2,167 - 6,088




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

29 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 29 EEFEALERE)
(Continued)
(a)  Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ EEZWME E)

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HZ021 53R ALER

Employer’

contribution

Discretionary Directors’”  to pension
Fees Salaries bonus quarters scheme Total

EEm

RiN2a
we ¢  BERL  EZEE fLOEX @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TER TAT TAT TATL TR

Executive directors YTES

Mr. CM Lau? 3R £ - 797 66 643 - 1506
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok* ARE LA - 840 70 600 - 1,510
Mr. Lau Chun Ka ARREE - 840 70 600 - 1,510
Ms. Leung Lai So PEETS - 456 38 324 - 818
Independent BUFHTES

non-executive directors
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, 2%

Roderick 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Chu Tak Sum RERLE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Amold EXBRE 240 - - - - 240

720 2,933 244 2,167 - 6,064
# Chairman # *E
* Chief Executive Officer * 1T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

29

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration shown above represents
remuneration received from the Group by these
directors in their capacity as employees to the
Group and/or in their capacity as directors of the

companies now comprising the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, none of
the directors of the Company (i) received or paid
any remuneration in respect of accepting office;
(i) received or paid emoluments in respect of
services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries
undertaking; or (iii) waived or has agreed to waive

any emolument (2021: same).

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive
any retirement benefits during the year ended 31

March 2022 (2021: same).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year ended 31

March 2022 (2021: same).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making

available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2022, no
consideration was paid by the company to third
parties for making available directors’ services

(2021: same).

SAMIWOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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ESEARER (F)

BEEMe (&)

EEMEREAZFEEER/AR
SEEER HEFHAKHE
ETERARNEEAAEE
Y ER B B < o

KB E2022F3H31H IEF
ER - BEKRQGES))H
B 2 B W ER 3 32 AT A ] B
(LA BEERRQFL
E KB RA B FrAEE SR
U S S S E B2 ¢ 3k
(i) IR E R B W E A2
(20214 : #H[A) o

E=ZRKERN

H E2022F3A31B IEFE
B E = B UER kg IR ER
EA R IRFE F (20214 = 46
@) °

ERZEERAET

B Z2022F3A31H IEFE
42 B = 2 UR BN k5 Uk ER
ER] BE B 42 F) (20214 : 48
/) o

WERESREMAE=71
SN ZRE
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30

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 29 ESFEMNRERE)

(Continued)

(e)  Information about loans, quasi-loans and other (e) BARMES  ZIEHEEA
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies BENEEETERELINE
corporate by and controlled entities with such REEUER  URENZ
directors FATHEMR 58 E R

During the year ended 31 March 2022, there
were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing

B £20224F3A318 1L F
B WERES - G
EANERERBEETRE
EHRERFEEUER UK
BRZEATHEMRZ S
(20214 : FHRA) -

arrangements in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities with
such directors (2021: same).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, i) BEENR Y RHHEHH
arrangements or contracts BAER

Other than those disclosed in note 26 to the B 47 & BF 5 R 3k MO 5E26FT
BEEI NERIFRE
R EARFMER—
FEIN BARREEHESK
HEREEEAERBEARN
AEBBRANEARS &
HER A #7748 (20214 : 48

consolidated financial statements, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year (2021: same). @A) °
EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING 30 WMEHEEE
PERIOD
On 21 June 2022, pursuant to a loan agreement N2022FE6 210 » IRIEARQ T
between the Company and Sam Woo Ship Building B =FEM AR AR (—B B A
Limited, a related company beneficially wholly owned RARTEESEZERAENER L
by the executive directors of the Company, a loan ARV MERBE AN B R
amounting to HK$100,000,000 was drawn down for E 5£100,000,000/8 JLIEH & B &
the Group’s operating purpose. The loan is unsecured, © o ZERAEER - HR20245F
repayable on or before 30 June 2024 and bears interest 6H30H Sz HIEE @ FIX 5— &
of 1 month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus ABRBRITEZERB X INF F X
1.85% per annum. 1.85% °
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Five Year Financial Summary

L EHBEBRE

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities AEERBI I EMREENE TIEES
and equity of the Group for the last five financial years is as LREE BEUARESEMET -

follows.
Year ended 31 March
HESASIHILEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Results E FHExT FHET FET FHET FHET
Revenue WA 362,514 356,211 916,831 452,268 518,479
Gross (loss)/profit (E8) EF (57,522) (4,053) 126,666 4,382 44,045
(Loss)/profit before KR BT 18 %54 Al
income tax (E18) &5  (104,678)  (36,838) 83,679  (57,497) 5,625
Income tax credit/ Fris#iEe,”
(expense) (AX) 3,981 3,087  (10,661) 7,127 (106)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(FE),/
St (100,697)  (33,751) 73,018  (50,370) 5,519

As at 31 March
R3HA318

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR TAET TET TET TET

Assets BE

Non-current assets EMEEE 564,370 582,223 586,788 595,180 608,385
Current assets MENEE 239,836 351,146 456,582 262,754 385,418
Total assets BEBE 804,206 933,369 1,043,370 857,934 993,803
Liabilities 8&

Non-current liabilities EREBEE 57,875 60,719 69,613 59,537 78,281
Current liabilities mEBE 214,232 241,664 275,830 172,481 229,802
Total liabilities EE8HE 272,107 302,383 345,443 232,018 308,083
Total equity RSB 532,099 630,986 697,927 625,916 685,720
Note: Hiat -

The summary above does not form part of the audited financial Pl ESABEREEZTFREK A —ZF
statements. 4 e
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